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Financial Highlights and Calendar
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Financial Highlights
B E

4

Year ended 31 March 2015 2014 Change
BZE=A=1+—HILEE —E-RE —ZET-mF BE
HK$000 HK$'000 %
FET FET Bk
(Restated)
(&E5)
Revenue Wz 7,355,738 6,826,254 7.8%
Profit attributable to equity ZN/NS )3 586,773 581,196 1.0%
holders of the Company BHAE AEMNRA
Total assets BEBE 4,562,465 4,567,700 (0.1%)
Net assets BEFE 3,675,768 3,732,555 (1.5%)
Basic earnings per share FRERRZF HK$1.02/87T HK$1.0178 7T 1.0%
Interim and K HE R
final dividends per share REARR B HK78 cents 71 HK68 cents 1l 14.7%
Net assets per share BREEFE HK$6.32 BT HK$6.47 BT (2.3%)

Financial Calendar
B % B

Announcement of Interim Results

28 November 2014
—ET—mFE+—A=+\HRH

Announcement of Annual Results

RERERM

23 June 2015
—E-RFAAZ=+=H

Dividends Interim dividend: HK17 cents per share paid on 29 December 2014
Proposed final dividend: HK61 cents per share payable on 24 September 2015

& 2. RHEARR S ¢ SR178  ERZE—WHF+ AT BIRM
BRZ RS BREVEW  RZZ—RAFNLAZTHBIRR

Annual General Meeting ("AGM") 10 September 2015

ERBEFRE —E-hFNATH

Closure of Register of Members

7 September 2015 to 10 September 2015 (both days inclusive)
(for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM)

16 September 2015

(for determining entitlement to the final dividend)
TE-RAFNAEBEZE—AFNATH (BREMRBEEN)
(ARETE B R IRR AFRERENER)
—E—RFNATRH

(VARETE W HR R HARR BB B 4R)
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Chairman’s Message

SR Y

Evolving Heritage

Bt &

Since | last reported, our business performance has remained strong.
In particular, lam proud of our management’s efforts to consistently
implement the Group’s sustainable strategy as laid down by the
Board, with our business presence continuously expanding across
geographies, brands, product categories and market segments
through organic growth and franchise acquisitions.

On reflection, | cannot help but savour the gratifying journey that
has brought us to where we are today. In our growth trajectory,
a significant milestone was achieved when we became listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 1986. Since then, we have
advanced in great strides for almost 30 years as a public company
and have grown hand in hand with the city, while expanding our
business footprints beyond local shores. Our turnover has increased
about 27 folds while our profits have soared about 27 folds as
well. Not only have we developed an industry-leading portfolio of
brands, we have built an extensive restaurant network, especially in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, matched by our successful foray
into institutional catering, casual dining and other niche specialty
restaurant markets, which have successfully transformed us into
one of Asia’s largest publicly listed restaurant and catering groups
known for its marketing innovation and professional management.

BEFERANK  KRREKBNEHRR
REFERY  SEEEERBERNTES
REIUMHERRER  SRBAMERK
FHmEELE  EERZTAENFMER
EmEE THERXGEHMBEREE -
ARAALE BB

E2BE ERAREEERSBERMZ
FiE - AREEE - NN\RNFEFBHX
PR REMAREOAG T -—EEENE
B ELETREE=TEFE - A
HEABTFAE  XBABEE - BUTT
BREFBNIIMME - SENEXR
EREEH - tTEE MEMNTREETL
“H - BHMABERTZEERERE - &
FERRAMEBETERNERBSK XX
DHAKBRR  KEERLRFEERES
ATIHEY  SEERSDIMEANLTE
REEz— WABIHHTISHEEREER
MERZFERXA -

Remarkable Journey

FEFLEY IR

In our remarkable journey, we have our fair share of challenges.
In our 46 years of existence, we have travelled across vastly
diverse business landscapes, shaped by the unpredictable forces
of larger economic and social change. We have weathered
many economic downturns, including the SARS crisis, the Asian

EEBERNERS - ROATELE - B
PO+7]%F - BB ES RN REBEE
EtaB2BMm R TRNELERE  KEZ
BERBEFRNER  BREIFAI L
THNEBEEALRRREHAR - £ H
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financial crisis and the global financial tsunami. Our strategy for
dealing with uncertainties, over the decades, is best demonstrated
by our perseverance to rise to the occasion in face of adversity.
Undaunted by short term ups and downs, we have taken a
long term vision to continue investing in strategic areas which
would enhance our competitive edge. Attesting to this are the
two central food processing centres we have built in Hong Kong
and Mainland China with enhanced production capacity. Apart
from providing a dependable logistics backup, the centres have
enabled us to better monitor our food quality, safety and hygiene.

Otherthan the visionary strategy in turning crisis into opportunities,
we pride ourselves in having the agility to respond to the
changing needs of society. The Group's evolution from a single-
brand, single-location operation into one with multiple locations
and multiple brands shows that we have adapted effectively to
evolving market and consumer trends. This could not have been
achieved without the entrepreneurial zeal of our past and present
management who has a firm commitment to brand building,
business development and management excellence. | would
like to take this opportunity to thank all the people who have
embraced this visionary strategy and accompanied me over the
years in this fulfilling voyage.

BEETFREEEETAPANAR - 5
BREBEMNBESOLHMD L - RMBERE
MRS BEREHOER HEZIRE
ERAREHF HIWBERRE - RAOEFE
EAEZOMETRERTLEERS
ERER RO T - th M Ay OB fE
—fEARI SEm IR R B 0 EA BTN
ERRWER T2 MFEKF -

SEREHEBESEEBNRIILERK
Sh - MeE R AL S TEH N ENFTE -
BB -—"XE—mE - BE-HN D
X O BRR-HEHABZEME  ZHENR
ZEMENER  BRRMAKIDERTS
FHEBERENEE - KENKHEHEBE
EEERREEEENCERES B
B mhE - REGLETEEER - KA
FIFTE S S BIRkE EHFRRITHRBHE
FRNTHAEREBRRSORES  &X

708 70N

Living Legacy
X RV E A

Our mission now is to preserve the living legacy of Café de
Coral and take it powerfully into the future. To do so, we must
continually rejuvenate our brand image and reinvent our product
offerings and services to ensure everything we undertake is attuned
to the times. Although we have mapped out our future roadmap
under the current 5-year growth plan, | believe our organisational
structure must remain flexible and streamlined enough to adapt to
any future initiative introduced by the Group. The rapidly changing
landscape in the food and beverage industry requires agility in
execution and astuteness in judgment.

e (Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2015
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For our organisation to stay agile and nimble, we have also
turned our strategic attention towards management succession
planning. A number of our senior management executives are
due for retirement, following their long service spans with the
Group. We have started recruiting externally for the right talents
and promoting deserving candidates from within to prepare for a
smooth transition. With this exercise underway, our management
ranks will be rejuvenated as the baton is passed to the new
generation of management. This would allow our management in
having the flexibility to respond to foreseen changes and capture
business opportunities, swiftly and efficiently.

Finally, I would like to extend my sincerest thanks to everyone who
has been a partner in this challenging but ultimately rewarding
voyage, especially my fellow Directors for the valuable input they
have offered along the way. This, together with the dedication and
hard work of all our staff, have certainly made my journey in Café
de Coral all the more cherishable.

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2015

AP T SRS M 0 B R IR R T AE
MR SENER SEEEAES T
ZHEEERFZFLHERKRFER - 3
EREGEENREBEATMALEARRES
MBI  UHRESIRNRZE - RESD
EEAGFERAREARBETH —RERE
B SEHERERBRSEH REEEE
EHEREMRAEMSEE  MEHK -
ELERA @ E

BRi%  ANAERPTE MR R E 8 1t 7T bk
B EnEMBERENE —BHEBUARD
HE  BRHAEFTRLA—EURGTERN
BER - MEMBREEFEMTHHENMEA
BAACARLEEENKIEERDE -

E:1
R

&8 —E—HFAA-+=H
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Business Highlights

EFRE

The Group achieved solid results in FY 2014/2015 with revenue
rose by 7.8% to HK$7.36 billion and profit attributable to
shareholders increased 1.0% to HK$587 million.

The Group performed well and maintained a strong growth
base in all our key markets. Our Hong Kong quick service
restaurants and institutional catering business continued to
outperform the market.

Under the Group’s long-term growth plan, we also made a
strategic leap in other market segments. Together, we continue
to build a robust platform to support the sustainable business
and organisational growth.

A final dividend of HK61 cents per share (2014: HK51 cents) is

SER_ZT—N/ T -LWRFE
BISREXE  2XBERT 8% &
tH=FEARTEET  BREE SN
M.0%  ERENTLEESET -

SEHEEIEMSRART  LFRFR
REOIERER  FEERIEBERE
BRAERNSE -

EEBEREZHRET - ROATFKREME
hREMTS - RS RAFEEZL
BIEFE AR FERS A
FE R o

EEKERPRE ZB61E U

recommended, with a total dividend payout ratio of 77.3% for (ZF —mF :6518Wl) 2548
the year. IKEERTT.3% °
Financial Growth net profit & Earnings per Share Growth
52 -
IR R BAREREFIER
H 7% 4
600 1ol 102 1.10
- 0.94 - b
0.93 0.93
550 — -
500 081 Of4/L/L—L o
- : — 0.90
450 — OZ///./ 81 87 g0 O
T 400 - Ofg/ 19 23 N —o0n0 3
g 350 — Ofo/ 477 ' % B
T 147 — 060 £ 3
£ ® 300 - 23 0.50 =z
= — e
BE - , 25
3 ® o200 - 32 T040 o h
150 — 030 £
100 — -o02 "
50 — —0.10
0 0
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Net Profit —®— Earnings per Share
aAl BREF
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CAFE DE CORAL

®
CAFE DE CORAL GROUP STRATEGIC BUSINESSES

AREREREMER

Hong Kong Fast Casual &
Casual Dining

Hong Kong QSR &
Institutional Catering

BRREAE R AKFEER

Chinese Cuisine Café de Coral

FRER R
Shanghai Lao Lao Lane Noodles
=327 BB Super Super Congee &
. . . Noodles
Mixian Sense Mixian Site ok
KRR Rige
Asia Pacific Catering
Western Cuisine PEHE
BERXER
The Spaghetti House Oliver’s Super

Luncheon Star

BBE Sandwiches ENEE
PizzaStage spaghetti 360°
Cooking MaMa 360 ME.N.U 360° Just About Food
Café 360 Little Onion
NER Ichigyo Sushi
espressamente illy MIX —REH

Korean Cuisine

BAxR

THE CUP

Sales Distribution
HED

(For the year ended 31 March 2015)
(BEZZ—HE=A=1+—HILEE)

2.1%

. Hong Kong QSR & Institutional Catering
ERRRERRMERR

[l Hong Kong Fast Casual & Casual Dining
BB RIRIRE R AR E R

[ Mainland China
B A

Food Processing & Distribution

RYERRD

BRERERREBERE

Mainland China

R El At

Corporate Offices

Y

Café de Coral
KRG

Asia Pacific Catering Food Processing

ZERUNER & Distribution
RUERK S
The Spaghetti House
EBE Scanfoods
tBERER
Hong Kong

Central Food
Processing Centre
&8
R ERHL

Mainland China
Central Food
Processing Centre
FRE A it
AR ESH

Total Operating Units
EEBENEY

(As of 31 March 2015)
(BEZZ—-RF¥=A=+—H)

- 461

mmm No. of new shops (Since 1 April 2014) .48
FHEHE (B2 —WFENA—A) °

300 I;g: 273
. New shops: 22

250 g
200

Total: 126
150 FEE 2

New shops: 13
100 Total: 62 wiE
1B
New shops: 13
20 r i

Hong Kong QSR & Hong Kong Fast Causal & Mainland
Institutional Catering Causal Dining China
BHRERER B BPURIRE FREIR it
RIEESRE ENOEA
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CEO’s Report

BHREHITE RS

It is my pleasure to present you with our Company’s results
for the FY 2014/2015 as well as our other achievements during
this period.

Guided by our sustainability framework, we implemented
the Café de Coral Group’s comprehensive long-term strategic
plan and action programme over the course of the year.
Our objective with this exercise is to continue growing our
business in the Group’s key markets and strengthen our
operations and organisation in a systematic and disciplined
manner. This is part of our commitment to building an even
stronger platform in support of sustainable business and
organisational growth.

AANBUBRARERAEBR =T -0/
—E-AMHFEZEEAREMAEEAR
Bo

EBE—F  ARKLEERBEEFER
BROER - HERT2H  RENKBKETE
RERAEBITE  BENRERSHERES
SEEIETSEREBNER Al
BMNWEERAS - KPR EBERKRN
FE - UEREEBRASNITHERR

Highlights of the Year
FEFEEHN

I am delighted to report that the Group achieved satisfactory results
despite the challenges we faced during the financial year. The
Group’s revenue (excluding discontinued operations) grew
7.8% to HK$7,356 million, and profit attributable to shareholders
increased 1% to HK$587 million. FY 2014/2015 earnings per share
rose to HK$1.02, and the payment of a final dividend of HK61
cents per share to shareholders for the financial year ended 31
March 2015 has been recommended.

2014/2015 saw the launch of the Group’s current 5-year strategic
growth plan. This is a holistic roadmap we crafted to achieve
sustainable business growth and build a robust infrastructure for
the Group. During the year, various programmes and projects
were rolled out systematically to expand our leading brands,
develop new concepts and strengthen our business platform and
operations.

10 e Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2015
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Key highlights of the year include the following:

¢ Solid QSR and institutional catering business performance

in Hong Kong. Our Hong Kong quick service restaurants (QSR)
and institutional catering business outperformed the market to
achieve a 10% increase in revenue growth to HK$5,260 million
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2015.

Strategic leap in the fast casual segment. During the year,
we expanded the Group’s fast casual portfolio. We scaled up
our home-grown concepts Shanghai Lao Lao and Mixian
Sense and signed on popular Korean and Japanese brands, all
of which brought new impetus and fuelled the growth of the
fast casual segment in our business.

Disposal of non-core businesses. In recognition of the need to
better utilise our resources for achieving long-term growth, the
Company disposed of its Manchu WOK business and joint venture
interests in the Hong Kong 85°C bakery business during the year.

FRBLATERER :

s ERERNMBEREBRERRE  &E

EEZENERMEBERRBRABTS
B BE_T-—RAF=A=T—HIH
TZEAR WAERI0%ER+ B
NTEAT -

EHMEARREABRETS - REEF
ERE—-TIHRRERBRRNES - &
o B Al i BB MORREE MR - I
HEEIBONBELARNREAE RE
BEKBRERE ENBERTIANER
#}h e

HEFRLEYK  SBREFERNLET
Manchu WOKZ &85 CRE BB - &
SRS LR UWEIFhEFREIRIA
ERRERIER -
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e A stronger sustainability platform. Major progress was
made in the Group’s sustainability programme during the fiscal
year, including ISO 22000 certification for our new Central Food
Processing Centre in Tai Po shortly after it commenced operation.
In addition, we launched the Group’s master CSR programme
“Café de Coral Twinkle Action” in April 2015, signifying our
concerted efforts to serve and engage the community within
the Group's clearly-defined CSR parameters.

¢ Implementation of the Group’s succession and talent
plans. We continued to implement the Group's long-term talent
development and succession plans during the review period. We
made key appointments and promotions across the different
corporate functions and business operations, while our young
and vibrant senior management team, comprising incumbent
and new managers, committed themselves to achieve more in
the upcoming year.

Together with this Annual Report for 2015, | would also like to
present to you the Group’s second Sustainability Report, which
outlines the Group’s sustainability initiatives during the review
period. In the report, we describe the specific key areas of our
long-term sustainability programme, the progress made in this
programme, and our future enhancement targets and projects.

s FRENTNBERRETS  SEMNUFE
BRAZTCUHVBRFEEEANER -
BIEEEBERNBEIENPRERPLE
AR R AEEIZISO 22000527 © FIFF
E_Z—hAFNARE TSEECEMLEER
Tt 8 [AREBRTE | - ZnZEHM
ERERENMHNCELSRETES - B
B HEEMERTE -

cHITERBEARATRRTS  £SHE

FEANBBRATRENDAT ER MEA
itEl o BEEBREMEEEUHETE
WEEEmRET SBEAFENER
AAOMEREK - HERSE  KREH
HERFERELS -

AANERSHEZRXREBR T —AFHNMA
B RARELRMAE_OHAFERR
BE EREFEASENAHEERE
B -BREHIEEREAFEERAEN
TE2HEB FEANERER  ARKK
RATIENBEZENETS -

Driving Growth
EEREER

The key to the success of the Café de Coral Group lies in our
determination to constantly review and reflect on the achievements
we have made and the challenges we have encountered since
opening our first shop in 1969. Through this process, we ensure
that our objectives and strategies always remain relevant to our key
markets and effective for our business and organisational growth.
In mapping out the Group's future direction, we place as much
emphasis on building a sustainable infrastructure as achieving our
demanding business targets.

12 e Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2015
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Expanding in the QSR and Institutional Catering Market

The QSR and institutional catering sectors in Hong Kong saw a
steady decline in volume over the past years, mainly attributable
to the continuous rise in rental, labour and raw material costs. As
a result of the negative volume growth in these sectors, market
competition has further intensified. However, this reality in the
industry has provided us with good opportunities for growing our
business and capturing a larger market share. We will continue to
reinforce our production capacity, scale and outlet network while
ensuring the right mix of business models to hone our competitive
edge and build an even stronger platform for expansion.

Leveraging on our solid
foundation and the success
of our brands in various sub-
segments of the QSR market,
our Group is poised to grow
the breadth and depth of
our business. Café de Coral
fast food and Super Super

Congee & Noodles are e
¢

among the leading QSR
brands in Hong Kong with
sizeable market shares. Now
considered household names,
these brands have won the
trust and support of our
customers in Hong Kong.
In the institutional catering
sector, our Asia Pacific
Catering and Luncheon
Star brands have been
expanding as we constantly
take our products and service
to the next level and explore
new business opportunities
and income streams.

New brands and dining concepts have been created to further
increase our market share in the QSR sector. These include our
new brands, Just About Food and C. Express, which feature
innovative business models designed to offer faster high quality
service based on our high space and labour efficiency.

iR X AR

TRERREBENR TS

EBRERF  BHRNES  ATRERMEAR
FEL  BEERRLEEBERT S TEK
o EMBRENERT > BFEOBA -
A - EMISAR N EAE R PIER E 5 RIE N
MSENENFRE  BMSBRELRLEE
N REMD ERG  FARBEREANEE
B AR E ) ZR - EERENE
B¥a -

BRERRERTHNIE
EIERE - AR miEE
FEBMADTIHF KL
S EHGE — FBAE S
ERRE - RRERER
—REETERRMEHE
BmhE SAHBE—ENm
BN WERSRELE
MM - BERENEER
XF - ERBRRMIH T
| REREMENFEND
B TR A Ean MRS - R
AT A M IARR - %
I ERR -

SEEIFmE REREDS  WE—FE
ARBEMEERRERTISHNMEE - KEHELT
Just About Food#C. ExpressFi{ET A% -
ZREHTEERANRE - B EKE
AR ERENSE =R -
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Scaling up Our Fast Casual Portfolio

In carrying out the Group’s plan for long-term growth, we
continued to broaden our base in the fast casual sector and seize
the enormous business opportunities in this lucrative market. Our
solid foundation in both the QSR and casual dining segments will
support our further expansion into the fast casual sector.

We are also riding on our extensive experience in the full-service
casual dining segment through our leading brand, The Spaghetti
House, to launch many exciting new concepts. Shanghai Lao Lao
and Mixian Sense are just two recent examples of our new home-
grown models featuring simple menus, a smaller footprint, and
young lifestyle approach. We continue to rejuvenate the Oliver's
Super Sandwiches brand and concept to ensure it stays relevant
to our diverse customer groups.

Our collaboration with well-known Japanese and Korean partners
has also enabled us to enrich our fast casual portfolio. The recent
opening of THE CUP, a Korean lifestyle fast casual chain, in Hong
Kong as well as the forthcoming Japanese donburiand pasta chains
will further expand the Group’s presence in the fast casual sector.

Mainland China as a Growth Engine

The F&B marketin Mainland Chinais highly dynamicand competitive.
Players from all over the world are eyeing on this lucrative market.
That being said, the rapid change of business environment and
consumer habits in this fast-growing industry is a constant challenge
for business operators in the country. The Café de Coral Group
has a long-standing presence in the Mainland and has gained a

14 e (Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2015
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good understanding of the country’s business environment and
consumer preference. This has helped us formulate the effective
business strategies for the Group in capturing opportunities and
unleashing our potential in the country.

Setting the right geographical strategy is a crucial theme in our long-
term growth plans for the Mainland. By taking advantage of our
similarities in culture and language as well as our close proximity to
Guangdong, the Group is well positioned to branch out in the cities
of this province. Its vast population and economic maturity provide
the Café de Coral Group with ample opportunities for business
expansion, and we are
committed to growing
our leading chains and
to capturing a larger
share of this market
with new concepts and
exciting brands.

We believe our
optimism in the
Mainland market is well
founded. According
to a comprehensive
customer survey
that Café de Coral
recently commissioned,
our brand is well
received by Mainland
consumers. The survey
findings enlightened us
on how to fine tune our business model and product offering in
order to adapt to the Mainland market better. We will also closely
watch market trends in this evolving market, and have our team
constantly adjust the pace of our shop openings in the country.
In the Group's 5-year plan, we have set concrete targets to grow
our network in Guangdong Province at the right pace and with
the right focus and we will introduce new brands and concepts to
capture opportunities in our key business segments. Our efforts
in building a more robust production platform and strengthening
our team over the past years will further support our expansion
strategies.

Café de Coral Group’s Mainland Headquaters and Central Food Processing Centre
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Robust Infrastructure and Platform

We continue to spearhead improvement measures based on the key
pillars of our platform — total customer satisfaction, inclusive supply
chain management, robust production processes, and centralised
quality assurance. Specific targets and concrete actions have also
been set to measure our performance and efficiency. Together,
these long-term initiatives will complete our roadmap for sustainable
growth and contribute to the on-going health of the Group.

Enhancing the effectiveness and efficiency of our business is key in
supporting the Group’s growth. We will also make a continuous
effort to upgrade our information technology across our operations
and corporate management — from our central food processing
systems and branch management programmes to our payment
gateway.

A Stronger and More Vibrant Team

In addition to the significant investments we have made to upgrade
our information technology and strengthen the systems that
support our business, we have not forgotten the importance of a
strong and vibrant team.

Our 17,418 employees (as of 31 March 2015) are the backbone
of the Café de Coral Group. Retaining good people and recruiting
talent with the right skillsets remain one of the Company’s top
priorities. To that end, we ensure our staff remuneration and
benefits packages are competitive and promote work-life balance as
part of our corporate culture. Remuneration for our staff and Board
of Directors is generally structured with reference to the market,
individual experience, qualifications, duties, and responsibilities.
During the year, we broadened the scope of the Company’s long-
term incentive programmes by introducing a stock award scheme
on top of our existing share option programme, profit-sharing,
and other performance incentives. During the year, the Company
awarded shares to both top and middle management executives.

To meet the continuing challenges of labour shortages and talent
scarcity, the Group has developed a well-structured internal
promotion programme, comprehensive training and development
scheme, and proactive talent retention and acquisition initiatives.
Through our talent development and training programmes, our
people are able to acquire and maintain the relevant skillsets
needed to support the demanding growth targets of the Group. At
the same time, we continue to explore automation in certain areas
of our production process in order to enhance workplace safety.
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The Group's long-term succession programme across our corporate
functions and business operations ensures the stability and diversity
of our team. Promoting experienced managers and staff and
recruiting new talent with different skillsets and new ideas enable us
to build a strong and vibrant team who live the Café de Coral Group's
values and culture through mentorship and knowledge transfer.

In the Group’s second Sustainability Report, we discuss at length
the Company’s comprehensive talent development and retention
initiatives as well as the progress we have made in these areas.
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Business Review and Direction
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Hong Kong Operations

The overall F&B industry in Hong Kong recorded moderate growth in
2014. Against this background, | am pleased to report that despite
the challenging business environment and weakening consumer
confidence, our Hong Kong business results outperformed
the market and achieved a 10% increase in revenue growth to
HK$6,124 million for the 12 months ended 31 March 2015. Our
Hong Kong operations continued to be the top contributor to
the Company’s results, taking up approximately 83% of the total
revenue of continuing operations in FY 2014/2015.

This solid performance was the result of the team’s uncompromising
dedication to quality and service, our robust and efficient
procurement and supply chain, and the unfailing trust and support
of our customers. All of these are pillars of the Café de Coral
Group's success and have been built on the many, many years
of hard work of our people. Our ability to overcome challenges
is due to the Group’s long-term sustainability initiatives and their
implementation by our disciplined team.

During the year, sales from comparable stores of Café de Coral
fast food and Super Super Congee & Noodles increased by
approximately 9% and 6% respectively over the previous year,
despite the challenging environment. Café de Coral continued to
offer quality meals with great variety at affordable prices to our
customers. The Super Super Congee & Noodles chain branched
out into more commercial and residential hubs. We will also
continue to expand our network beyond the current 156 Café de
Coral fast food outlets and 35 Super Super Congee & Noodles
shops (as of 31 March 2015).
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It is equally encouraging to see that our institutional catering
businesses continued to increase their market share. Having
gained the trust and support of our corporate clients, Asia Pacific
Catering maintained its market-leading position. During the year,
we successfully signed on new clients and renewed a number of
major contracts. As a result, our institutional catering arm was
operating in over 50 locations (as of 31 March 2015) and continued
making a positive contribution to the Group’s performance. We
also took pride in Luncheon Star’s reputation as the biggest
provider of high quality school lunches in Hong Kong for the 10th
consecutive year. A total of 22 schools (as of 31 March 2015) that
commission our service received accreditation in the EatSmart
School Accreditation Scheme (ESAS) (Healthy Lunch). Supported by
its ISO 22000 certified production and distribution operation, our
school lunch supply business offers quality and hygiene assurance
at every stage of food production and delivery to schoolchildren.
During the year, Luncheon Star achieved a record high with a
daily average of over 80,000 meals prepared.

In accordance with the Group’s business plan, we will further
strengthen our position in the fast casual and casual dining sectors.
While The Spaghetti House and spaghetti 360° chains remain
our leading western casual dining concepts, our younger Mixian
Sense and Shanghai Lao Lao home-grown brands have been
gaining popularity and expanding their networks. With 19 shops
(asof 31 March 2015), the Oliver's Super Sandwiches restaurants
continued to record encouraging growth during the year. The team
made a strong effort to enrich the Group’s fast casual restaurant
portfolio and concluded new co-operation arrangements with well-
known Japanese and Korean brand owners. In the near future, we
will be introducing these exciting new concepts that we believe will
be successful in capturing emerging business opportunities.

Mainland China Operations

Growth in the overall catering industry in the Mainland continued
to slow down during the year, partly due to lower spending on
business-related dining and receptions. This affected not only high-
end restaurants but also other segments in the country’s weakening
dining industry. In face of the business environment and market
trend, we had adjusted our shop-opening strategy and pace
during the year. However, operating costs for our Mainland China
business, especially those for rental and labour, have been rising
substantially over the past years. These combined have affected the
profitability of our business operation in the Mainland.

18 o (Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2015

SERGERBRMOEBREMSHEEE
BX RERBBIGERFHEAEY
B BEBHREEN - HPIEFEAKD
BEFEF TESZEXTEEZFELH B
—E-RAF=ZA=+—HAXR 50 @
B BEASEMERKRIATRER -
EEETHENFEBEEFTTRAEEE
BRARSERTREHRERN SARZE BHEZ
T-RAFE=ZA=+—H  BZiE 22 BHEM
RETFENERES (2 [2) 2RRBE:
2] WRF/ - BHFENEEMEEHIISG
ISO 22000 & - HAEZETEEXIEEN
F—EARFIREREREERE - FER
FAFESATHTEHEERARE 5
i 80,000 1 ©

BESEMNERE - BMBE—FPZER
RRIKEAIKBEE R TSR - BRE R
spaghetti 360° &£ & R H MR IKEE
FREBERE  MMERFEN S RE
KRN BB EARASZEREINR
B B OIERE D 5 #4% - Oliver's Super
Sandwiches 5 190 JE (HEZ=-Z—*h
F=A=+—H)  EFERHESAEER
#BE - BB KRRREERER - &
H AT B AN % fr hE K& 1B % - BP9
ERHRNIEE L BRS| DRI SR HE
WF{EE T BeA I E i o

o B8] P 3tk S 8

TEABEBEREXEREFERFTEN
& B ERNAMAERERERD - ET
B EmREGRERNE - YA A
SRS EMBERTHERTE - ENEH
RIFMTIHEBE - F AP EFE R
K o AW - PEAMEFNLERE - L
HREESREIRA  REBFEFREE L
Ttk FERRBEBHEERMETNBNE
REE -



Despite the positive comparable sales growth of 3% achieved
by our 100-outlet South China Café de Coral chain, the total
revenue level of our business operations in Mainland China was
flat compared with the previous financial year, largely due to the
adjusted shop-opening pace. The Spaghetti House experienced
a setback in its performance due to declining consumer spending
in the mid-priced dining sector. Overall results of the Eastern
China chain were also affected in the intensely competitive market
environment.

Our food processing centre in Guangdong continues to play a
pivotal role in the Group’s business expansion in China. The team
focused on upgrading the centre’s systems and practices as well
as increasing production volume. During the year, we also worked
on the improvement and expansion of our production centre in
Dongguan, China. This centre is currently producing our house
brand Viking Boats ham and sausages, which are widely distributed
to external parties throughout Hong Kong and Mainland China.

North American Operations

As announced by the Company on 24 October 2014 and
19 December 2014, the Company disposed of its operating
and franchising assets in Manchu WOK, SenseAsian and
Wasabi Grill and Noodle restaurants in North America for an
aggregate consideration of CAD7,900,000 (approximately
HK$53,000,000). Following the completion of the disposal in
December 2014, the Group ceased its entire operation in North
America. The disposal, being a part of our current growth
strategy, enables the team to focus on our core businesses
in Hong Kong and Mainland China and to utilise the Group's
resources for expansion in the Group’s core business in our
key markets.

The Company recorded a loss of approximately HK$4,700,000
from the disposal. The proceeds from the disposal will be used
as general working capital of the Group.
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Financial Overview

g JEI -

The Group's financial position for the FY 2014/2015 remained
healthy. As of 31 March 2015, the Group recorded net cash of
approximately HK$1,057 million, with HK$476 million in available
banking facilities. The Group had no external borrowing (31 March
2014 nil) and nil gearing (31 March 2014: nil). There has been no
material change in contingent liabilities or charge on assets since
31 March 2015.

As of 31 March 2015, the Company provided guarantees of
approximately HK$476 million (31 March 2014: HK$536 million) to
financial institutions in connection with banking facilities granted
to its subsidiaries.

With regard to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group earned
revenue and incurred costs and expenses mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, while those of our Mainland China and North
American business were in Renminbi, USD, and Canadian dollars
respectively. Foreign currency exposure did not pose a significant
risk for the Group. We will, however, remain vigilant and closely
monitor our exposure to movements in relevant currencies.
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Outlook

Al

All of us at the Café de Coral Group look forward to another exciting
year in 2015/2016 as we work diligently to take advantage of the
opportunities that lie before us. However, the macroeconomic
environment remains a concern, owing to economic conditions in
Hong Kong and the uncertainties of the business environment in
Mainland China. High rental rates, rising raw material costs, and the
persistent labour shortage all remain challenges for our business and
operation. Nevertheless, we are confident that the solid foundation
supporting our business and the robust infrastructure we have
built under the Group’s sustainability initiatives in the past years
will enable us to continue our near-term business development
and 5-year growth plans. Our steady and prudent shop-opening
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programme for both our leading brands and our younger concepts
will continue. With the new ventures we have taken on, we will
seize the most opportune time to expand in our key markets.

Hong Kong and Guangdong Province remain the Group's
strongest profit sectors. With a solid infrastructure in place, we
will endeavour to capture more market share in Hong Kong.
Simultaneously, we hope to spearhead greater development and
expansion in Guangdong Province and build on the ample business
opportunities in this increasingly dynamic and growing market.
We will also continue to drive synergies between our Hong Kong
and Mainland China operations so as to create a platform for
the Group'’s sustainable growth. The Group will also continue to
explore business development opportunities through organic and
inorganic growth.

In the new financial year, the young and vibrant senior management
team we have established under our long-term succession plan will
play a major role in helping us to accomplish the Group’s growth
objectives.
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Appreciation

€

Once again, I would like to thank the Board for their guidance and
the management team and all our staff for their commitment and
dedication, without which we could not have overcome the many
expected and unforeseen challenges during the year. | would also
like to express my sincere gratitude to our customers, business
partners and shareholders whose support has been the driving
force behind the team'’s determination to achieve "A Hundred
Points of Excellence” and sustain growth for a brighter future for
the Café de Coral Group.

Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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Directors and Senior Management

EERESHREEAE

Chairman

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 63, is the Chairman
of the Group. Mr. Chan joined the Group in 1984 and was
appointed as a Director of the Group in 1988. He led the
Group as Managing Director from 1989 to 1997 and as the
Executive Chairman from 1997 to 2012. Mr. Chan has been
serving as the Chairman of the Board in the capacity of a
Non-executive Director since April 2012. Having worked as a
professional town planner for various Government bodies in
Hong Kong and Canada, he has considerable experience in
planning and management. He holds a Degree in Sociology
and Political Science, a Master’s Degree in City Planning from
the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate
Degree in Business Administration, and an Honorary Fellow
from Lingnan University. He is also a member of the Political
Consultative Committee of Nanshan District, Shenzhen in the
People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Chan is currently the General Committee Member of the
Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, Advisor of the Quality
Tourism Services Association, a Full member of the Canadian
and the Hong Kong Institute of Planners, and a Fellow of
the Chartered Institute of Marketing. He is also the Honorary
Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and the
Chairman of the Business Enterprise Management Centre of
the Hong Kong Management Association. Mr. Chan is also
appointed by the HKSAR Government as a member of the
Business Facilitation Advisory Committee of the Financial
Secretary’s Office and a member of Task Force on Promotion
of Vocational Education.

In past years, Mr. Chan was personally bestowed with the “The
Stars of Asia Awards”, the “Executive of the Year Awards”,
the “Bauhinia Cup Outstanding Entrepreneur Awards”, the
"Directors of the Year Awards”, the Honoree, Beta Gamma
Sigma of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and "Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year”.
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Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-executive director
of Starlite Holdings Limited, Kingboard Laminates Holdings
Limited, Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited and Tse Sui Luen
Jewellery (International) Limited and a non-executive director
of Tao Heung Holdings Limited. He is also a member of
Sustainability Advisory Committee of The Link Real Estate
Investment Trust. All of these companies are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Chan is a relative of Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms. Lo Pik
Ling, Anita, Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr. Lo Ming Shing,
lan, all of whom are Directors of the Company.

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, aged 59, is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group and a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Lo joined the Group in 1982 and has been an
Executive Director since 1990. He was the Managing Director
of the Group from December 1997 to March 2012 and was
appointed the Chief Executive Officer on 1 April 2012. Mr.
Lo holds a Master’s Degree in Chemical Engineering from
Stanford University.

Mr. Lo is the brother of Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita, a Director of
the Company. He is also a relative of Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael, Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan,
all of whom are Directors of the Company.

Executive Directors

Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita, aged 62, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 1990. Ms. Lo joined the
Group in 1982. She is currently responsible for overseeing
the business development of fast food, institutional catering,
school catering and other quick service restaurant business of
Hong Kong region. She holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Social
Sciences from the University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Lo is the sister of Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, a Director
of the Company. Ms. Lo is also a relative of Mr. Chan Yue
Kwong, Michael, Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr. Lo Ming
Shing, lan, all of whom are Directors of the Company.
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Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter, aged 53, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 1998. Mr. Lo joined the
Company in 1996 and is currently the Managing Director of
the Group. He oversees the quick service restaurant business
of Mainland China, and the casual dining business as well as
branch and property development of the Group in both Hong
Kong and Mainland China. He holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Electronic Engineering & Physics from the Loughborough
University of Technology, a Master’s Degree in Medical Physics
from the University of Surrey, a Doctorate’s Degree in Medical
Physics from the University of London and an Honorary Fellow
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lo is a relative of Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Lo
Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita and Mr. Lo Ming
Shing, lan, all of whom are Directors of the Company. He is
a director of Wandels Investment Limited, Verdant Success
Holdings Limited and Sky Bright International Limited, each of
which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company
under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan, aged 41, has been a Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2010 and is a member of
the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lo is a director of Property
Exchange Services Limited (“PES"). Prior to joining PES,
he served as Advisor (Special Projects) and Manager (Food
Manufacturing) of the Group during the period from November
2003 to June 2009. Mr. Lo holds a Bachelor’'s Degree of Arts,
specialist in Economics from University of Toronto and an
Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lo is the son of Mr. Lo Hoi Chun who is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is also a relative of Mr. Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms. Lo Pik
Ling, Anita and Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter, all of whom are
Directors of the Company.
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Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel, aged 61, joined the Group in
1984 and has been a Non-executive Director of the Company
since 1997. Mr. Hui holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Social
Sciences from the University of Hong Kong and a Master's
Degree in Business Administration from the Brunel University
in the United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael, J.P, aged 57, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
1994 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is a Director and Senior Vice-President of
Henderson (China) Investment Company Limited. Mr. Choi
has been in the real estate industry for over 34 years with
extensive knowledge and experience in the real estate markets
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Currently, he is a member
of Subsidised Housing Committee of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority, the Vice-President of the Hong Kong Real Property
Federation, the Vice President of the Hong Kong Institute of
Real Estate Administrators, a member of School of Business
Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Baptist University and a
member of the Advisory Board on Business Studies of the
Lingnan University. Mr. Choi graduated from the Business
Management Department of the Hong Kong Baptist College
and obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from the University of East Asia, Macau.
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Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey, aged 65, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
1994 and is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Li is Chairman of IAM Holdings (Hong
Kong) Limited, a Hong Kong-based investment firm, and has
extensive experience in the fields of investment banking,
merchant banking and capital markets. He is a non-executive
director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, and an independent
non-executive director of China Everbright International
Limited, Kunlun Energy Company Limited, Kowloon
Development Company Limited, Pokfulam Development
Company Limited and Tai Ping Carpets International Limited.
The shares of all these companies are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Li is also a
non-independent non-executive director of AFFIN Bank Berhad.
Mr. Li has a Master's Degree in Business Administration from
Columbia University and a Bachelor’s Degree of Science in Civil
Engineering from Brown University.

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.B.S., J.P., aged 59, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in July 2004 and is a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Kwok is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong,
and is a Partner of Kwok Yih & Chan, Solicitors. Mr. Kwok is
also qualified to practise as a solicitor in Australia, England
and Wales and Singapore. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
CPA Australia and a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Kwok graduated from
the University of Sydney, Australia with Bachelor’'s Degrees in
Economics and Laws and a Master's Degree in Laws. He also
obtained the Advanced Management Programme Diploma
from the Harvard Business School.
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Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert, aged 64, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director in January 2013 and is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Au is the Chairman
of BDO Limited, the Hong Kong member firm of BDO
International Limited. He has more than 30 years of experience
in the accountancy profession. He was the President of
the Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants from December 2007 to December 2008. He
is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and a member of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Au is currently a non-executive
director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, member of the
Remuneration Committee, Investment Committee and Budget
Committee of The Securities and Futures Commission, the
Chairman of the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee
and a member of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of
the Independent Commission Against Corruption. He is also a
member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority, and a member
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Hong Kong
Productivity Council. He also serves as an independent non-
executive director of the Hongkong International Theme Parks
Limited and Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Coalition of
Professional Services Limited.

Senior Management

Ms. Lau Lee Fong, Rosa, aged 60, joined the Group in
1979 and is currently the Senior General Manager (Specialty
& Casual Dining) of the Group. Ms. Lau is responsible for the
development and management of specialty restaurants in Hong
Kong and Mainland China and the new casual dining business.
Ms. Lau holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from the University of East Asia, Macau and a Master’s Degree
of Science in Hotel & Tourism Management from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Lau is currently a member of
the Hotel & Catering International Management Association
(U.K.).
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Ms. Kwok Yee Ying, Beatrice, aged 52, joined the Group in
September 2013 and is currently the General Manager (South
China Fast Food) of the Group. Ms. Kwok is responsible for the
overall oversight of the operations and business development
of fast food business and the Central Food Processing Centre
in South China, as well as business support functions of the
region. Ms. Kwok holds a Bachelor's Degree in Employment
Relations from University of Toronto in Canada. She has
extensive experience in corporate operation, marketing and
management in catering industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Kwok held senior management positions with a leading
international catering group.

Mr. Lim Hung Chun, Mike, aged 51, joined the Group
in January 2011 as Chief Financial Officer. With over 26
years' experience in general management, corporate finance
and financial control all gained from top management
positions held in renowned corporations and firms, Mr. Lim is
responsible for the overall oversight of the Group’s financial
planning and strategy as well as headquarters management.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lim held various general
management positions and directorships in listed and private
conglomerates with operations spanning key international
markets since 1990. Mr. Lim holds an Executive Master of
Business Administration Degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) ARREER(ESERDAREEER NGRS

and management aspire to a high standard of corporate RKFEZEEER U —BESNEHEET
governance and constantly strive for a responsible and value- RLABIREEREENERE  EHRERIE

driven management focusing on safeguarding and enhancing AARRNTRR(TRE D ERRIEEEE - N
interest and value of the shareholders of the Company (the RAEBE 2 RIRAIFEEE -
“Shareholders”) as well as the long-term sustainability of the

Group.
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Compliance with Corporate Governance
Code

The Group’s corporate governance framework and practices
adhere to the principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”). For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
complied with all code provisions of the CG Code and adopted
the recommended best practices of the CG Code insofar as
they are relevant and practicable.

Key practices under the Group’s corporate governance
framework are set out in this report.

Corporate Governance Enhancement

The Board continuously reviews and improves the Group's
governance standard. The Board, assisted by management,
also cultivates a transparent and ethical corporate culture. Key
enhancement initiatives undertaken during the year include the
following:

e A board evaluation program had been conducted. As
a result of the evaluation, areas of improvement were
identified and implemented to further strengthen the
governance and practices of the Board.

e  The Board has embarked on a risk management and
internal control enhancement project whereby external
consultant has been engaged to conduct review on the
Group's risk management framework and practices and
to develop an enhancement plan.
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Directors

The Board

The Company is headed by the Board which assumes the
responsibility for leadership and control and be collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board
currently comprises ten members, including three Executive
Directors, three Non-executive Directors and four Independent
Non-executive Directors (collectively, the “Directors”) as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan

Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Biographies, including relationships among members of the
Board are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management”
section on pages 22 to 28 of the Company’s 2015 Annual
Report.

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and expertise contributing to the
successful performance and development of the Group. In
situation where certain areas of expertise/advice are required,
external advisers or consultants shall be engaged to advise the
Directors at the Company’s expenses.
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All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their
duties of care, skill and diligence. Comprehensive directors
and officers liability insurance coverage is in place to
provide protection to the Company, the Directors and senior
management.

The Directors conduct periodically evaluation of the
performance of the Board as a whole. Evaluation results and
areas of improvement are identified to enhance effectiveness
and governance of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong,
Sunny respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
established and set out in the Board Charter.

The Chairman, being a non-executive Director, provides
leadership for the Board and is accountable to the Board
ultimately. The Chairman takes the lead to encourage Directors
to make active contribution to the Board’s affairs and ensure
that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer represents the management of
the Company and is accountable to the Board. His main
responsibilities include overseeing the implementation of
the Group’s strategies, objectives and policies, as well as
monitoring day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses
and operations and the operating and financial results of the
Group’s businesses against plans and budget.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-
executive Directors give the Board the benefit of their skills,
expertise, varied background and experiences. Through active
participation in Board meetings and serving on various Board
Committees, the Non-executive Directors and the Independent
Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment and
make valuable contributions to the effective direction and
strategic decision-making of the Group.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the four Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee has assessed
the independence of each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors based on the guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considered them to be independent.

The Board and Management

The Board Charter adopted by the Board sets out the duties
and powers of the Board, the roles and responsibilities of
Directors, the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer and their respective relationship with management.

The Board is vested with duties and accountability to
Shareholders regarding management of the Group in addition
to those powers and authorities conferred upon it under the
Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The role of the
Board is to provide overall strategic direction for the Group
and effective oversight of management. The Board Charter
sets out a schedule of matters reserved to the Board which
mainly include the following:

Approval of strategic direction and related objectives of
the Group;

e Succession planning, appointment and remuneration of
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and senior management;

e Approval of significant transactions and investments and
major financial matters;

e Ensuring risk management and internal control system of
the Group;

e Approval of Company’'s announcements, circular
and reports, including interim and annual results

announcements and reports; and

e Appointment or removal of external auditor.

ARAREENEBIFATESTSANESE
VMEH 2 FEER - RBZEECREL
MARRIFE3 NGB 2RI FHE TR B
HTEF 2B URRKEEEL

EERKEEE

EEREMCEERERIIEZTRZBE
KED UREFR EFRIFENMBFNT
EZABKETIMESSEREEEZRMIE -

SRARRRL 2 ARARI(T ARIMA DB TES
BEOENMRESN  EEREARAEENE
EHRRETRENRAE BEFERZACH
REAEEERERBEENARAREEEE
cEEXRERIIARBTEZTRARRZE
H - TERETIIEE

o  EMALE TS M NAERE R

e EBEE HEWTELSMEERAEZHE
AEEH S REREM

s BEHUEARGEWREUREIZHHS
I8

e MERAKBZEKREERANIEER

Gl

o FEWMARFZAE - B
PEIREEREAELREmE M

of

B

o RITHERIMNEILEAD o

ARLEBMER AR —2015 FiR » 33



The Board has delegated to the Management Board the
authority to manage the day-to-day affairs of the Group. The
Management Board is headed by the Chief Executive Officer
and its members include all the Executive Directors, the Chief
Financial Officer and such other senior executives of the Group
as nominated by the Chief Executive Officer and agreed by the
Board. When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, clear directions
are given as to the limits of the authority delegated, in
particular, the circumstances where management should report
to the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Group. Principal functions that
are delegated by the Board to the Management Board include
the following:

e Development and implementation of corporate strategies
and objectives;

e Approval of transactions, investments and financial
matters within the limit delegated by the Board;

e Management of day-to-day operations of the Group;

e Development, implementation and management of risk
management and internal control,

e Development of human resources policies and succession
planning of executives; and

e  Ensuring the Board and its Committees are provided
with sufficient and relevant information on a timely
basis in relation to the Group’s business and financial
performance.

The Board reviews its delegation of responsibilities to
management from time to time to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the need of the Group and its business.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules
and the Bye-laws, (i) any Director who is appointed to fill a
casual vacancy is subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment; and (ii) all Directors should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and are eligible for re-election.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company have been appointed for a specific
term subject to retirement by rotation as required by the Bye-
laws and the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Induction & Continuous Development

Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive
induction package to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the operations, business and governance
policies of the Group. In addition, our external legal adviser
meets with the new Director to ensure that he/she is fully
aware of the responsibilities as a director under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements
and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors recognise that continuous professional
development is critical for them to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains relevant. Directors receive from senior
management and the Company Secretary regular updates
and presentations on developments to the Group's business
and changes to the statutory and regulatory requirements to
facilitate the Directors’ discharge of their responsibilities. The
Company organises training and briefing sessions regularly
for the Directors to help them keep abreast with the Group’s
business and operation as well as developments of regulatory
and compliance requirements.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous

ARAHBEF2EINDRB RN 2 FEH

development programmes held by external bodies at the RRIE - BABARQ 77%?)9‘ FrBEEEHA

expense of the Company. All Directors are required to provide

EHRAARABREEE 2EILE - FRE

the Company with their training record on a regular basis. SiFlLsmyamT
Summary of Directors’ training records for the year is set out

below:

Directors

) Training Areas (Note)
R EnE (A aE)

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chief Executive Officer) BHNLE(EHEHNTE) a, b, def
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita BETELL . b, d e f
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter FRIEAGEE b, d e f
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (Chairman) R (£ /E) a, b cdef
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan BEELE .b,d, e f
Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel PRI A4 b, d e f
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAKHTES

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael RS A a, b def
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEERAE a,b,cdef
Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry SMELE a, b, def
Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert R E a, b, def

Note: Training relating to (a) corporate governance; (b) legal and
regulatory; (c) accounting/financial; (d) risk management; (e)
strategic; and (f) business operation update of the Group

Board Committees

The Board has established the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee to assist
the Board to discharge its functions. Each Committee has
specific written terms of reference which sets out clearly the
Committee’s duties and authority. The terms of reference of
the Board Committees are published on the websites of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties, including the support of management
and engagement of independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. The Committees report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations and maintain an effective
and constructive communication with the Board.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises the following
five Directors with majority members being Independent Non-
executive Directors:

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey Independent
(Chairman of the Committee) Non-executive Director

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael Independent
Non-executive Director

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent

Non-executive Director
Executive Director and

Chief Executive Officer
Non-executive Director

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
reviewing at least annually the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Board adopts a Board Diversity Policy which aims to
build and maintain diversity of the Board in terms of skills,
professional experience, cultural and educational background,
gender, age, and other attributes and strengths that are
required for the Company’s business from time to time. The
policy stipulates that Board appointments are made on a
merit basis and candidates will be considered against objective
selection criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. The Nomination Committee is delegated by the
Board to review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis,
make recommendations to the Board on measurable objectives
for achieving diversity of the Board as appropriate and monitor
the progress on achieving the objectives.
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The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the
year when the following key issues were discussed:

e  Review of the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

e Assessment of the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors;

e  Consideration and making recommendation to the Board
on Directors for re-election by Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 11 September
2014,

e Review of results of board evaluation held in the year and
report to the Board with recommendations;

e Discussion of succession plan for senior executives of the
Company and report to the Board; and

e Review and approval of updated procedures for
nomination of Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises the
following three Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael Independent
(Chairman of the Committee) Non-executive Director

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey Independent
Non-executive Director

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent

Non-executive Director

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for
making recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s
policy and structure for remuneration of Directors and senior
management and determining the specific remuneration
packages of individual Director and senior management of
the Company. The remuneration of Directors is determined
with reference to duties and responsibilities of the role,
experience and the prevailing market conditions. Remuneration
of Executive Directors is structured to align with the long-
term interest of the Company with significant proportion of
remuneration linked to corporate and individual performance.
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Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held
during the year when the following key issues were discussed:

e  Consideration of remuneration packages of Chairman,
Executive Directors and senior management and making
recommendation to the Board; and

e  Discussion of the share award proposal and making
recommendation to the Board.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises the following four
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert Independent
(Chairman of the Committee) Non-executive Director

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent
Non-executive Director

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael Independent
Non-executive Director

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey Independent

Non-executive Director

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing
the financial information of the Company and overseeing
the financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems and corporate governance functions.

Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the
year when the following key issues were discussed:

e  Review of the independence of the external auditor and
engagement of external auditor;

e Discussion of audit findings with external auditor and the
related management responses;

e  Review of the Group’s annual and interim financial
statements and the related results announcements;

e Review of the development in accounting standards
and its effects on the Group, goodwill assessment and
financial reporting matters;
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e Review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications,
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function as well as their training
programmes and budget;

e Review of the Group’s continuing connected transactions
and report to the Board thereon;

e Approval of the internal audit plan, review and monitor
risk management, internal control performance as well as
the effectiveness of the internal control system;

e Review of risk management and internal control
enhancement proposals;

e Review of the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance;
e Review of the Company’s practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations to the Board;

and

e  Review of the Company’s compliance with CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two private

sessions with the external auditor and external internal audit
consultant respectively without the presence of management.
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Board and Board Committee Meetings

The Board held four scheduled meetings at approximately
quarterly intervals during the year.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled a year ahead to
facilitate maximum attendance by the Directors. Formal
notices of at least 14 clear calendar days are given in respect
of regular meetings. For special Board or Board Committee
meetings, reasonable notices are given. Arrangement is in
place to invite Directors to include matters in the agenda for
regular meetings.

Agenda of the meetings and the accompanying papers for
regular Board and Board Committee meetings are sent in full
to Directors at least three clear calendar days before the date
of the meetings.

Minutes of Board and Board Committee meetings recorded in
sufficient details the matters considered and decision reached,
including any concern raised by Directors or dissenting views
expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes were sent to
all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
meetings.
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Attendance records of the Directors at Board Meetings, Board BEEREBE_T—HF=A=1T—HLF
Committee Meetings and Annual General Meeting held during ERB|ITZEEREGH EERETEES
the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out below: FRABRREAFRG 2 HELESIIAT

Number of meetings attended/
held during the year ended 31 March 2015
REBZ-Z-HAE=A=1+-ALFELE BHZEBZRY

Nomination Remuneration Audit Annual
Board Committee Committee = Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EEXR REZE® FMzEEe EXZES® RER
E g3 83 g3 BEXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny BRI E
(Chief Executive Officer) (EEHH7TE) 4/4 3/3 N/ATE A N/ATEF 1/1
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEBEXL 44 NATER NANER  NATER 171
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter RIS 4/4 N/A“NE A N/A 8 A N/AE A
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael FRIA YL £
(Chairman) (/) 44 NATER N/A i N/A i 171
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan B ES 4/4 3/3 N/ATNE A N/ATN i 1”n
Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel B e 4/4 N/A7NiE A N/ATNiE A N/ATE 11
Independent Non-executive BYEHTES
Directors
Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael EOEM A 4/4 3/3 2/2 33 i
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TRESLAE 4/4 3/3 2/2 3/3 0/1
Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry S E A 4/4 3/3 2/2 3/3 01
Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert & BN A 4/4 N/AE N/A“NE 3/3 171
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the Group's financial statements, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow for the reporting period. The Board is aware that its
responsibilities to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment extend to annual and interim reports, reports to
regulators, other inside information and financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules as well as information required
to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

Management provides the Board and its Committees with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable the
Directors to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.
Each Director has separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management for inquiries and additional
information.

External Auditor

A statement by the external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 73 to 75 of the Company’s 2015 Annual Report.

For the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as
follows:
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Fee paid/payable

Type of services R ER Bt ERER
HK$'000

FHEIT

Audit services ZH R 4,110
Non-audit services* LB PR TE* 863
Total FEE 4,973

* The non-audit services include mainly advisory services on
taxation, corporate governance and compliance.

* JIRBRBIZERAENIE  tXEAR
KB BRERIRT
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the
Group’s assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of the internal
control system.

The Group adopts a control and risk self-assessment
methodology and continuously assesses and manages its
business risks by way of assessment by the headquarters of
the Group and each business unit on a regular basis, and
communication of key control procedures to employees.

With assistance of external consultant under a co-sourcing
arrangement, Internal Audit Department and the external
consultant have continuous review of the Group’s internal
control system, working systems and workflows, as well as
management systems. The review is conducted by making
reference to the guidelines and definitions given by the
regulatory and professional bodies for the purpose of assessing
the five different internal control elements, namely, the control
environment, risk assessment, control activities, information
and communication, and monitoring.

The Group has established defined organisational structures.
Authority to operate various business functions is delegated to
respective management within limits set by the Management
Board which comprises the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Group. The Management Board led by the
Chief Executive Officer meets on a regular basis to discuss and
approve business plans and budgets prepared by individual
business units. The performance of the Group is reported to
the Board on a regular basis.

The importance of internal controls and risk management is
communicated to staff members in order to foster a control
environment and awareness within the Group. The Group
has properly documented the operational procedures of all
related business units, as well as authorisation and approval
procedures for significant decision making.
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. Guidelines on specific areas including
corporate and financial reporting, conflicts of interest, personal
benefits, relations with suppliers and contractors, disclosure
of inside information, malpractice reporting and investigation
have been issued. New employees are informed of the Code of
Ethics, corporate mission and objectives through the Group's
staff orientation programme.

The Group identifies, assesses and ranks the risks that are
relevant to the Group's business according to their likelihood,
financial consequence and reputational impact on the Group.
Risk profile is reassessed periodically. Food safety is always the
core risk element in the risk profile. Its related controlling and
monitoring mechanism have been embedded in the day-to-day
business operations. Identified issues are closely managed and
resolved in a proactive and timely manner.

Annual internal audit work plan is developed based on the
result of risk assessment. The work plan is reviewed and
approved by management and the Audit Committee. During
the year, the Internal Audit Department and the external
consultant conducted internal control reviews covering
financial, operational and compliance controls of operations
in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. Internal Audit
Department also conducted ad hoc review requested by
management. Key business heads in Hong Kong and Mainland
China confirmed the effectiveness of the internal controls
system during the year. Audit recommendations are agreed
with respective department heads. They are tracked and
followed up for proper implementation. Progress is reported to
management and the Audit Committee on a regular basis. The
Audit Committee reports to the Board on any material issues
and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
an annual review and assessment of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2015 and was satisfied with
the effectiveness of the Group in managing risks based
on management reports and the result of internal control
reviews. The Board has embarked on a risk management and
internal control enhancement project during the year whereby
external consultant has been engaged to conduct review on
the Group’s risk management framework and practices and to
develop an enhancement plan.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Group seeks to conduct its business honestly and with
integrity at all times. A Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and
Investigation has been in place to provide guidance to our
employees and business partners who may, from time to time,
feel that they need to raise certain issues relating to the Group
in confidence and to ensure that they can raise any matters
of genuine concern, in the knowledge that they will be taken
seriously and that the matters will be investigated appropriately
and regarded as confidential.

Under the Group’s Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and
Investigation, employees and business partners may raise
their concern by sending their malpractice reports to Head of
Internal Audit who reports directly to the Audit Committee on
receipt and investigation of malpractice reports. For malpractice
reports concerning the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and/or any members of the Management Board,
informants may make direct reports to the Chairman of Audit
Committee.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company, the
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 March 2015.

The Board has also adopted written guidelines based on the
Model Code for relevant employees of the Group in respect of
their dealings in the Company’s securities.
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Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company takes seriously of its obligations under the new
Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules. The Group's Disclosure Policy sets out guidelines
and procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to
ensure inside information of the Group is to be disseminated
to the public in equal and timely manner. Briefing session is
held regularly for officers to facilitate their understanding and
compliance with the policy.

Company Secretary

Company Secretaries of the Company report to the Board and
also to the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
on day-to-day duties and responsibilities. Company Secretaries
are responsible for supporting and advising the Board on
governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice
and service of the Company Secretaries to ensure that board
procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Company Secretaries complied with the professional
training requirement under the Listing Rules during the year.

Communication with Shareholders and
Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has established Shareholders’” Communication
Policy to ensure proactive communication with Shareholders
and keep Shareholders informed of balanced and
understandable information about the Company in a factual
and timely manner. The Policy also serves to govern the
Company’s open and regular dialogue with Shareholders, fund
managers, analysts and the media through effective corporate
communication system covering various communication
channels including shareholders meetings, corporate
publications and website, press and analyst conferences.
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Shareholders’ Meeting

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on
11 September 2014, the Chairman of the Board and other
Board members, including Chairmen or members of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee as well as the external auditor were present to
communicate with Shareholders. Procedures for the poll voting
on the proposed resolutions were explained at the meeting
by the Chairman. The Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
acted as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted
and the poll results were published on both the websites of
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing
Rules and the Bye-laws, Shareholders may convene general
meetings of the Company and put forward proposals at
general meetings. The procedures for Shareholders to
convene a special general meeting, put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings and propose a person for election as
a director of the Company are available on the website of the
Company at www.cafedecoral.com.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concern to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of
the Company at the Company’s Head Office at 10th Floor,
Café de Coral Centre, 5 Wo Shui Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also make enquiries
to the Board directly at the general meetings.

The Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are
available on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. During the year ended 31 March 2015, there
was no change to the Memorandum of Association and Bye-
laws of the Company.
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Investor Relations

Management of the Company regularly meets with institutional
investors, financial analysts and financial media to provide
update on the business progress and recent developments
of the Company. The Company has regularly participated in
conferences and corporate days to enhance communication
with the investment community. Investors are welcome
to send their enquiries to our Investor Relations Officer at
irs@cafedecoral.com or browse the Company’s website for
latest update information of the Group.

Major investor relations activities participated by the Company
during the year are set out below:
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Corporate Day Standard Chartered Hong Kong
s A BT E
Corporate Day DBS Hong Kong
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Hong Kong Corporate Day Nomura Hong Kong
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Investment Conference (Hong Kong) Daiwa Hong Kong
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Hong Kong/China Corporate Access Day Guosen Securities Hong Kong
B8/ REMCEENA B{EE % B8
Hong Kong/China Corporate Access Day CLSA Hong Kong
B/ PRMCERENH BRES EB
Asian Investment Conference Credit Suisse Hong Kong
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The Company also conducts regular meetings with financial
analysts and financial media updating the Company’s business
performance and future directions. List of research coverage of
investment banks or organisations in respect of the Company
can be obtained at the Company’s website.
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Directors’ Report

EERWE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited financial statements of Café de Coral Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the operation of quick
service restaurants and institutional catering, fast casual
and casual dining chains, as well as food processing and
distribution business. The activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

Results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on pages 79 to 80 of the
Company’s 2015 Annual Report.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK17 cents per share
was paid. The Board has recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK61 cents per share, totaling approximately
HK$355,191,000 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 16 September
2015. The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting to be held on 10 September 2015. Details
of dividends for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in
Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2015
amounted to approximately HK$826,738,000.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the percentage of sales or
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers was less than 30%.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Principal Investment Properties

Details of the principal investment properties are set out on
page 205 of the Company’s 2015 Annual Report.
Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations totaling HK$643,000.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
206 to 208 of the Company’s 2015 Annual Report.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 31 March 2015, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
the Company’s listed securities, except that the trustee of
the Company’s Share Award Scheme purchased on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) a total of 4,784,362 shares of the Company at a
total consideration of HK$133,441,000 to satisfy the award
of shares to selected employees pursuant to the terms of the
rules and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants
or Similar Rights

Other than the share option schemes described below, the
Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights as at 31 March 2015. Save as
disclosed below, there has been no issue or exercise of any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during
the year.
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan
Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry
Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert

In accordance with Bye-law 109(A) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company's
corporate governance practice, Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Mr.
Lo Ming Shing, lan, Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel and Mr. Au
Siu Cheung, Albert shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert, an Independent Non-executive
Director, has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing rules. The Board considers
that Mr. Au meets the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and he is independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Saved as disclosed in this report and Note 40 “Related Party
Transactions” to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 March 2015 or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the
year ended 31 March 2015 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Share Option Schemes

2003 Scheme

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 24 September 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”), the Company
might grant options to eligible participants to subscribe for
ordinary shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. The Company granted options to
certain employees of the Group (including Executive Directors
of the Company) pursuant to the 2003 Scheme. Summary of
details of the 2003 Scheme is as follows:
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

2003 Scheme (Continued)

Purpose

Participants

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for issue
and the percentage of
the issued shares that
it represents as at the
date of this report

Maximum entitlement
of each participant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under an
option

Minimum period for
which an option must
be held before it can
be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the
option

To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business and
development of the Group

Employees (whether full-time or part-
time), executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive
directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, suppliers and customers
of the Group and consultants, advisers,
managers, officers and corporations that
provide research, development or other
technical support to the Group

3,968,000 ordinary shares representing
0.7% of the issued shares as at 23 June
2015

In any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue

Unless otherwise specified in the
offer document, a period of five years
commencing on the date on which an
option becomes exercisable and expiring
on the last day of the five-year period
save that such period shall not expire
later than ten years from the date of
grant

Unless otherwise specified in the
offer document, there is no general
requirement that an option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be
exercised

HK$1.00
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

2003 Scheme (Continued)

Basis of determining Not less than the highest of (i) the closing

the exercise price price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share

The remaining life of The 2003 Scheme expired on 24
the scheme September 2013

2012 Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the
passing of a shareholders’ resolution on 11 September 2012 (the
“2012 Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2012 Scheme, the Board
may grant options to the eligible participants to subscribe
for ordinary shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. As of the date of this report, no
share options had been granted by the Company under the
2012 Scheme. Summary of details of the 2012 Scheme is as

follows:

Purpose To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business and
development of the Group

Participants Employees, executive directors, non-

executive directors and independent non-
executive directors of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, suppliers and customers
of the Group and consultants, advisers,
managers, officers and corporations that
provide research, development or other
technical support to the Group
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

2012 Scheme (Continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for issue
and the percentage of
the issued shares that
it represents as at the
date of this report

Maximum entitlement
of each participant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under an
option

Minimum period for
which an option must
be held before it can
be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the
option

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life of
the scheme

57,182,403 ordinary shares representing
9.8% of the issued shares as at 23 June
2015

In any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue

Such period shall be determined by the
Board and specified in the letter to the
grantee, which may be varied by the
Board in accordance with the terms of
the 2012 Scheme, provided that it shall
not under any circumstances exceed
ten years from the date of grant of the
relevant option

The Board may, in its discretion,
determine the time or period when the
right to exercise the option in respect of
all or some of the shares the subject of
the option will vest

HK$1.00

Not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share

The 2012 Scheme remains in force until
10 September 2022 unless otherwise
terminated under the terms of the 2012
Scheme
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Share Option Schemes (Continued) SRR E (&)

Movement of Share Options Granted ERERRIGE 225
Details of movements of the share options granted under the HE_ZT-—RAF=-A=1T—HLEFERXN &
2003 Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2015 were as CEE=FFHBA B2 RR GRS FE
follows: NN
Number of options®
AREEHE
Exercise
price per Outstanding Outstanding
option at 1 April at 31 March
SHAR 2014 Exercised Lapsed 2015
Date of #5ETHE Exercise RZZ-MNF during during R-E-1%
Grantees grant HK$ period mMA—H the year theyear =A=+-H
ERA R AH BT Cagid i RATE FRITR FREN 8 RATE
Directors & substantial shareholders
EERFERR
Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny 1/11/2005® 8.800 1/1/2007- 600,000 (200,000)9 - 400,000
BRI L 31/10/2015
2/10/2007 14.268 30/3/2008- 1,050,000 (600,000)0 - 450,000
29/3/2017
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter 2/10/2007@ 14.748 30/3/2009- 60,000 - - 60,000
BiEALE 11012017
Directors
Bz
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita 2/10/2007 14.268 30/3/2008- 337,500 (90,000)% - 247,500
BEENL 29/3/2017
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael 2/10/20079 14.268 30/3/2008- 825,000 (825,000)% - -
R EE 29/3/2017
Continuous contract employees 1/11/2005© 8.750 1/1/2007- 356,000 (210,000)" - 146,000
EEANER 31/1022015
1/11/2005% 8.750 1/1/2008- 210,000 (167,000)" - 43,000
31/10/2015
2/10/2007@ 14.748 30/3/2008- 2,557,000 (1,297,500)" - 1,259,500
29/3/2017
2/10/2007 14.748 30/3/2009- 542,000 (346,000)" - 196,000
1/10/2017
28/10/20107 22.370 31/3/2011- 1,897,000 (314,000)" (94,000) 1,489,000
30/3/2020
28/10/2010" 22.370 31/3/2012- 764,000 (268,000)" (154,000) 342,000
27/10/2020
9,198,500 (4,317,500) (248,000) 4,633,000
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

Movement of Share Options Granted
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(e)

Number of options refers to the number of underlying shares
of the Company covered by the options under the 2003
Scheme.

These options shall vest in 5 equal tranches. The first
four tranches are exercisable during a four-year period
commencing 1 January 2007, 1 January 2008, 1 January
2009 and 1 January 2010 respectively. The last tranche is
exercisable from 1 January 2011 to 31 October 2015.

These options shall vest in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 30
March 2008, 15% on 30 March 2009, 20% on 30 March
2010, 25% on 30 March 2011 and 30% on 30 March 2012
and are exercisable during a five-year period commencing
the respective dates of vesting.

These options shall vest in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 30
March 2009, 15% on 30 March 2010, 20% on 30 March
2011, 25% on 30 March 2012 and 30% on 30 March
2013. The first four tranches are exercisable during a five-
year period commencing the respective dates of vesting. The
last tranche is exercisable from 30 March 2013 to 1 October
2017.

These options shall vest in 5 equal tranches. The first
four tranches are exercisable during a four-year period
commencing 1 January 2007, 1 January 2008, 1 January
2009 and 1 January 2010 respectively. The last tranche is
exercisable from 1 January 2011 to 31 October 2015.

These options shall vest in 5 equal tranches. The first
four tranches are exercisable during a four-year period
commencing 1 January 2008, 1 January 2009, 1 January
2010 and 1 January 2011 respectively. The last tranche is
exercisable from 1 January 2012 to 31 October 2015.
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

Movement of Share Options Granted

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(9)

(k)

These options shall vest in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 30
March 2008, 15% on 30 March 2009, 20% on 30 March
2010, 25% on 30 March 2011 and 30% on 30 March 2012
and are exercisable during a five-year period commencing
the respective dates of vesting.

These options shall vest in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 31
March 2011, 15% on 31 March 2012, 20% on 31 March
2013, 25% on 31 March 2014 and 30% on 31 March 2015
and are exercisable during a five-year period commencing
the respective dates of vesting.

These options shall vest in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 31
March 2012, 15% on 31 March 2013, 20% on 31 March
2014, 25% on 31 March 2015 and 30% on 31 March 2016.
The first four tranches are exercisable during a five-year
period commencing the respective dates of vesting. The last
tranche is exercisable from 31 March 2016 to 27 October
2020.

In respect of the category of “Directors & substantial
shareholders”, the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately before the dates on which
the share options were exercised was HK$27.71.

In respect of the category of “Directors”, the weighted
average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the dates on which the share options were exercised
was HK$23.63.

In respect of the category of “Continuous contract
employees”, the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately before the dates on which
the share options were exercised was HK$26.63.
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

Movement of Share Options Granted
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year ended 31 March
2015.

Share Award Scheme

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 27 August 2013 (the “Adoption
Date”), under which any individual being an existing director,
employee, officer, supplier, customer, consultant, adviser or
manager of any member of the Group is entitled to participate
in as selected participant who may be granted an award of
restricted shares and/or performance shares during the period
commencing on the Adoption Date and ending on the day
immediately prior to the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption
Date. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise
and reward selected participants for their contributions to the
business and development of the Group. The Share Award
Scheme also aims to provide a competitive remuneration and/
or incentive package in order to attract and retain talent for
the development of the Group’s business, and to promote
long term success of the Group by aligning the interests of
selected participants and shareholders.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
term of 15 years from the Adoption Date and is administrated
by the Board and the trustee of the Scheme. The total number
of shares to be awarded under the Scheme shall not exceed
5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected participant but unvested under the
Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time.
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Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, restricted shares and
performance shares were granted to selected participants
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. Details of the shares
awarded under the Share Award Scheme during the year are

as follows:

IR 2 B ET & (48)

RBEZE_ZT-—AF=A=+—HILEFE K

PR 1 M Bt

Number of shares

NERERD ZBF I RETEZERERT

EER D o RIRA ) 2B FH B
R ZBRORFRZESFEMT

KRB E
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
2014 during during during 2015 Vesting
Date of grant R-ZE—WF the year the year the year R-ZT—HEF period
RHBH mA—H RERRH REREE RER%LY =A=+—8 o B
31/7/2014 - 940,714 - 45,652 895,062 31/7/2015 -
31/7/2017@
15/9/2014 - 3,826,361 - 72,680 3,753,681 7/2019®
- 4,767,075 - 118,332 4,648,743
Notes: B aE

(@) The awarded shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches
of 33% of the awarded shares respectively on the first and
second anniversary dates of the grant date and the balance
of the remaining awarded shares on the third anniversary
date of the grant date.

(b) The awarded shares are subject to attainment of performance
targets with reference to the Group’s performance.

Since the Adoption Date, a total of 4,767,075 shares had
been awarded under the Share Award Scheme, representing
approximately 0.8% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at the date of this report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2015, the interests of each Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

EERFETHAERKRS

MBI R % 2 R R
WA

RZE-—RE=ZRA=1+—08  ARRIREHF
HFREIB GO &S RS %P ) 5E3521&
mFEZBCMATCE - SRR £ R B
BrAEe FTARESETESFRZNR
EpRI(MRESFRI D) A g AR A M & B
R ARRBEFENEERITERALRE
K HAEEOEE (RE 5 LI E GO EXVEL 2
W) 2B - BRI RMES 2 R E S
T

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)

ARNEEERHHEROBE (FR)

% of total
issued
Equity shares*
Personal Family Corporate Other derivatives Total EE 81T
Name of Director interests interests interests interests € interests RIAFE
B BARERE RixER NEER Hit s fTETA EEAY ERalad
Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny 20,082,000 - - 37,383,394@ 1,331,243® 58,796,637 10.109%
BREE
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita 13,752,839 - - 443,783 14,196,622 2.441%
BEBLL
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter 350,000 - - 89,308,213® 256,2839 89,914,496 15.459%
BEAESEE

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael 7,357,407 4,096,000 -
BRIS e

Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan 40,000 - -
BRAESEE
Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel 25,837 - -
HREL A
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 55,0009 - -
FEELE

- - 11,453,407 1.970%
- - 40,000 0.007%
- - 25,837 0.004%
- - 55,000 0.009%

* The percentage has been calculated based on 581,616,033 shares
in issue as at 31 March 2015.

* BOLDER - E—RAF=A=+—HB#1T
A% 15581,616,0330&ETE -
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(e)

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny was deemed to be interested in
these shares held under a family trust in the capacity of
founder.

These shares were held by Wandels Investment Limited
("Wandels”). Wandels was 50% owned by Sky Bright
International Limited (”Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by
Verdant Success Holdings Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both
of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-owned by
RBC Trustees (Cl) Limited which was the trustee of two
discretionary family trusts. Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter was
deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of his
being beneficiary of one of the family trusts.

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael was deemed to be interested
in these shares through interests of his spouse.

These shares were held by Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey jointly
with his spouse.

This represented interests in 850,000 options granted under
the Company’s share option scheme and 481,243 unvested
performance shares granted under the Company’s share
award scheme.

This represented interests in 247,500 options granted under
the Company’s share option scheme and 196,283 unvested
restricted shares/performance shares granted under the
Company’s share award scheme.

This represented interests in 60,000 options granted under
the Company’s share option scheme and 196,283 unvested
restricted shares/performance shares granted under the
Company'’s share award scheme.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (Continued)

All the above interests in shares and underlying shares of
equity derivatives of the Company were long positions.
None of the Directors held any short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of
the Directors, Chief Executive Officer of the Company or
their respective associates had or was deemed to have any
interest or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be recorded in the register kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests FTERR#ER

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of R-E—HF=A=+—8 ' KRAAIRE

every person, other than a Director or Chief Executive Officer BH R EBEEGIE336GRT ZERLLMAT
of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the ™ BARRRKRG KHBEROERIORE

Company, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share ZANT(BMERARIE BITRAS%E A £)
capital, as recorded in the register kept by the Company under (BRARRESHEEHTEINEINOT :

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)
RATERER HERGHE (FR)

% of total
issued
shares*

Name of Personal Family Corporate Other Total HBRT
substantial shareholder interests interests interests interests interests R #EREZ
FERRHER BB BARERE RikfER AFER HipiEs EREY Baotk*
Wandels Investment Limited - - - 89,308,213@ 89,308,213 15.355%
Sky Bright International Limited - - - 89,308,213 89,308,213 15.355%
Verdant Success Holdings Limited - - - 89,308,213@ 89,308,213 15.355%
RBC Trustees (Cl) Limited - - - 89,308,213@ 89,308,213 15.355%
Ms. Tso Po Ping - 58,796,637 - - 58,796,637 10.109%
BEFLL
Ardley Enterprises Limited - - - 37,383,394 37,383,394 6.428%
Mr. Lo Hoi Chun 132,000 - 67,880,834 - 68,012,834 11.694%
BB E
Ms. Man Bo King - 68,012,834@ - - 68,012,834 11.694%
NEBRZL
LBK Holding Corporation 35,969,133 - - - 35,969,133 6.184%
MMW Holding Corporation 31,911,7019 - - - 31,911,701 5.487%
Matthews International Capital

Management, LLC - - - 63,078,100 63,078,100 10.845%
*  The percentage has been calculated based on 581,616,033 shares * B ERZE—RAF=A=+—HE#7

in issue as at 31 March 2015.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

These interests were held by Wandels Investment Limited
("Wandels”). Wandels was 50% owned by Sky Bright
International Limited (”Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by
Verdant Success Holdings Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both
of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-owned by
RBC Trustees (Cl) Limited which was the trustee of two
discretionary family trusts. Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter, being a
Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in
these shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of one of the
family trusts.

Ms. Tso Po Ping was deemed to be interested in these shares
through the interests of her spouse, Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong,
Sunny.

These interests were held by Ardley Enterprises Limited in
the capacity of trustee. These interests represented part of
the interests of Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, being a Director
of the Company.

Mr. Lo Hoi Chun was deemed to be interested in these
shares which were held, as to 35,969,133 shares, by LBK
Holding Corporation (“LBK”) and, as to 31,911,701 shares,
by MMW Holding Corporation (“MMW"). Both of LBK and
MMW were wholly-owned by Mr. Lo Hoi Chun.

Ms. Man Bo King was deemed to be interested in these
shares through the interests of her spouse, Mr. Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by LBK Holding Corporation which
was wholly-owned by Mr. Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by MMW Holding Corporation
which was wholly-owned by Mr. Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held in the capacity of investment
manager.

FTERRER(H)

(0

% % # zI 75 mWandels Investment
Limited ([Wandels]) # % ° Sky Bright
International Limited ([Sky Bright])
K Verdant Success Holdings Limited
(['Verdant Success|) % 7l # B Wandels
50% 2 #2#5 ° Sky Bright X Verdant Success
¥ /ARBC Trustees (Cl) Limitedz 2 & /B
‘@] » RBC Trustees (Cl) Limited &R [E 2
BEREETZZTEA c RARIEFEEA
EEREP-—RREEEZIZMA » HHE
BRFBLERD LR -

FETL+ARRERE AR ERERE
15 - MR BB RERG 2 Hs -

%% m JyAArdley Enterprises Limited
URFTEABGDEE - 25 I AREE
ERFANRKEFE 2B OEE -

ERBTERBRFEZER D ER -
& 135,969,133/ % 5 FLBK Holding
Corporation ([LBK )#7%E - 31,911,701
f& B 5 BMMW Holding Corporation
(TMMW ) # 4 ° LBKEMMW/M AR EH
HRERBRLEZERFE -

NERXLTRELBERARTERBEZS
Bty - AR AR B ZEFRD 2 o

% % # %5 FLBK Holding Corporation#¥
B ZATHERBRECEZERE -

ZEREZAMMW Holding Corporation#
B ZATHERBLERERE -
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
(Continued)

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO recorded no other interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Framework Agreement with Fung Yuen

On 27 February 2014, the Company and Fung Yuen
Engineering Company Limited (“Fung Yuen”) renewed and
entered into their non-exclusive framework agreement (2014
Framework Agreement”) which governed the terms upon
which Fung Yuen and its subsidiaries (“Fung Yuen Group”)
would be engaged by the Group to provide interior decoration,
renovation, adjustment, repairing, maintenance and/or related
services (the “Renovation Works”) for a further term of three
years from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017 subject to the
following annual caps:

1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 HK$45,000,000

1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 HK$57,000,000

1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 HK$75,000,000

Fung Yuen Group is a connected person of the Company as
Mr. Ng Lam To, the cousin of Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita (both being Directors of the Company),
is deemed to have a majority control in Fung Yuen Group.
Thus the Renovation Works constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the 2014 Framework Agreement were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 27 February 2014.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the aggregate value in
respect of the Renovation Works under the 2014 Framework
Agreement amounted to approximately HK$11,377,000 and
did not exceed the annual cap for the year.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

Annual Review

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;,

(b) on normal commercial terms; and

(¢) in accordance with the relevant agreement(s) governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the above continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

The related party transactions set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements (other than the transactions
relating to the operating lease rentals paid to a related party,
which constituted continuing connected transactions but were
exempted from the reporting and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules due to de minimis) did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Changes in Information of Directors

The changes in information of Directors since the publication
of the Company’s 2014 Interim Report are set out below
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny

The service contract of Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny as Chief
Executive Officer has been renewed for one year from 1 April
2015. Under his service contract, Mr. Lo’s annual basic salary
has been increased to HK$2,418,000 with effect from 1 April
2015. Mr. Lo is also entitled to profit sharing bonus, incentive
bonus and gratuity. Mr. Lo remains to be entitled to an annual
director’s fee of HK$50,000.

Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita

The position of Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita in the Group has
changed to Executive Director from Group General Manager
with effect from 1 April 2015. Pursuant to a letter which is
supplemental to her service contract, Ms. Lo’s annual basic
salary has been increased to HK$2,600,400 with effect from
1 April 2015. Ms. Lo is also entitled to profit sharing bonus
and discretionary business target bonus. Ms. Lo remains to be
entitled to an annual director’s fee of HK$50,000.

Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter

Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter has been appointed as the Managing
Director of the Group effective from 1 April 2015. Pursuant
to a letter which is supplemental to his service contract, Mr.
Lo’s annual basic salary has been increased to HK$2,760,000
with effect from 1 April 2015. Mr. Lo is also entitled to
profit sharing bonus and discretionary business target bonus.
Mr. Lo remains to be entitled to an annual director’s fee of
HK$50,000.

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael ceased to be a member of the
Board of Governors of Canadian International School of Hong
Kong on 13 June 2015.
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Changes In Information Of Directors
(Continued)

Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel was re-designated from executive
director to non-executive director of Greenheart Group
Limited (“Greenheart Group”), a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, on 14 May 2015 and resigned as non-
executive director of Greenheart Group on 4 June 2015.

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael ceased to be a member of the
Hong Kong Housing Authority and the Chairman of the
Commercial Properties Committee of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority with effect from 1 April 2015.

Mr. Choi’'s position with Henderson (China) Investment
Company Limited has been changed to Director and Senior
Vice-President with effective from May 2015.

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert ceased to be a director of Joint
Professional Centre Limited with effect from 17 April 2015.

Mr. Au was appointed as a non-executive director of The
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") effective from
26 May 2015. Mr. Au was also appointed the Chairman of
Audit Committee and a member of Remuneration Committee,
Investment Committee and Budget Committee of SFC on 4
June 2015.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of
the Company’s total issued shares were held by the public as
at the date of this report.
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Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

By order of the Board
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 AR S

i 5
pwc

Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of Café de Coral Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Café
de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 76 to 204, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32),
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T. +852 2289 8888,
F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

BERAKE
HARLEBEBRA R BT

B ZHEN®RE
(REREZ BRI ERAF)

AAZ B (AT T8 AP )) B BARTNE N E
T76E204BAREEEBERARERA])
REWBARI(ATABIE£E])NEEE
BHE WEAVBREBER-_Z—AF
A=+ BNRA AR BRI REE
EZALFENGRAEBREER BA2EKA
WK GARZEHRIGABRESRE

AR FESHBERBE R M REE R -

EENASUBBRRAREN

B

BERREZARARREBEE S ASRM
BB B M 15 RS 2RI K A & B AR FHEB)
(BRNE)NBEERERHEGEEMBHRE - N
SHAMBRRELEEMAFHRMR - &
EEERSREGRA VMRV EN AL
- AESRE M B RER RN
SRR MG A B ASEERIRAL -

EERUKBESHANESAT - BEFIRKTRE2E
E5E 1 +852 2289 8888 -
{5H : +852 2810 9888 ' www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 AR S

pwc
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report v
B 2 AR S
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Opinion R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give BMRR ZEGaMBREIEBRESTE
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company VB mELEANEEMAFIERE HEAF
and of the Group as at 31 March 2015 and of the Group's Y BEEER-ZT-—RAF=A=T—HM=E
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance Bk BEEEHEZBILEFENRMNKR
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have WEME  WERBAIHFEB(RREHINE
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure NE)NBBERTEL RS

requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers EORKESTHAERKAT
Certified Public Accountants HEEFED
Hong Kong, 23 June 2015 B ZE—RFAAZT=H
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e TR R 3R

As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RAF=HA=+—H

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

—E—hE —E—-MF
=A=+—8H =A=+—8H
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
et FET FEIT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IEMBNEE
Leasehold land and land use rights THE £ Hh & i f5F A A 6 88,386 91,380
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENERE 7 1,737,661 1,720,324
Investment properties WEMZE 8 478,400 439,600
Intangible assets A E 9 2,132 48,417
Investment in an associate REEE N RIIRE 11 1,195 1,190
Investment in a joint venture NEZBRNRIRE 12 — 19,772
Deferred income tax assets EEFIRE E 21 25,955 26,562
Available-for-sale financial assets A EeHEE 13 355,147 522,516
Non-current prepayments JEMEBTENFIARIE S 14
and deposits 266,296 248,652
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEINABRKR ISR 17
profit or loss BE — 7,777
2,955,172 3,126,190
Current assets MEEE
Inventories Ve 15 228,281 211,759
Trade and other receivables B R H A EYERTE 16 143,342 79,660
Prepayments and deposits FERRERIZS 16 123,215 106,921
Financial assets at fair value through RATEIAERER 2SR 17
profit or loss BE 39,838 8,067
Bank deposits with maturity over FRiE = {8 A B H A M ERTT1F R 18
three months 15,428 31,010
Cash and cash equivalents RWeNREEEHEB 18 1,057,189 1,004,093
1,607,293 1,441,510
Total assets BEE 4,562,465 4,567,700
EQUITY iR
Capital and reserves attributable to the 7N BIAGHER: A A FE(G A AN &
equity holders of the Company G
Share capital A% A 24 58,162 57,730
Share premium B mE 25 542,182 466,353
Shares held for share award scheme A% i@ 235 A 2 IR 25 (133,441) -
Other reserves Hib 25 640,613 820,453
Retained earnings IR & 25
— Proposed dividends - BURAR B 355,191 295,168
— Others - Ef 2,209,219 2,089,696
3,671,926 3,729,400
Non-controlling interests FEPE G MR 3,842 3,155
Total equity [t B RE 3,675,768
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR AR

As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RAF=HA=+—H

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

—E-REF —E-0F
=A=+-8 =A=+-8
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
kA FEIT FHEIT
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFIEAE 21 21,147 30,458
Provision for long service payments REIRG S HHE 20 30,498 22,850
Retirement benefit liabilities ERSEANEE 20 15,344 7,483
66,989 60,791
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables SEENBREIR 22 212,282 208,844
Other creditors and accrued liabilities — Hth e BE T8 % BT B 23 577,555 534,867
Current income tax liabilities BIEAfRIB & (& 29,871 30,643
819,708 774,354
Total liabilities BaE 886,697 835,145
Total equity and liabilities fxie & BEBEE 4,562,465 4,567,700
Net current assets HREEE 787,585 667,156
Total assets less current liabilities HERERTEAE 3,742,757 3,793,346

The notes on pages 86 to 204 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2015 and

were signed on its behalf:

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
Chairman
FiE

HEB6E204H M RA&G A M IBHRRN

B -

REZRN-_T-—AFA-+=R#LER
REEFHERE

Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
Chief Executive Officer
BHEHITE
&YX

ARLEBMER AR —2015 FR o 77



Statement of Financial Position
B RS AR S R

As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RAF=HA=+—H

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

—E—REF —ZT-F
=A=+—8H =A=+—H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
et FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTBARRE 10 1,466,786 1,368,126
Current assets mENEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUHT B A Rl g8 10 4,909 -
Prepayments, deposits and other TERIE - e REMRE
current assets BiE = 740
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EIER 18 28 563
4,937 1,303
Total assets BB E 1,471,723 1,369,429
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable to the 7N FIIGERA AR IR K
equity holders of the Company ]
Share capital B& R 24 58,162 57,730
Share premium B mE 25 542,182 466,353
Shares held for share award scheme A BT 2l E 2 kD 25 (133,441) -
Other reserves Hib 25 272,113 271,935
Retained earnings RE & 25
— Proposed dividends — ¥RRRR B 355,191 295,168
— Others - Hu 377,080 278,199
Total equity [t 4aza 1,471,287 1,369,385
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities mENAE
Other creditors and accrued liabilities — H{thfE{TBE I8 R fEET B F 436 44
Total equity and liabilities et & B (EBE 1,471,723 1,369,429
Net current assets HREEE 4,501 1,259
Total assets less current liabilities WEERMREARE 1,471,287 1,369,385

The notes on pages 86 to 204 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2015 and
were signed on its behalf:

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
Chairman
FiE
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Consolidated Income Statement - sy runction of expense
%é?ﬁé% —RERESE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZ=ZZ—RAF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E—REF —ZET-F
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
Hat FAET FET
Continuing operations FB AT
Revenue g 26 7,355,738 6,826,254
Cost of sales S EE Al AN 28 (6,332,590) (5,841,875)
Gross profit EF 1,023,148 984,379
Other gains, net HAthF Uz 27 59,713 67,887
Administrative expenses THER 28 (375,152) (308,465)
Operating profit LB R A 707,709 743,801
Finance income R ON 29 17,256 12,700
Share of loss of joint ventures JElE & & RRIEE (5,434) (3,958)
Profit before income tax P4 F5% A v ) 719,531 752,543
Income tax expense 5 & A 30 (117,051) (110,422)
Profit for the year from continuing REFEREER 2 ANFEGEF
operations 602,480 642,121
Discontinued operation BRI EEEE TS
Loss for the year from discontinued REDRIEKEER 2 KFE 19
operation 518 (15,020) (60,041)
Profit for the year IR F 587,460 582,080
Profit attributable to: FE(EEF)
Non-controlling interests FEFE ) 1 fE e 687 884
Equity holders of the Company RARBHEREA 31 586,773 581,196
587,460 582,080
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity WA TIFEZNATIRFEEA A
holders of the Company arises from: FEMESH A, (E1E)
— Continuing operations - BEICEET 601,793 641,237
— Discontinued operation - B IEIREETS (15,020) (60,041)
586,773 581,196
Dividends Bz 2 32 453,860 393,189
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Consolidated Income Statement - sy Function of expense

ﬁé?ﬁé% - RERED

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZ=ZZ—RAF=A=+—HILFE

Note
BtaF

2015
—E2—-F1F
HK$°000
FET

2014
—E—gF
HK$'000
FET

Earnings/(loss) per share for profit/
(loss) from continuing operations
and discontinued operation
attributable to the equity holders of
the Company during the year
Basic earnings/(loss) per share

ZNCHERNNGIEE SEES PN DY

BREZLEEBRNERIEES
2w (BER)NERE
M/ (E#E)

FREARRF,(ER)

— From continuing operations - REFBECE XS 33 HK$1.05 HK$1.11
1.05% 7T T

— From discontinued operation - RE DR IEEEETS (HK$0.03) (HK$0.10)
(0.03%7T) (0.1077T)

HK$1.02 HK$1.01

1.028 T 1.0138 T

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share FEERF(Ei8)

— From continuing operations - REBELEEY 33 HK$1.04 HK$1.10
1.044 7T 1108 7T
— From discontinued operation - REERIEREER (HK$0.03) (HK$0.10)
(0.03/87T) (0.10/%7T)

HK$1.01 HK$1.00

1.018 T 1.005& T

The notes on pages 86 to 204 are an integral part of these ®
consolidated financial statements. B
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income -
e EEBARR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZ=ZZ—RAF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—EB-HF —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET
X
Profit for the year REERA 587,460 582,080
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hip2m(EE), WA
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss e E S BEmEE
Exchange differences arising from translation ERINB AR « BED
of foreign subsidiaries, associates and a AkeE R EZERERE
joint venture (4,748) (13,015)
Exchange reserve released upon disposal of A EEKATEDRER,
business = (8,084) -
Exchange reserve released upon disposal of A E RS R R E TR
investment in an associate t O BEE 3 S = (2,763)
Fair value (loss)/gain on available-for-sale AIHHESREEN A FE
financial assets (E518), &7 (167,369) 71,438
Reserve released upon disposal of available- EHERHEESREER
for-sale financial assets BHeHE = 3)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently T EEEE DI B Em
to profit or loss HH
Remeasurement of retirement benefit BT ERARESENEER
liabilities and provision for long service RERTG S HHE
payments (15,948) 15,852
Total comprehensive income for the year REEREEBA 391,311 653,589
Total comprehensive income for the year JEIEARFEREMEPA
attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company - RRFIRERERE A 390,624 652,705
- Non-controlling interests - JEIEH s 687 884
391,311 653,589
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year KETHE ZARRNERERFEA
attributable to equity holders of the Company [EIEARFEREREEBRA
arising from: (E18):
- Continuing operations — IFEREER 413,728 724,959
— Discontinued operation - BRRIEREET (23,104) (72,254)
390,624 652,705

62204 2 ARGEMERERN

Ak -

The notes on pages 86 to 204 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZ=ZZ—RAF=A=+—HILFE

Shares held
for share Non-
Share Share award Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium scheme reserves earnings Total interests equity
R %R FiRH

Bx  BRHEE HBERH  AbBRE  REER it B REA
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000

TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

Balance as at 1 April 2014 RZZ-IFMNA-R LR 57,730 466,353 = 820453 2384864 3,729,400 3155 3,732,555
Profit for the year KEERT - - - - 586,773 586,773 687 587,460

Other comprehensive (loss)income: i 2E(EE) /WA -
Exchange differences arising from ERENHBLR BELARAED

translation of foreign subsidiaries, AELEE

associates and a joint venture - - - (4,748) - (4,748) = (4.748)
Exchange reserve released upon disposal  EHEEHHBENEY ik

of business - - - (8,084) - (8,084) - (8,084)

Remeasurement of retirement benefit — EFFEEKERAEERRERES
liabilities and provision for long service ~ #fg

payments - - - - (15,948) (15,948) - (15,948)
Transfer to statutory reserve EUELTRE - - - 183 (183) - - -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale RNESHEENATERR

financial assets - - - (167.369) - (167,369) - (167.369)
Total comprehensive (loss)income a2E(BE)/ B - - - (180,018) 570,642 390,624 687 391,311
Employee share option scheme-value of  [ES B R: E-EERKER

employee services - - - 982 - 982 - 982
Employee share award scheme-value of  [EERR(3 B+ E-EERKER

employee services - - - 11,640 - 11,640 - 11,640
Purchase of shares N = - (133440) = - (13344) - (133.440)
Proceeds from shares issued Bl FiES 432 63,501 - - - 63,933 - 63,933
Release of share-based compensation /TR e bR IS

reserve 10 share premium upon EEARNEE

exercise of share options - 12328 - (12,328) - - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share options ~~ ZRFEEREH = = = (116) 116 - - -
Dividends S = = = - (92 (B391212) - (391212

432 75829 (133,441) 178 (391,096)  (448,098) - (448,09)
Balance as at 31 March 2015 RoE-TF=A=T-BEH 58,162 542,182  (133441) 640,613 2,564,410 3,671,926 3842 3,675,768
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZ=ZZ—RAF=A=+—HILFE

Shares held
for share Non-
Share Share award Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium scheme reserves earnings Total interests equity
R %R FiRH

Bx  BRHEE BERH  AbBRE  REER it B RES
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

Balance as at 1 April 2013 RZE-=EmA-BER 57,407 415,093 - 749,291 2327583 3,549,374 2,271 3,551,645
Profit for the year TEERT - - - - 581,1% 581,1% 884 582,080
Other comprehensive (losshincome: ~ HA2E(ER) /WA -
Exchange differences arising from SABNIELE  BELTRAED

translation of foreign subsidiaries, AELEE

associates and a joint venture - - - (13,015) - (13,015) - (13,015)
Exchange reserve released upon disposal [ HERBE N AR EELRES

of investment in an associate 13 - - - (2,763) - (2,763) - (2,763)

Remeasurement of retirement benefit B ERIEEHEERRHRES
liabilities and provision for long service ~ %f&

payments - - - - 15,852 15,852 - 15,852
Transfer to statutory reserve BURETRE - - - 21,494 (21,494) - - -
Fair value gain on available-for-sale NHEESRAEN D TERT

financial assets - - - 71438 - 71438 - 71438
Reserve released upon disposal of ROEAHnESHEERBLNRE

avallable-for-sale financial assets - - - (3) - 3) - 3)
Total comprehensive income HETTON - - - 71,151 575,554 652,705 884 653,589
Proceeds from shares issued WA 33 43,183 - - - 43,506 - 43,506
Release of share-based compensation TR ER N RG AR E

reserve to share premium upon ER\RHAE

exercise of share options - 8,077 - (8,077) - - - -
Employee share option scheme-value of  [EE ZR5 B E-EEREBEE

employee services - - - 2,140 - 2,140 - 2,140
Transfer upon lapse of share options ARG FER - - - (52) 5 - - -
Dividends &) - - - - (1832 (518329) - (518329)

3 51,260 - (5989)  (518,273)  (472,679) - (42,679
Balance as at 31 March 2014 RZE-RF=f=t-H&R 57,730 466,353 - 820453 2,384,864 3,729,400 3,155 3,732,555
The notes on pages 86 to 204 are an integral part of these TEE86E 2048 2 Mt AANERE B KM
consolidated financial statements. BEEEH D o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERETMER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZ=-Z—

hAFE=A=t—HIFE

2015

—E-EEF

Note HK$°000
BtaF FEITL

2014

=

HK$°000
FET

Cash flows from operating activities

REXRBZRERE

Net cash generated from operations EEEEFERE 35(a) 959,451 954,032
Hong Kong profits tax paid B2 BEENEH (103,846) (108,138)
Overseas taxation paid BT 2818 (8,774) (14,994)
Net cash used in operating activities REER ML EEREEETR

from discontinued operation FrRzF8e (15,478) (871)
Net cash generated from operating KEEREX L FIRE

activities 831,353 830,029
Cash flows from investing activities KRETHZRERE
Purchase of property, plant and REWMZE - WEREE

equipment (393,088) (305,875)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - WEMEESR 35(b)

plant and equipment 8,242 69,133
Purchase of franchise rights ,ﬁﬁjéfﬁﬁi‘«%% (1,157) -
Dividend received from listed Bl EmiRER

investments 12,553 13,267
Purchase of financial assets BEoRMEE (39,818) (6,333)
Proceeds from redemption/disposal of B[l HERHHE SR EEFT

available-for-sale financial assets B® - 17
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERATFEIAEGR ISR

assets at fair value through profit or BEMBER

loss 15,608 82,627
Proceeds from disposal of interest in an &L N TIHEL TS

associate - 14,490
Proceeds from disposal of investment in HE&ZE R AIREFEH

a joint venture 11,600 411
Interest received Bz FE 17,256 12,199
Decrease in bank deposits with maturity Ja /> #88 = 1@ A Z/HI B H98R1T

over three months T3 15,582 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REBRIHELEBENIRERE

investing activities from discontinued  FE4 (FrA) 2 %H 4

operation 34,239 (3,149)
Net cash used in investing activities ARKREESHZFRE (318,983) (123, 213)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHSRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZ=ZZ—RAF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—B-F% —E—mE
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
BtaF FET FET
]| |
Cash flows from financing activities REES RS RE
Net proceeds from issue of shares upon 7T{EZIREAE M 21T (D 2 FT 15
exercise of share options FOEFEE 63,933 43,506
Purchase of shares held for share award &8 E R0 #2Eh =t 215 H 2 %D
scheme (133,441) -
Dividends paid BATAR B (391,212) (518,325)
Net cash used in financing activities A& g2 % Re (460,720) (474,819)
Net increase in cash and cash B NBEESSEIER ZFEM
equivalents 51,650 231,997
Cash and cash equivalents at the FEMIBKASIRESEAE
beginning of the year 1,004,093 772,694
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMNES[fE R » S22 1,446 (598)
Cash and cash equivalents at FEARFRELIACEHEIER 18
the end of the year 1,057,189 1,004,093

The notes on pages 86 to 204 are an integral part of these EF86E2048 2 X ARG M mEK K
consolidated financial statements. BEEEMD -
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A

General Information

Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda with limited liability
on 1 October 1990. The address of its registered office
is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The Company’s subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the operation of quick service restaurants and
institutional catering, fast casual and casual dining chains,
as well as food processing and distribution business.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

On 23 October 2014, the Group entered into an
agreement with a third party to dispose of its North
American operations for an aggregate consideration
of CAD7,900,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$53,000,000). The disposal was completed on 18
December 2014 (see Note 19). The financial results of
the North American operation for the period from 1 April
2014 to 18 December 2014 (date of disposals) were
presented as discontinued operation in the accompanying
consolidated income statement and the comparative
figures for the year ended 31 March 2014 had been
restated accordingly.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS ER AR R

2.1

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

In accordance with the transitional and saving
arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit” as set out
in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
applicable requirements of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and the
comparative period.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS ER AR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards and amendments to standard
adopted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the Group
for the first time for the financial year beginning on or
after 1 April 2014

Amendment to HKAS 32, 'Financial instruments:
Presentation' on offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. This amendment clarifies that the right of set-
off must not be contingent on a future event. It must
also be legally enforceable for all counterparties in the
normal course of business, as well as in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendment also
considers settlement mechanisms. The amendment did
not have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36, 'Impairment of assets', on
the recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets. This amendment removed certain disclosures of
the recoverable amount of Cash-generating Units which
had been included in HKAS 36 by the issue of HKFRS
13. It also enhanced the disclosures of information
about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that
amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments did not have a significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS ER AR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards and amendments to standard
adopted by the Group (Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 39, 'Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement' on the novation of
derivatives and the continuation of hedge accounting.
This amendment considers legislative changes to 'over-
the-counter' derivatives and the establishment of central
counterparties. Under HKAS 39 novation of derivatives
to central counterparties would result in discontinuance
of hedge accounting. The amendment provides relief
from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation
of a hedging instrument meets specified criteria. The
amendment did not have any significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements as a result.

There are no other new standards or amendments and
interpretations to existing standards that are effective for
the first time for the financial year beginning on or after
1 April 2014 that are expected to have a material impact
on the Group’s result and financial position.
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e ISR MR

EESTHERBEE)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2

Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards, amendments and interpretations (i)
that have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 April 2014 and have not

been early adopted.

fim BLELE ()

TMETEF IR

TS E B EFT
Al BEY RN T —MEFN
A—BRB6MERFERHEER

#R - T8

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after

FEMBEMHAR

ZEBEN

HKAS 19 (2011) Amendment Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 1 July 2014
BEGETERN9Q2011) 28] FERNETE— BB H —T-FELHA—H
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
FEBGERT S 2010-2012/BH 2 FEHGE —T-mELHA—H
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
FEBER S 2011-2013BHIZ FE e —ZE-MF+LA—H
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016
FEERE 2012-2014BH 7 FEBGE —ZT-R¥—-H—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
BBV HmEERN4 EERTERA —E-RF¥—H—H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Amendment

AR REEAOREEGS
HR28 2 1&7]
HKFRS 11 Amendment

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

REEZREBENRRAZERRZHANEELESLE

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

BBV HmEERN1 2EF] WEARKEREN DA —E-R"F—-HA—H
HKAS1 Amendment Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016
BB UERN 2 54T BB —F-xE—A-F

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Amendment

BEGTrEANCRE AT ARIZ8
pd |

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Amendment

EEGTEI6 RBEB G R4
pd

HKAS 27 Amendment

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

EBYTE R 2 AR S TE

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

B AEMEY

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

1 January 2016

—E—XRFE—AH—H

1 January 2016
—E—R"¥—HA—H

1 January 2016

B ERTER27 ZEFT B S Mk R A —E-RF—-HA—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017
BRI RELERNS KERFE 2 W —T—+%—-H—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
BRI HRE LR SHmIA —E-NF—-HA—H

90 e Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR

(iii)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards, amendments and interpretations
that have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 April 2014 and have not
been early adopted. (Continued)

The Group has commenced an assessment of the impact
of these new, amended and revised HKFRSs but is not
yet in a position to state whether they would have a
significant impact of its results of operations and financial
position.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 "Accounts and
Audit" of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation as from the Company's
first financial year commencing on or after 3 March
2014 in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of expected impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in the
period of initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and
only the presentation and the disclosure of information in
the consolidated financial statements will be affected.

(iii)
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2.2

e SRR MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made
up to 31 March.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amount of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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e SRR MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the income statement.
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e SRR MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary in the consolidated financial statements
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests,
the difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, a
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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BAFE AR MY RE

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
'share of profit of investments accounted for using equity
method' in the income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method.
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2.3

e SRR MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The group's investment in a
joint venture includes goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint
venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the group’s share of the net fair value of
the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments has
been identified as the Chief Executive Officer who makes
strategic decisions.

(d)

2.3

EESTHERBEE)

e (&)

BELBE(E)

RIEEDE  RAERAMERTIRK
R HHER > EREHBAERKRE
B WEERNBER MNEM A
MER  AEERGEQARNRERRE
WERRSFT R E - TR 2R
AR T AR DR - B R RIHAAHE
AEBEEZAERNANAIBNEER
BEMNFAFEZENEBARIISBE
2 BAKEREGERANEERS
REBHERZAZARANER(BRE
TRMERD  MaxRESEE LH
RASEERZEE R AR EFE —
M) AEETERIBE-TEE -
BRIEREEHSLEAREELRERD
REZRBELK -

AEBEESEAFERHHARERIK
DRAKRBREERANED SRY
o RIERZREMEREERME 2R
& BRRERERITIALHE - 5%
RAIMETBRECRFZELNE - L
FEIRELAN R B IR A A BURIREF — 2K -

LEDEARMEBEERRERBHA

TR BEBEEREE  BELERR
- REREED B RERRE
KB -

ARLEBMER AR —2015 F3R o 97



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

BAFE AR MY RE

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the income statement within ‘finance income or cost'.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the income statement within administrative expenses.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-
for-sale financial assets are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences relating to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the income
statement, and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in equity.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation difference on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equity held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the income statement as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation difference
on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are included
in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(iiiy all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.
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e SRR MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are
taken to shareholder’s equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in
the group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the group’s
ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that
do not result in the group losing significant influence or
joint control) the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in equity.
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2.5

2.6

e SRR MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Cost represents consideration paid for rights to use the
land on which various plants and buildings are situated.
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the
leases.

Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment, except for freehold
land and construction in progress (Note 2.7), are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Freehold land is stated at historical
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
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2.6

2.7

BAFE AR MY RE

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

No provision for depreciation is made on freehold land.
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as
finance lease

Shorter of remaining
period of the lease or

useful life

Building 2.5%

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining period
of the lease

Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture and other equipment 12.5% - 33.3%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of the reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. They are
included in the consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery, furniture and fixtures, office equipment and
leasehold improvements under construction. Construction
in progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of construction
and acquisition, and capitalised costs attributable to
the construction during the period of construction.
No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are transferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated in Note 2.6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.8

e SRR MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises leasehold land and
buildings. Land held under operating leases are classified
and accounted for as investment property when the
rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating leases are accounted for as if they were finance
leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are performed in accordance with Valuation
Standards on Properties issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and are reviewed annually by external
valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
the light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could
be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, others, including
contingent rent payments, are not recognised in the
financial statements.
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2.8

e SRR MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the period in which they are
incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income
statement.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share in net
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary or joint venture or associate at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of
joint ventures or associates is included in investments in
joint venture or associates and is tested for impairment
as part of the overall balance. Separately recognised
goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with definite useful lives and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate costs of other intangible
assets over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 20 years.

104 » Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2015

2.8

EESTHERBEE)

REWE ()

EZHB B RREBENmIRAARE
B N B A RER] SeRT H iy - HIRFA S
APAREBEERREE - A EMEER
FRERAOREELENHHBEBRRA
FIVERIS ©

ATFEEEIRIBSEDRA -

BEE

L
HEBRBENAEE RN EERKEBH
FEMRFTWEEHI B AR - A& AR KL

NEIRAI SR EEFEN R HEFRE - W
BRRmEBEREtABLEER - &
LRAIRBERRZWERETARA
LERRREINBERFRE - L HE
SOREHGERRBEASR — 8D - K
SESFABUER B ERE -
W AR RIERERB R - B2
FUREREEIEE - hEEBMWE R
EBREFARSHABERNHERE
18 -

AFERERR  BERIEERSE
RN - BHREBEHMEBNZE
ReELENSREEESBMHERNKE
DEREBE HELNHE

Hib\E & E

BREARAEAFHNEMETLEER
AR R AT MR E R R I AR -
Hi B EEABRER MG RS
R2ZE20F MK ERA D B bART E #3H -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS ER AR R

2

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, joint

ventures, associates, and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation, but are at least tested annually for
impairment. Assets which are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non financial assets other than goodwill that
were impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.11 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial
assets and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for those with maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of reporting date. These are classified
as non-current assets. Trade and other receivables are
classified as loans and receivables in the statement of

financial position (Note 2.13).

(c) Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
If the Group were to sell other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole
category would be tainted and reclassified as available-
for-sale financial assets. Held-to-maturity financial assets
are included in non-current assets, except for those
with maturities of less than 12 months from the end of

reporting date. These are classified as current assets.

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the investment within

12 months of the end of reporting date.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
financial assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the income statement
within other gains, net, in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale financial assets are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the securities and other changes in
the carrying amount of the securities. The translation
differences on monetary securities are recognised in
the income statement; translation differences on non-
monetary securities are recognized in equity. Changes in
the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income statement
as “gains and losses from investment securities”.
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the
income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income statement when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not
active (and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes
fair value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models,
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as
little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

The Group assesses at end of each reporting date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of
equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered an indicator
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the income statement. Impairment testing of
trade and other receivables is described in Note 2.13.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost comprises costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
selling expenses.

2.1
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade and other receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade and other
receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against administrative expenses in
the income statement.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

110 » Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2015

2.13

2.14

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS ER AR R

EESTHERBEE)

LSRR HEMEWRE

2R EMERRERTEA T ERE
B BRRIABBR A SR H SR A
B8 WAMRRERE - EXEH
IR BN A S BEAIRREWAREN R
KAGRKUWERFA B R5K - RIAREEME
fi U BR IRV BB R - BFS AM Y
ERMHANE - rlstmERRERERE
M RURRET BTN RS A AR
WD EURE LR ENTR - BE
HREEREERGBFRIRERER
RREBMEHFEZRERENEZR
BEREES BB BERBFER
MEBRANNBERANITHEBARE
R BEENEMBRERE KD
LR NMEMBUERNE N EERE Tl
B o AT E AR Y [E] 55 A5 R B BR K
JERBHRITTIE AR o

RERREEFHEER
RekReSEERREFERS R
TBAER KRR =EARNERZ
FEEmRBERE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where the Company purchases its equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income
taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company's equity holders.

2.16 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date in the countries where the Company, its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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e B RS ER AR R

2 ERSBRABEGE)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.17 BN RR SR 7H (4]

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise
lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a

whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.19 Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a

subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.19 Discontinued operation (Continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented in the consolidated income
statement, which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of
the discontinued operation and the post-tax gain or loss
recognized on the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.

2.20 Revenue recognition

(iii)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax and discounts, and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration of the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of food and beverages
Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the income
statement at the point of sale to customers.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Royalty and franchise income

Royalty and franchise income are recognised on an
accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Management and service fee income
Management and service fee income is recognised when
services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.21 Employee benefits

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments
are recognised as a liability when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected
to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.
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2 ERSBRABEGE)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

221 EERF (&)
(iii) RASEA

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes. The
schemes are generally funded through payments to
insurance companies or trustee-administered funds,
determined by periodic actuarial calculations. The Group
has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is
not a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans
typically define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability or asset recognised in the statement of
financial position in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of
plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised
past-service costs. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in
the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in full in the period in which they occur,
outside the income statement, in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the
income statement, unless the changes to the pension plan
are conditional on the employees remaining in service
for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this
case, the past-service costs are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments to its employees upon the termination of their
employment or retirement when the employee fulfills
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit method, discounted to present value and reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the
Group. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date
on high quality corporate bonds which have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the
period in which they occur, outside the income statement,
in the statement of comprehensive income.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans under which the Group
receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments of the Company. These plans comprise
share option schemes and a share award scheme. The
fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options or shares
granted as at the date of grant: (i) including any market
performance conditions; (ii) excluding the impact of any
service and non- market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth targets); and (iii)
including the impact of any non-vesting conditions. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options or shares that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options or shares that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiaries undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investments in
subsidiaries undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.22 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease,
the assets are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position based on the nature of the assets.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

2.24 Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. The Group does not recognise
liabilities for financial guarantees at inception, but
performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting date
by comparing its net liability regarding the financial
guarantee with the amount that would be required if
the financial guarantee to result in a present legal or
constructive obligation. If the liability is less than its
present legal or constructive obligation amount, the
entire difference is recognised in the income statement
immediately.
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e B RS ER AR R

3.1

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no hedging
activities are undertaken by management.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and North America and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Chinese Renminbi (“RMB"), United States
("US") dollar and Canadian dollar. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Management has a policy to require group companies
to manage their foreign exchange risks against their
respective functional currencies. It mainly includes
managing the exposures arisen from sales and purchases
made by relevant group companies in currencies other
than their own functional currencies. The Group also
manages its foreign exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign exchange exposure.
The Group has not used any hedging arrangement to
hedge its foreign exchange risk exposure.

As the assets and liabilities of each company within
the Group are mainly denominated in the respective
company’s functional currency, the directors are of the
opinion that the Group’s volatility of its profits against
changes in exchange rates of foreign currencies would
not be significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS ER AR R

3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for bank deposits and debt securities, the income
and operating cash flows of which are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk mainly arises from bank deposits and
debt securities at variable interest rates which are subject
to cash flow interest rate risk. The directors are of the
opinion that any reasonable changes in interest rates
would not result in a significant change in the Group’s
results. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented for
interest rate risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because
investments held by the Group are classified on the
consolidated statement of financial position either as
available-for-sale financial assets or financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. The Group has not mitigated
its price risk arising from these financial assets.

For the Group’s financial assets that are publicly traded,
the fair value is determined with reference to quoted
market prices. For the Group’s financial assets that are
not publicly traded, the Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
reporting date.

As at 31 March 2015, if the price of the listed securities
(available-for-sale financial assets) has increased/decreased
by 10% with all other variables being held constant,
the Group’s investment reserve would have increased/
decreased by HK$35,515,000 (2014: HK$52,252,000).

B EREERE)

Bt ¥ E bR & ()

FE A
AEBELEEANTLAE  FIER
REERS  MRBARNEERSHE
KB ETENBAEEDYE -

NEEBREZR/IBASRINEEARE
ERNFBHNNENRITERRES - EF
RREASENNXEEHER T AELH AR
SEXBEBREATE - Bt - FIXME
RHSURED T T2 IR -
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RZE—RAFE=ZA=+—H " M LrmEHE
HF(AIHEESRHEE)F,B10% M
FTEEMAEREXRFETE  NEEN
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3.1
(d)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
mainly arises from bank balances and deposits, rental
deposits, debt securities and trade and other receivables.
The carrying amount of these balances in the statement
of financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

Majority of the Group’s bank balances and, deposits and
derivative financial instruments are placed in those banks
and financial institutions which are independently rated
with high credit ratings. Management does not expect
any losses from non-performance by these banks and
financial institutions as they have no default history in the
past.

The credit quality of the landlords and debtors is assessed
based on the financial position of the landlords as well
as past experience of the Group in dealing with the
respective landlords. The Group has policies in place
to ensure rental deposits are placed to landlords with
appropriate credit histories and credit terms are granted
to reliable debtors. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of deposits and receivables falls within recorded
allowance and the directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible receivable has been
made.

There is no concentration of credit risk as the Group's
bank balances and deposits were mainly deposited in over
ten financial institutions with good credit ratings, and the
Group has a large number of counterparties for rental
deposits, trade and other receivables. Management does
not expect any losses from non- performance by these
financial institutions and counterparties.
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3.2

e SRR MR

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available credit facilities. The Group
continues to maintain a healthy net cash position by
keeping credit lines available and to maintain flexibility in
future funding.

The Group's primary cash requirements are payments for
trade and other payables and operating expenses. The
Group mainly finances its working capital requirements
through internal resources.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash balances and adequate credit facilities to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long-term.

As at 31 March 2015, all of the Group’s financial
liabilities were due within 12 months and equal their
carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Total capital of the Group is calculated as “capital
and reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company” less total borrowings, if any. Management
considers that the Group's capital risk is minimal as there
is no borrowings as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March
2015.

3.2
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The difference levels have
been defined as follows:

e  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2015:

3.3

B EREERE)

AR EEERE
TERMABEEITRATEARSS
BMTE - TRBROESENT :

e RBEENBBEEEENS LR
BORERHE) (F—4&) -

o WIFHAFE—HRAMRE  HEATE
B (ENpI B 7% ) mEE(BRa E
BIBRNEESBENRAESE
) e

o WIHMKERBRNTSHEENEE
B &R AE(BNIEr EREA)
=K

AEER-_Z—AF=A=1+—HEKARQ
TEAENEMEESRIIN TX

Level 1 Level 2 Total
E—R EZR st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHESREE
— Listed investments - FhEE 355,147 - 355,147
Derivative financial instruments PTEERT A - 39,838 39,838
Total financial assets measured at BATEFEHS R
fair value BERR 355,147 39,838 394,985
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AN o =
e MR MR
3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 B EEMBRERE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AV EMLE (&)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets REBR-_ZTE-—MF=A=+—RHEKA
that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2014: FEFAENEMEEIRIINTE
Level 1 Level 2 Total
& -t 1 et
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TF#ET FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AItHESREE
— Listed investments - & 522,516 - 522,516
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIEAE - 15,844 15,844
Total financial assets measured at BAFETFEN SR
fair value BERTE 522,516 15,844 538,360
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active HERMERSZNEMTE - HQFE
markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting W& MG E R - MRREAE
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are AR Z - X P08 - KL
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, XRNAL TERBEXEEHBE
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory 7 MxEFREAREKRATFRZEREE
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly THEBRMERMSER 58 &mEHa
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis. WARREE - WETREMNAE R -
These instruments are included in level 1.
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%i&?%%{ﬁ%ﬂlﬁﬂ’?ﬂﬁ
in an active market is determined by using valuation BERFIAEERITET - FEXTRE
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the FIRREBERMSHE  BREDKEEE
use of observable market data where it is available and MARFEMRET - WEMTANAFERTE
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all BRIRARE  ARemTAIASZ
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are A o
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on m—EXZEERH ABLIFERAE
observable market data, the instrument is included in ROMISEE HWETARNAE=
level 3. A o
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3.3

(a)

(b)

BAFE AR MY RE

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The carrying values less impairment provision of trade
and other receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments. There were no transfers
between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units (“CGU") have been determined based
on higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use
determined using the discounted cash flow method.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights and
intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land
use rights, and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on the higher of value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs to sell calculations. The
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.
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(b)

(c)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights and
intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could affect the net present value used
in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill). The estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets (other than goodwill) of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation
and amortisation charges where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives. It will write off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a
change in depreciable and amortisable lives and therefore
affect the depreciation and amortisation charges in future
periods.
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(d)

(e)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Impairment of investments in associates
and joint ventures and amounts due from
joint ventures

The Group makes provision for impairment of investments
in associates and joint ventures and amounts due from
joint ventures based on an assessment of the future
economic benefits of the investments which will flow to
the Group and the collectability of the amounts due from
joint ventures. The identification of provisions requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of investments in associates and
joint ventures and amounts due from joint ventures in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. The Group
recognises liabilities or anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

The Group also has significant tax losses carried forward
not recognised as deferred income tax assets. Deferred
income tax assets in respect of tax losses are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

No deferred income tax assets are recognised when it
is uncertain whether there are sufficient future taxable
profits available before such tax losses expire where the
final outcome of these uncertainties are different from
the estimation, such differences will impact the carrying
amount of deferred income tax assets in the period in
which such determination is made.
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(f)

(9)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets

The fair values of financial assets that are traded in an
active market are determined by the quoted market
prices.

For fair values of financial assets not traded in an active
market, the methodologies, models, assumptions used in
determining the fair value of financial assets not traded
in an active market and derivative financial instruments
require judgement, which are mainly based on market
conditions existing at each reporting date.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value
with changes in the fair values recognised in income
statement. The Group obtains independent valuations at
least annually. At the end of each reporting period, the
management update their assessment of the fair value
of each property, taking into account the most recent
independent valuations.

(f)

(9)
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(h)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans under which the Group
receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments of the Company. These plans comprise
share option schemes and a share award scheme. The
fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options or shares
granted as at the date of grant: (i) including any market
performance conditions; (ii) excluding the impact of any
service and non- market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth targets); and (iii)
including the impact of any non-vesting conditions. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options or shares that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options or shares that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of quick
service restaurants and institutional catering, fast casual
and casual dining chains, as well as food processing and
distribution business.
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REN(E)

AREBEFANITE RIEAIHRE A B

5 Segment Information (Continued) 5

The Chief Executive Officer of the Group reviews the

Group’s internal reporting in order to allocate resources BIR - UpiERs - BERE - FE
amongst different segments. He assesses the business Wb =M - PARHAE L E AR - B
principally from a geographical perspective including Tz BEERKBRNE - BB - 47

Hong Kong, Mainland China and North America. Segment E BELREBRAZEERN -
result as presented below represents operating profit
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and

impairment loss.

NEBARFEEMEBEFTHDBERE
FET

Segment information for the Group for the current year
and comparative figures are as follows:

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
&L
BERSEEK REER
Mainland North
Hong Kong China Total America Group
5B FEIRM st L EM F5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET TET TET TET
- 1]
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE2-ZT—1F
A=t HLEFEE
Total segment revenue ﬁ"\iﬁﬂﬁ/\ 6,134,621 1,339,465 7,474,086 104,235 7,578,321
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) Hn il () (10,805) (107,543) (118,348) = (118,348)
Revenue (from external revenue) Uik (R B MR U R )

(Note ii) (Hiaii) 6,123,816 1,231,922 7,355,738 104,235 7,459,973
Segment result (Note jii) AEEE (M i) 927,613 83,169 1,010,782 (2,926) 1,007,856
Depreciation and amortisation e R 220,692 68,118 288,810 9,562 298,372
Impairment loss of trademark ERZRERE 65 = 65 = 65
Impairment loss of property, plant — #1% - = M&EZ

and equipment FEEE 4,192 10,006 14,198 = 14,198
Finance income BBRA 11,540 5,716 17,256 99 17,355
Share of profit of an associate JEEEE DTN E T - - - 215 215
Share of loss of a joint venture JEEEENTER (5,434) - (5,434) - (5,434)
Loss on disposal of business HEXEEIE - - - 4,700 4,700
Income tax expense/(credit) FEHER,/(EM) 112,118 4,933 117,051 (1,854) 115,197

RREE

BEAR AR — 2015 Fik
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 SEERGE)
Segment information for the Group for the current year AEBAFEMLEBRE TN EERZ
and comparative figures are as follows: (Continued) FIEAT : (48)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
[=5-J1s
Mainland North
Hong Kong China Total America Group
Bk ] A s st LEM FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
-]
Year ended 31 March 2014 HE-Z—mMF
“A=t+—HLEFE
Total segment revenue Bl 5,592,414 1,346,001 6,938,415 164,209 7,102,624
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) W R (M et (3,231) (108,930) (112,161) - (112,161)
Revenue (from external revenue) Wz (kB oheplzs)
(Note ii) (Bf32ii) 5,589,183 1,237,071 6,826,254 164,209 6,990,463
Segment result (Note iii) AEEE (M i) 885,003 116,400 1,001,403 675 1,002,078
Depreciation and amortisation rE R 191,256 66,346 257,602 16,200 273,802
Impairment loss of goodwill BEZREBSE - - - 45,979 45,979
Impairment loss of property, plant — #1% - = M&EZ
and equipment BEEE - - - 2,784 2,784
Finance income IR 8,525 4,175 12,700 289 12,989
Share of profit of an associate FE(REE 2 R BEF - - - 213 213
Share of loss of joint ventures RN NGt (3,882) (76) (3,958) - (3,958)
Income tax expense/(credit) FERiER,/(EMn) 98,251 12,171 110,422 (3,745) 106,677
() Inter-segment transactions were entered into in the (i) ANEPEXZGN—KREHBREZRE]
normal course of business. JE °©

(i) The Group has a large number of customers. For the (il AEEBERAHENEE - REZE
year ended 31 March 2015, no revenue was derived ZE-RF=A=1+—RHILFE -
from transactions with a single external customer WARBHEE —INIBERE IR PEE
representing 10% or more of the Group's total HAREE0%KE Za AW -
revenue.
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 SEERGE)
(i) Reconciliation of total segment results to total profit (i) BOEEERERAAGHEIIRN A
before income tax is as follows: HERIT -

Group

A EE
2015 2014
—E-—FE —ET—-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Continuing operations HEREEK
Segment results DIEELE 1,010,782 1,001,403
Depreciation and amortisation ERE#H (288,810) (257,602)
Impairment loss of trademark IR 2 BB (65) -
Impairment loss of property, plant and #1% - BiE k& 2 RiEEE
equipment (14,198) -
Operating profit EIE R A 707,709 743,801
Finance income B AU A 17,256 12,700
Share of loss of joint ventures E(h& & RREE (5,434) (3,958)
Profit before income tax B FT 1S 35 A g A 719,531 752,543
Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FETT FEr
Discontinued operation EARIEEEEL
Segment results 2k (2,926) 675
Depreciation and amortisation YrE LY (9,562) (16,200)
Impairment loss of goodwill EE 2 RERE = (45,979)
Impairment loss of property, plant and #% - BiE k& 2 R EEE
equipment = (2,784)
Operating loss EEEE (12,488) (64,288)
Finance income B A 99 289
Share of profit of an associate FE(HERE N R 215 213
Income tax credit P B0 1,854 3,745
Loss on disposal of business & E B EE (4,700) -
Loss for the year from discontinued REDRIEEEEBHFNER
operation (15,020) (60,041)
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 ZEERGE)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
2L
Mainland North
Hong Kong China Total America Group
0 HE Rt #st =M r&EE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET AT FET

Year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2-Z—1F
ZA=+—BLIFE
Segment assets NEEEE 3,319,437 822,088 4,141,525 - 4,141,525
Segment assets include: ’\ﬁ;ﬁF@% :
Investment in an associate REg2 N AR E 1,195 - 1,195 = 1,195
Additions to non-current assets AREERDEE(SR
(other than financial instruments T EREERTELE
and deferred income tax assets) BAN) 373,503 88,485 461,988 = 461,988
Year ended 31 March 2014 HE-_T—MF
ZA=1+—BLIFE
Segment assets DEEE 3,028,204 835,457 3,863,661 139,117 4,002,778
Segment assets include: AEEERE:
Investment in an associate REFERNRIRE - - - 1,190 1,190
Investment in a joint venture REBRAIKRE 19,772 - 19,772 - 19,772
Additions to non-current assets NEFRHDEE (SR
(other than financial instruments TARELEHRBEEE
and deferred income tax assets) BRAM) 323,119 63,225 386,344 6,153 392,497

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s non-current assets (other
than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets)
that are located in Hong Kong, the Mainland China
and North America amounted to HK$2,120,770,000

(2014: HK$2,028,096,000),

HK$453,300,000 (2014:

HK$459,529,000) and Nil (2014: HK$81,710,000),

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -
e SRR M EE

5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 SEERGE)
Reconciliation of total segment assets to total assets is Mo EEREEENHRNOT

provided as follows:

Group
REH
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FETL
I
Total segment assets Mo EE 4,141,525 4,002,778
Deferred income tax assets RIETRIBE E 25,955 26,562
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHESREE 355,147 522,516
Financial assets at fair value through BATEIABRZ EBMEE
profit or loss 39,838 15,844
Total assets BEE 4,562,465 4,567,700
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6 Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights 6 HELHELHFEARE

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use AEERHEE T R T AN ER
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and EENKEHERBREERFE 2
their net book values are analysed as follows: IR UNNE
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—F-I1F —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
F&T F&T
In Hong Kong, held on: EEERE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10250F 49 48,612 50,113
Outside Hong Kong, held on: TEEBRINEA ¢
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E=50F 49 39,774 41,267
88,386 91,380
Group
TEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FAEEH 91,380 94,411
Amortisation of leasehold land and land THE b S e A
use rights (3,011) (3,017)
Exchange differences X =58 17 (14)
End of the year FIEERR 88,386 91,380
Amortisation expense of HK$3,011,000 (2014: B$H5143,011,0008 T ( — T — 4 -
HK$3,017,000) has been charged to cost of sales. 3,017,000/ 7C) BT ASHERA -
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7 Property, Plant and Equipment 7 ME- - BERSZE
Group
58
Land and Furniture
buildings Leasehold and other Plant and ~ Construction-
(Note b) improvements  equipment  machinery in-progress Total
1HRET
(fih) HERTEE FAREMRE BERHE HRIR #E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TEL TET TET TEL TET TET

At 31 March 2013 RZE-=F=A=1-H
Cost KR 702,679 936,344 1,294,215 95,920 393,066 3,422,224
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERAERE

impairment losses (140,871) (585,868) (981,888) (41,167) - (1,749,794)
Net book amount REFE 561,808 350,476 312,327 54,753 393,066 1,672,430
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE_Z-NF=RA=1-AIFE
Opening net book amount EOREFE 561,808 350,476 312,37 54,753 393,066 1,672,430
Additions NE 9,633 145,032 128,771 43,378 1,062 327876
Disposals e - (7,077) (5,842) (130) - (13,049)
Depreciation ik (22,303 (106,393) (118,826) (14,513) - (262,055)
Impairment e - (2,088) (696) - - (2,784)
Transfer L=y 363,041 - - 31,087 (394,128) -
Exchange differences EiEE (36) (1,204) (768) 4 - (2,094)
Closing net book amount EREETE 912,123 378,656 314,966 114,579 - 1,720,324
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=1+-H
Cost A 1,075,186 1,014,130 1,315,658 169,075 - 3,574,049
Accurnulated depreciation and ZRNELFERE

impairment losses (163,063) (635,474)  (1,000,692) (54,49) - (1,853,725)
Net book amount FEFE 912,123 378,656 314,966 114,579 - 1,720,324
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7 Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

Land and
buildings
(Note b)
1HREF
(Hizth)
HKS$'000
TET

7 Y% BEEKEGE)

Leasehold
improvements

HK$ 000
T

BEETEE SARAMRE

Group
158
Furniture
and other Plant and Construction-
equipment  machinery  in-progress Total
BER#E EEIE an
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000
TET TET TET TET

Year ended 31 March 2015 HE-Z-RE-R=1-HI%FE

Opening net book amount ENREEE 912,123 378,656 314,966 114,579 - 1720324
Additions FE 6,383 176,100 186,961 24,700 - 394,144
Disposals il (29,728) (6,780) (7,487) (95) - (44,090)
Disposal of business (Note 19) mEER(HH19) - (15,583) (8,195) - - (23,778)
Depreciation & (22,880)  (117,781)  (131,549) (17,606) - (289816)
Impairment Wi - (10,995) (2,611) (592) - (14,198)
Exchange differences ERES 70 (3,378) (1,606) (11) = (4,925)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 865,968 400,239 350,479 120,975 - 1,737,661
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RE=A=+-F
Cost B 1,009491 1037339 1,366,799 191,935 - 3645564
Accumulated depreciation and ZRNERNERE

impairment losses (18353)  (637,100)  (1,016,320) (70,960) - (1907903)
Net book amount FEFE 865968 400239 350479 120,975 - 737,661
(a) Depreciation expenses of HK$275,428,000 (2014: (@) #r & B 275,428,000 T( —

HK$249,809,000) and HK$14,388,000 (2014:
HK$12,246,000) has been charged to cost of sales
and administrative expenses, respectively, while
impairment loss has been charged to other gains,
net (Note 27).
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e B RS ERAR MR

7 Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

(b) The Group’s land and buildings are analysed as
follows:

Y% - BB K&k (E)

(b)

AEBE L MEFOMMAT

Group

REE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T&T T

Net book value: RENFE -
Freehold land KA T 14,811 14,811
Leasehold land classified as HMETHOEAMENRE
finance lease 256,832 284,004
Buildings BF 594,325 613,308
865,968 912,123

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group’s
freehold land was located outside Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s leasehold land
with net book value of HK$256,832,000 (2014:
HK$284,004,000) was located in Hong Kong under
the following leases:

REFR -_ZE—RER_-_ZT—NFE
ZA=ZT B ERKRAERES
AT R BRI

REBR -_T—RHF=ZA=+—
HFF#ENEE L MEDEE
256,832,000/ jT( =& — IO 4 -
284,004,000/ 7T ) i & & 78 #Y M
ESHT -

Group
TEE
2015 2014
—E-AF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Leases of over 50 years S50F LA FFEAY 23,681 50,067
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 102 50F 4y 233,151 233,937
256,832 284,004
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e B RS ERAR MR

8 Investment Properties

8 REWR
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-AE —E-mE
HK$'000 HK$000
TFET FET

Beginning of the year FHEEH 439,600 385,000
Fair value gain (Note 27) N EWE(HF27) 38,800 54,600
End of the year FRER 478,400 439,600

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by CBRE Limited (the “Valuer”),
to determine the fair value of the investment properties
as at 31 March 2015 and 2014. Fair value gain has been
charged to other gains, net (Note 27).

The Group's interests in investment properties at their net
book values are analysed as follows:

REBHEYZEHRCBRE Limited ([{4E
B )ETBYEE UBFREWER
—E-RFRZF-WMF=A=+—H
AT E - AFEREETAEMFUR
= (fHaE27) o

AEBEREY R 2 ERIEEREFE
DT -

Group

#EE
2015 2014
—E-R%F —E—-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET T

In Hong Kong, held on: EEBRE -
Leases of over 50 years S0 EFEA 148,000 137,000
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 102=50F 49 330,400 302,600
478,400 439,600
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8

Investment Properties (Continued) 8 REYWXE(E)
The following table analyses the investment properties TERMNABBMEZZRATFESITKEYD
carried at fair value, by valuation method. E

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2015 using

R-B-RF=A=t-HZAVEFBAAEA

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for other observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
EREETER Hitt rBEN FABEMN
™% EHNBRE EXBAE EXBAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(F—%&) (B=%) (B=#%)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET TET

Description i

Recurring fair value measurements &F R F(EE
Investment properties: KEWE
- Shops - Hong Kong -BE-BE = = 478,400

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2014 using

REB-—NEZR=+—AZAVEFEFRFER

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for other observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
BEEERER HittrBEn FABER
Wi EHERE E-pN PN EXBAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(F—-&) (B8=8) (B=H)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET FET

Description i

Recurring fair value measurements & ® 1A FEHE

Investment properties: wEME

— Shops - Hong Kong -5 - - 439,600
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AEEBRANEMF B EREBE
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date EZBREBREHE AR FEER
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the M A RS -
transfer.
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during FA-FE—R F_RARE=REHE
the year. B o
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Investment Properties (Continued)

Valuation process of the Group

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at
31 March 2015 has been determined on the basis of
a valuation prepared in accordance with the “HKIS
Valuation Standards on Properties (2012 Edition)”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, RICS
Valuation — Professional Standards of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and the International Valuation
Standards (IVS).

Valuation technique

Fair value is defined as “the estimated amount for which
an asset or liability should exchange on the valuation date
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-
length transaction after proper marketing and where the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.”

Under the sales comparison method, fair value of the
investment property is derived from comparing the
property to be valued directly with other comparable
properties, which have recently transacted. However,
given the heterogeneous nature of the properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for
any qualitative differences that may affect the price likely
to be achieved by the property under consideration. The
most significant impact into this valuation approach is
price per square meter.

There was no change to the valuation technique with
that of prior year.

The Group’s management reviews the valuation
performed by independent valuer and holds discussion
of the valuation processes and results are held with the
independent qualified valuer once a year for financial
reporting purpose.
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e SRR M EE

9 Intangible Assets 9 BIEEE
Group
AEE
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
HE HEREE HE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FWMA—H
Cost BN 116,795 195,872 312,667
Accumulated amortisation and ZIEE MR EEE
impairment losses (65,662) (135,426) (201,088)
Closing net book amount FRIEMFE 51,133 60,446 111,579
Year ended 31 March 2014 HE-_Z—MF
—A=+t—HLFE
Opening net book amount FYEEFE 51,133 60,446 111,579
Amortisation expense HiEER - (8,730) (8,730)
Impairment loss BEEE (45,979) - (45,979)
Exchange differences PE 5 =% (4,050) (4,403) (8,453)
Closing net book amount FRIRMmFE 1,104 47,313 48,417
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NFE=A=+—H
Cost AR 107,428 185,616 293,044
Accumulated amortisation and R LR EREE
impairment losses (106,324) (138,303) (244,627)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 1,104 47,313 48,417
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9 Intangible Assets (Continued) 9 EIEE(HE)
Group
rEH
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
e HuEREE M
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F#ET FH#ET F#ET
-]
Year ended 31 March 2015 (BT —HF
ZRA=+—HILFE
Opening net book amount FHRMEFE 1,104 47,313 48,417
Additions NE = 1,157 1,157
Amortisation expense (Note (a)) I E R (M EE) - (5,545) (5,545)
Disposal of business (Note 19) HEEB(AaE19) = (39,825) (39,825)
Impairment loss RIEEE = (65) (65)
Exchange differences fE 5 =% - (2,007) (2,007)
Closing net book amount FRERMEFE 1,104 1,028 2,132
At 31 March 2015 RZE—hEFE=A=+—8H
Cost AR 1,350 70,365 71,715
Accumulated amortisation and ZREEE MOREEE
impairment losses (246) (69,337) (69,583)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 1,104 1,028 2,132

(@) Amortisation expense of HK$5,545,000 (2014: (a) 5,545,000/ 7C(=Z— U4 : 8,730,000
HK$8,730,000) has been charged to administrative BT ZEEERCOATHRER M
expenses, while impairment loss has been charged to BEBED T AR FE KR (H5E27) -
other gains, net (Note 27).

(b) Other intangible assets mainly represent trademarks, (b) EtEREETSBIEEIZ EFER
franchise rights and favourable lease agreements arising RUENE AR SEENNEESL
from acquisition of subsidiaries with useful lives of 2 to HEFRFIA2E20%F -

20 years.
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9 Intangible Assets (Continued) 9 EEEE(E)

(c) Impairment tests for goodwill (c) EERERR
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units HMENEBRAEENKLEBHR(RER
(CGUs) identified according to country of operation. SEEBMHA) DB
A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is FESEHNDERHEZRAT -

presented below.

2015 2014

—E-RF —EZ-0mF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FEIT
T
Hong Kong &5 1,104 1,104
The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based REEFEMNATKEISE RO T
on the higher of (i) fair value less costs to sell and (ii) EREEXRARGVABRBRE REE
value in use determined using the discounted cash flow ZEAEE URSERE - B@NES
method. The calculations of the recoverable amounts of ReELEMNAINESEIIREAAD

the CGUs in Hong Kong were determined with reference FEBHEKRATE -

to their fair value less costs to sell.
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10 Investments in Subsidiaries and 10 M A RIRE K& e B
Amount Due from Subsidiaries — RERE-ERQF
Company

2015 2014
—E-RHF —E-QmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Non-current FERED
Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMRMIEE - LR 331,802 331,802
Amounts due from subsidiaries ARy NGIE /] 1,134,984 1,036,324
1,466,786 1,368,126
Current E
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U B B A RIZRIE 4,909 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and non- FEW B AT R BEAEERERE o B
interest bearing. Except for the amount due from a JE W — RS T /8 A B) 2k 184,909,000 7T
subsidiary of HK$4,909,000, all the balances of amounts N - FEURHT B A B IE 2 2B H
due from subsidiaries are not repayable in the next twelve BARE+—EBARNESE -
months.
The directors are of the opinion that the underlying BEEDANBATZEREBEY DR
values of the subsidiaries were not less than their carrying —E-—FE=—RB=+—HEEE-

values as at 31 March 2015.
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10 RHB A RIREREWHE
REFRE-A2F (F)

10 Investments in Subsidiaries and
Amount Due from Subsidiaries —
Company (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 TREWAR-_E—RHF=ZA=1+—HH
March 2015: TEMBARER
Place of incorporation/ Issued/
establishment and registered
operation capital  Class of Percentage of
Name of subsidiary HMARL B R 217/  shares held shares held"  Principal activities
MERARERE REHY EfRA  ERGERN  AERABIL  EEXB
Ah Yee Leng Tong Restaurants Limited Hong Kong HK$600,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
f—EAERAR 5 600,000/ Ll #R
Amigo Mio Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
EE 2087 & #R
Ashlone Limited Hong Kong HK$1,320,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
B 1,320,000 Ll #E
Asia Pacific Catering Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RERRBRRT EE 2087 EW #R
Bamburgh Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
EE 2087 EB BR
Barson Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
BHERBRLA aE 10,0007  Ei#® MERE
Bloomcheer Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BEBRRA BE 500,000/  Eil HR
Bravo le Café Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
30 BT LR R
Brilliantwin Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BEBERAA BE 28T L@ #R
Café de Coral Assets Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
HBHERHS EZ. -+ REZMR
Café de Coral Central Processing Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Food processing
0 2087 EB® RYEE
Café de Coral (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$40,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
REE(FE)BRAF Eit 40,000,000 Ll RAER
Café de Coral Development Limited' British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
EBHRES [EI 3 i KA
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10 RSB A RREREWHE
REFE-A2F (F)

10 Investments in Subsidiaries and
Amount Due from Subsidiaries —
Company (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued/

establishment and registered

operation capital  Class of Percentage of
Name of subsidiary MRS AR 8%/  shares held shares held"  Principal activities
WEAREHE Fd=pib HMREA RGOS FEROBEIL  TEXRR
Café de Coral Fast Food Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
REREREFB AT EE 2087 EB R
Café de Coral Group Limited Hong Kong HK$148,923,550  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RRECEARAF 0 148,923,550  E@ R
Café de Coral (Guangzhou) Catering The People’s Republic HK$21,000,000 - 100%  Catering

Company Limited of China (“The PRC") 21,000,00087C - #BR

RRE(BN)RARARAF hEARLME([FE])
Café de Coral (Macau) Limited Macau MOP300,000  Ordinary 70%  Catering
RERLECEP)BRAF BF 300,0002F9L  Ei@ R
Café de Espressamente illy (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$12,000,000  Ordinary 70%  Catering

EiE 12,000,000t E#& HR
City Energy Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000  Ordinary 100% Property investment
Bl BRAR 0 200,000  Ei@ MERE
Dai Lo Foo (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,804,176  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RER(EH)BRAF EE 1,804,176/E7L  EAE R
Diners Court Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
ZEGEEBERAT EE 28T BB BRE
Dongguan Asia Pacific Catering Company The PRC HK$7,400,000 - 100%  Catering

Limited FE 7,400,000 - KR

REZTRRBERAF
Dongguan Continental Foods Limited The PRC RMB27,330,000 - 100%  Food processing
REBERRARAA H ARH27,330,000T - RWAEE
Eldoon Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering

B 10,0007T  Ei@ R
Exo Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 Ordinary 100% Catering

B 4,000,000 &\ R
Fine Regent Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100% Catering
REEBERLA Bt BT BB SR
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10 Investments in Subsidiaries and 10 ARMTEB QTR E R EWHE
Amount Due from Subsidiaries - NERE—-ARRQTE)(E)

Company (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued/
establishment and registered
operation capital  Class of Percentage of
Name of subsidiary MRS AR 8%/  shares held shares held"  Principal activities
MR DR & R EfRA  EROERN  AEROBIN  EEXB
Foshan Café de Coral Catering Company The PRC HK$6,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Limited HE 6,000,000 - AR
BILARERRBRAT
Foshan Fortunate Spaghetti House The PRC HK$3,200,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited FE 3,200,000 - BR
BILTREENEERERAR
Gateway City Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
30 08T LB KR
Global Force Limited Hong Kong HK$12,466,446  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BEERRA BE 12,466,446870 L@ R
Goodton Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
BREREARNF B 10,0007T L@ REER
Grand Regent China Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
REFEERADF EE 28T BB REER
Grand Seasons (Central) Food and Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Beverages Caterers Company Limited B 10,0007 L@ KR
Greatpower Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100%  Catering
REEEBRDA EE (VI 5 SR
Greenwise Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
HEBRRA &k 28T EB #R
Guangzhou Asia Catering Management The PRC HK$2,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Limited g 2,000,00087m - 8-
BMZEERERERAA
Guangzhou Asia Pacific Catering Company ~ The PRC HK$16,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Limited HE 16,000,000/ 7T - R
BNZERREBRAF
Guangzhou Café de Coral Foods Limited The PRC US$23,500,000 - 100%  Food processing
BENARERREXABR AR i 23,500,000%7T - RWAEE
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Company (Continued)

REFRE-A2F (F)

Place of incorporation/ Issued/

establishment and registered

operation capital  Class of Percentage of
Name of subsidiary MRS AR 8%/  shares held shares held"  Principal activities
WEAREHE Fd=pib HMREA RGOS FEROBEIL  TEXRR

Guangzhou Fortunate Spaghetti House The PRC HK$3,200,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited FE 3,200,00087L - BE
BMEEENEERBRAF
Honour Congee & Noodles Food Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
HFERMERAT B 28T BB BRE
Huizhou Asia Pacific Catering Company The PRC HK$3,200,000 - 100%  Catering
Limited e 3,200,00087T - KR
BMZEHRRERAT
Interface Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1  Ordinary 100%  Provision of royalty
HEGEREE =T ER services
RESITERS
Invol Resources Limited Hong Kong HK$6,125,000  Ordinary 100% Property investment
BERERERERATE (incorporation)/ 6,125,000/ L@ MEERE
The PRC (operation)
EEGHR) HE(EE)
Jetstar Universal Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100%  Catering
RERNERDA EE BT EB #R
Jiangmen Café de Coral Catering The PRC HK$5,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited i 5,000,000 - R
IPIAREFRARAT
Kamstar International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100%  Catering
SERBBRAERAR e VBT ER 4
Kater International Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BEERERAF AR 28T BB SR
Kolink Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Leasing of premises
B CEERAR H4 28T LB space
HENRULE
Luckyview Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100% Investment holding
HRGCEBRAA HiE BT ER REER
Maradona Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100% Investment holding
Hit 08T EB REER
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10 Investments in Subsidiaries and 10 ARMTEB QTR E R EWHE
Amount Due from Subsidiaries - NERE—-ARRQTE)(E)

Company (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued/
establishment and registered
operation capital  Class of Percentage of
Name of subsidiary MRS AR 8%/  shares held shares held"  Principal activities
WEAREHE Fd=pib HMREA RGOS FEROBEIL  TEXRR
Paramount Success Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
ERBRATE EE 2B EBR R
Perfect Plan International Limited British Virgin Islands us$1 Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
HEERRES 1ET EB REER
Real King Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100%  Catering
&k BT B R
Regal Universal Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100%  Catering
HERRERAT B BT El $E
Scanfoods Limited Hong Kong HK$2,100,000  Ordinary 100%  Food trading
LEERRAERAF EE 2,100,000  E@& RmES
Shanghai Arena Catering Management The PRC HK$25,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Limited F 25,000,000 - R
PEEEERERER AR
Shenzhen Asia Catering Management The PRC HK$2,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Limited H 2,000,000 - HE
Rz EERERBRAF
Shenzhen Café de Coral Catering The PRC HK$12,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited HE 12,000,000 - #R
RIKRZERRBR A
Shenzhen Prime Deal Catering Company The PRC HK$32,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Limited HE 32,000,000 - R
REERR BB AT
Shenzhen Spaghetti House Catering The PRC HK$6,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited FE 6,000,000 - 4
AIFEEENEERBRRT
Silver Weal Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100%  Catering
BHECEXERAF HiE BT BB 8
Sparango Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
HiE 20T EB REER
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Company (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued/

establishment and registered

operation capital  Class of Percentage of
Name of subsidiary MRS AR 8%/  shares held shares held"  Principal activities
WEAREHE Fd=pib HMREA RGOS FEROBEIL  TEXRR
The Spaghetti House Restaurants Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
ENEARAT EE 10,000,000 L@ REAZK
Uwin Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100%  Catering
HEBRBARAF B BT ER #E
Very Nice Fast Food Limited Hong Kong HK$17,025,000  Class A 100%  Catering
HEERRERDA B 17,025,00087C A5l R

HK$5,675,000  Class B 100%

5,675,000/  BEES

Vogue Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100% Investment holding
BRENERAF &% BT ER REER

Weli Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
AZBRAF 30 1,000,000  E| 7828

Winfast Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
KEEBARARE (incorporation)/ 10,0008 i@ MERE

PRC (operation)
EEGHR) HE(EE)

Worldson Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
EECEBRAA &k 2B BB #R

Worldway Limited Macau MOP300,000  Ordinary 100% Property investment
LEBHEAF BF 300,0002P9T  EE NERE

Yumi Yumi Caterers Limited Hong Kong HK$6,701,560  Class A2 100% Catering
BERRARAA B 67015608 AR BR

HK$2,872,100 Class B? 100%

2,872,10087C  BiERP

Zhongshan Café de Coral Catering The PRC HK$1,300,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited FE 1,300,00087L - #R

PILARERRBRAF

Zhuhai Café de Coral Catering Company The PRC HK$8,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Limited HE 8,000,000870 - RR

REAREARRERDAF
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10 Investments in Subsidiaries and 10 A B R RIRE R EWHE
Amount Due from Subsidiaries — NEINRIE - AAF (&)
Company (Continued)
! Café de Coral Development Limited is held directly by ! Café de Coral Development Limited
the Company. All other subsidiaries are held indirectly. BARAIEEIFE - FTEHMIE
RNEREERES -
2 Holders of class A shares have voting participating 2 AR 2B AEBHIRERE 2
shares. B o
3 Holders of class B shares have no voting rights. 3 BEERIRM ZHAE AL BT ZRE -
4 The official names of the companies incorporated in ¢ KYRAEARIZEEREER
PRC are in Chinese. English translation is for reference P o BEXERREHSE -
only.
5 The companies incorporated in PRC are wholly foreign 5 KURHFEBRAERINGEEDRE -
owned enterprises.
11 Investment in an Associate 11 RBEQTIRE
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E2-HEF —E-0NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET F#ET
Share of net assets EIEFEE 1,195 1,190
(a) Details of investment in associate as at 31 March 2015 (@ RZZE—RAF=A=+T—BRBZEQFR
are as follows: WEZFBET
Place of establishment/
incorporation and Particulars of Interest held
operations Principal issued shares indirectly =~ Measurement
Company name AL MR activity held E#FE  method
AT BB R B FEEK B 13 Bl ERkE FESE
Dai Bai Dang Restaurants Inc. (“DBD") The United States of Catering Common 20%  Equity
America RE gl %
e
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11 Investment in an Associate (Continued) 11 REBEE RN TIRE(E

(b) The directors are of the opinion that the underlying value (b) EFRREENACEREBEETZ KR

of the associate was not materially less than its carrying RN ERREE -
amount.

() In 2014, the Group disposed of an associate with carrying (0 RIZE—NF AEEBHE—HEBEEQ
value of HK$7,437,000 and recognised gain on disposal A+ HERMEE A7,437,00078 T M #ER
of HK$7,053,000 (Note 27). &5 57,053,000 T (Mi7E27) ©

12 Investment in a Joint Venture 12 AEERTIRE

Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E-RE —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets ERFEE = 19,772

(a) Details of investment in joint venture disposed during the (@ FADHENNALERRKREFBEN

year is as follow: N

Place of establishment/

incorporation and Interest held

operations indirectly
Company name L EE AR AL Principal activity E#EEFE  Measurement method
NCIESE B iR ith B FEEK EREE FESE
Profit Sky International Limited British Virgin Islands Bakery production and 50%  Equity method
ARERBRAR ABHRES operation of bakery shops A

HEEERE BN R A E KRN E

(b) During the year, the Group disposed of its entire equity by FA AEBERBERZEERAIZE
interest in the joint venture to its joint venture partner MERELETHEHAZRM  HaRE
at cash consideration of HK$11,600,000, and recognised #$11,600,000/% 7T - I i R & B 18
loss on disposal of HK$2,738,000, which has been 2,738,00087C ' e BE st ArA 1B
included in other gains, net of the consolidated income 7 7 B9 ELAth By F W aR A (B aE27) ©

statement (Note 27).
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13

14

Available-for-sale Financial Assets 13 IHEESREE
Group
A
2015 2014
—F-I1F —E-HmF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FEIT
Beginning of the year FHEEH 522,516 451,087
Additions NE - 8
Disposals k= = (17)
Fair value (loss)/gain transferred to other #mAHMEERAZ ATFE
comprehensive income (Note 25) (E18), W= (Hfa25) (167,369) 71,438
End of the year FRERS 355,147 522,516
Available-for-sale financial assets include the following: At ESMEERIEUNTER
Group
HEE
2015 2014
—E-RE —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Listed investments FRE
— Market value of listed securities — Fh#ESHEME 355,147 522,516
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in HK AEHESREELNETZH
dollars.
The fair values of the listed investments are based on FAREN A FERBERTSNIRT
their current bid prices in an active market. BEHENE -
Non-current Prepayments and 14 ERBANREBERRE
Deposits
Non-current prepayments and deposits mainly comprise ERBENFERZETERREEE R
rental and utility deposits and prepayments for property, KEBRIES RME - BEREZENTER
plant and equipment. Ko
Substantially all of the non-current prepayments and NF IR B RS SR MRS RIETL ©

BRI 5T BELEEARE

deposits are denominated in HK dollars. The existing
counterparties do not have significant defaults in the
past.
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15 Inventories 15 78
Inventories mainly comprise food and consumable stores FEFEBERYMEERER - RKAE
and are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. BRI FEME CBREEAR o
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and EERAXEREFAHEERN A ZTFE
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$2,402,937,000 B 7K A2,402,937,00058 jo( — Z — M
(2014: HK$2,236,560,000). % :2,236,560,000/8 7T °
16 Trade and Other Receivables, 16 EXRHMEUYERIE - TR
Prepayments and Deposits MERRE
Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-REF —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables S EIERTE 39,781 38,523
Less: provision for impairment of receivables i : %4 % fE W k1B R E B 5 = -
Trade receivables — net (Note a) LR CRARTE (M ta) 39,781 38,523
Other receivables (Note b) HAb U BRTE (f72b) 103,561 41,137
143,342 79,660
Prepayments and deposits TEfRIE iR d 123,215 106,921
266,557 186,581
(@) The Group's sales to customers are mainly on a cash (@) AEEZHENREXRHAE - AEEH
basis. The Group also grants a credit period between e T=TENTREEH TN HEE
30 to 90 days to certain customers for the provision RERY - RmBE s BRI NS

of the Group’s institutional catering services, sales of B
merchandise for the Group’s food manufacturing business
and its franchisees.

156 ¢ Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A + =
e R
16 Trade and Other Receivables, 16 EXRHEMEUWERIE - FA
Prepayments and Deposits MERZRE (&)
(Continued)
Other receivables as at 31 March 2015 comprised, among (b) RZZE—RF=A=+—8 HMERK
others, proceeds receivable from disposal of a property RIBHPBIEHEME 2 ERFTSKIE
of HK$57,658,000 (2014: Nil) and receivables from 57,658,000 L(—ZE — M4 : &) &K
disposal of the North American business amounting to B R E T 2 B RIEE,712,000% 7T
HK$6,712,000 (2014: Nil). —E—F E|E)o
The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: HERKERBEBRNERE ST
Group
HEH
2015 2014
—g-5% —g-mE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHETT FET
0 - 30 days TE=1H 25,360 27,346
31 - 60 days =+—ZX+TH 8,622 8,094
61 — 90 days A~T—ZNTA 3,174 1,856
Over 90 days BidNTH 2,625 1,227
39,781 38,523
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16 Trade and Other Receivables, 16 EEXRHEMEWERE - FAS

Prepayments and Deposits
(Continued)

MERRE(#)

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade EERYBRIBRREREESOT -
receivables is as follows:
Group
rEHE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TF#ET FH&T
Beginning of the year FEEH - 129
Provision for impairment BB - -
Receivables written off during the year FRFT ) EIERIE - (125)
Exchange differences b5 =5 = (4)
End of the year FRER = -

The creation and release of provision for impairment
receivables have been included in administrative expenses
in the income statement. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off when there
is no expectation of recovering additional cash. The
Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible trade receivables has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Trade receivables that are less than 90 days past due are
not considered as impaired. As at 31 March 2015, trade
receivables of HK$2,625,000 (2014: HK$1,227,000) were
past due but not impaired. Substantially all of these trade
receivables were aged less than 120 days. These relates
to a number of independent customers for whom there is
no recent history of default. The Group did not hold any
collateral as security.

The credit quality of trade and other receivables and
deposits that are neither past due nor impaired has been
assessed by reference to historical information about
counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties do
not have significant defaults in the past.
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16 Trade and Other Receivables, 16 EXRHMEWERE - A
Prepayments and Deposits MERZRE (&)
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and BN E A EUERIE M iR & B 52 H R 8
deposits approximate their fair values due to their short HIEE @ WHEREHEEQFERS °

term maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other REEREERHEAEYERIE 2 REE
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: RATE®.EHE
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE-0mF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FET
HK dollar BT 123,426 60,927
RMB AR 12,660 14,911
US dollar EH - 520
Canadian dollar mexx 7,256 3,302
143,342 79,660

17 Financial assets at fair value through 17 EAFEIAERZEME

profit or loss 3
Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E—AF —ZT-mF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Non-current financial assets at fair value BRFEYABREK ZIERE
through profit or loss: TREEE -
Derivative financial instruments (Note a) TSR I E(Hita) = 7,777
Current financial assets at fair value through ZAFEIIABTZ R 2 mEE R
profit or loss: BE
Derivative financial instrument (Note a) TSR ITE(Hita) 39,838 8,067
Total st 39,838 15,844
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17 Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

(a) These derivative financial instruments include one
(2014: one) guaranteed deposit notes with original
maturity dates of five years (2014: five years) and
four (2014: one) RMB performance notes with
original maturity date ranging from one to two
years.

The guaranteed deposit notes are unsecured and
bear interests at 3-month LIBOR with interest cap of
8.5% and interest floor of 2.5%.

The RMB performance notes are unsecured and bear
variable return according to the RMB performance
during the period with a floor return of 0% per
annum.

(b) In 2014, the Group disposed of the investment
products portfolio and recognised gain on disposal
of HK$1,446,000, which was included in other gains
(Note 27).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
denominated in the following currencies:

17 AR EIAEBERZZEHME

E(&E)

(@) ETAESRITABEIHBEER
FR(ZZ—NEF: AF)H—K
(ZZF—0F: —R)IRBFERE
BERRIFEE-EMFEHEER
(ZZ—MF : —R)BRARERR

=i

ZERBEARERESERT M=
A mBEFEFEFE » FE LR
58.5% » FE TR A2.5% °

BARBRAZEREER KR
ZFEHAARERRAF B @ RER
AHEER - MRERTRAEF0%

by RZZE—HF AEEELEZ
REEREAT AL & W
1,466,000/ 7T + I 5] Al E b Uz
7 (fIEE27) ©

BAFEINABaRZEREESFER
A TEEFHE

Group
KEE
2015 2014
—E-FHF —E-NmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
US dollar ETT 7,764 15,844
RMB AR 32,074 -
39,838 15,844

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in other gains, net,
in the consolidated income statement (Note 27). The fair
values of the above investments are based on current bid
prices in an active market.
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18 Bank Deposits with Maturity over 18 BBE=EAZHAWERITHT
Three Months and Cash and Cash MURRERBEEEEEE

Equivalents

(a) Bank deposits with maturity over three (a) BBE={EAZHENVRITER
months
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had bank deposits with R-ZE—HF=F=+—8 KX&EEBEH
maturity over three months and less than one year of RITERFRER =R RER—F 3
approximately HK$15,428,000 (2014: HK$31,010,000). HiH 915,428,000 7T( =& — O 4 -
The deposits were denominated in USD and bore average 31,010,000 7T) « FRAETTRETE
interest rate 0.35% (2014: 0.35%) per annum. B FHFERNER035% (ZF—
% :0.35%) °
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) REFKHKRESEEER
Group Company
A %E vt
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-RF —ZT-—NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T87T

—E—RE —ZE—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Cash at banks and on hand RIT R FHRS 256,302 370,107 28 563
Short-term bank deposits HIRTTIE R 800,887 633,986 = -

1,057,189 1,004,093 28 563
Maximum exposure to credit risk Z B b i AR IE SR 1,047,478 991,879 28 563
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits RHRITERZEBRFENER2.4% (=
was 2.4% (2014: 2.6%) per annum. These deposits have T—UF :2.6%) ZEFHRZFHE
an average maturity of 81 days (2014: 75 days). HARSIB(=ZE—M%F : 750) °
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18 Bank Deposits with Maturity over 18 BB ={EA LB MRITHE
Three Months and Cash and Cash MURAEREEEEIER
Equivalents (Continued) (%)

(b) Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) (b) HERBREEEEH ()

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the RekREFEEEBREUTEE :

following currencies:

Group Company
REH RAH
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-7f —B-NF —B-HEF —B-QOF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHT FHT FHT

HK dollar BT 483,861 421,365 28 563
RMB AR 476,626 501,562 - -
US dollar ET 72,159 67,334 - -
Canadian dollar MEXRTT 12,692 5,991 = -
Others HAth 11,851 7,841 - -

1,057,189 1,004,093 28 563
Certain of the Group’s cash and bank balances of RAEBEUARKHENE TR KRS
HK$253,281,000 (2014: HK$254,964,000) were £ {E T8 H253,281,000% ;t( —ZF — Y
denominated in RMB and were deposited with banks £ 1 254,964,000 7T ) 17 B HR B A i
in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated BIT - BZEUARBAENES B
balances into foreign currencies and remittance of these BHNEE K FE H A B P dth 28 38 ST AR BRI
deposits out of the PRC is subject to the rules and MR EY INE B AR A S AR o

regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

19 Discontinued Operation 19 BRILEEETE

During the year, the Group completed the disposal of FA - AREETHEEERIEEMNZ
its business in North America (“the disposed business”). ¥B(EHEEKD -ttt EHEZE
Accordingly, the financial results of the disposed business B BEBEBRBER B ST AER
are presented in the consolidated income statement and o BBV ERELERS [FEHE 2
consolidated statement of cash flows as “Discontinued };\L@Jiéfiz&ﬁmlti“‘%%WJB/\%?E\TE
Operation” in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current mRREERERERPEIAR/IBEK
Assets Held for Sales and Discontinued Operation” issued IR TR | o LWEREIFEE EY o

by the HKICPA. Comparative figures have been restated.
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19 Discontinued Operation (Continued)

(a)

Details of the loss from discontinued operation are as

follows:

™

2015
—Z-RfF
HK$'000
THET

19 EARLEREXK(E)
RIS RS 2 BE A R

2014
—2-F
HK$'000
FET

Loss after tax from discontinued operation

KEERIEEERFZBRBIER

(Note (a)) BB (Kiit(a) (10,320) (60,041)
Loss on disposal (Note (b)) & B8 (A7a# b)) (4,700) -
(15,020) (60,041)

An analysis of the results of operations of

the Discontinued Operation is set out below:

For the period
from 1 April 2014
to 18 December

() CRLEREER CEEXESWN
(1l N

For the
year ended

2014 31 March 2014
H=-2—F

mE—AZ BE-_Z-N4&

—2—pmE =A=+-8

+=—A+/\BHHME LEE

HK$’000 HK$°000

FAETT FEIT

Revenue & 104,235 164,209

Cost of sales SHE R (79,152) (129,491)

Gross profit E A 25,083 34,718

Other gains/(losses), net HBlhss,/ (E8) 2,750 (48,788)

Administrative expenses THER (40,321) (50,218)
Operating loss from discontinued REDKRIEREEL 2 EEFHE

operation (12,488) (64,288)

Finance income, net AR FUA 99 289

Share of profit of an associate FEihEE AR EF 215 213
Loss before income tax from RECKRLEREEKZRAEHR

discontinued operation RIE 1B (12,174) (63,786)

Income tax credit FrASBEH0 1,854 3,745

Loss after tax from discontinued operation KRB BE & ILEE R 2 HTi%&
giE! (10,320) (60,041)
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19 Discontinued Operation (Continued) 19 BERILREEKE(E)
(b) An analysis of loss on the disposal is as (b) HEEBBEZSMEMWT -
follows:
2015
—ZE-FHF
HK$°000
FE&T
Cash consideration HWERE 53,259
Less: direct expenses B BEEER (13,129)
40,130
Less: net assets disposed of: W EHEFEE
Property, plant and equipment lERN T INE T (23,778)
Intangible assets mLEE (39,825)
Inventories FE (1,279)
(64,882)
Exchange reserve released upon disposal of business [ M5 275 P 0O B 34, (6 88 8,084
Release of deferred tax liabilities upon disposal AEEXBREBEENRETIEaE
of business 11,968
Loss on disposal HEEBE (4,700)
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19 Discontinued Operation (Continued) 19 BERILREEKE(E)
(c) An analysis of the cash inflows/(outflows) () ERILEEERCHERAN
of the discontinued operation is as follows: (RE)ZHaE :
For the period
from 1 April 2014 For the
to 18 December year ended
2014 31 March 2014
H-F—lfF B=
MA—HB=ZE —E—mF
—E2-IF =A=+—H
+=—A+/\HHH LHEE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAETT FEIT
Net cash used in operating activities ARZIEEE 7 %R S (15,478) (871)
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEHES(BR)Z2ERS
investing activities 34,239 (3,149)
Total cash inflows/(outflows) Baen A CRt)asE 18,761 (4,020)
20 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 20 EREEINEEREHERE
Provision for Long Service Payments SRE
Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E-AF —ZE-0F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Retirement benefit liabilities RA:BMAE
Defined contribution schemes (Note a) FEMREEI (M iza) (11,019) (10,290)
Defined benefit scheme (Note b) RERMTEI (K 7Eb) (15,344) (7,483)
Provision for long service payments (Note ¢)  REIIRTS & B & (Hatc) (30,498) (22,850)
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20 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and

(a)

Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is administered
by an independent trustee.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group and
the eligible employees makes monthly mandatory
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory
contributions by each party are subject to a maximum
of HK$1,500 per month. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately upon the completion of service in the
relevant service period.

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes
for its employees in the Mainland China, Canada and the
United States of America. The Group is required to make
contributions to the schemes at various applicable rates
of monthly salary that are in accordance with the local
practice and regulations.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has defined
contribution scheme payable of HK$11,019,000 (2014:
HK$10,290,000), which were recorded in other creditors
and accrued liabilities.
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20 RN/ EERRIRE

(a)

EBE (&)

REMREE

AEEIZFBRHIMELBE TSRO
REBRBIGIRIEZERAREZES
RERMRIIELBESFE([RERET
g - ZRELHEHBLETEESE
e

REBESHE  ARERESERE
BHARBRFIERB SR 28R
- BARBEEBRACEERE R R
HEREEFSIERD) 25% B BRIE 5T
S - BT MRHMEEK ERAEA
1,500/ 7T » &% &t & 2 R Se A AR 8
AR5 B 2 BRFSIR BT

AREBETATEAM - MEANEEE
BRHAEHAGE - AEEARE M
BOIRRE  FARFEOTRERL
KA B -

R-TE—RE=ZA=1+—H A£EE
FLE G S FE T IE11,019,0008 7T
—Z—PU4 : 10,290,000/ T) © BLFE
EEMENREBERETERA -
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20

(b)

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 20 RhEEBANEERRIRE
Provision for Long Service Payments SRE(E)

(Continued)

Defined benefit scheme (b) RERAGTE

The Group also operates a defined benefit scheme for AEBNTREEEBRHATENG
its employees in Hong Kong. The benefit entitlement gl - ZEtEIMEN ERRREENATE
under the scheme is calculated based on the final salary BERNs&&Te RERBFHAE - 1t
of the staff and the length of service with the Group. EEEEEBUEEERESN
The scheme assets are held independently of the Group’s ZAEBEEDFREAR °

assets in separate trustee-administered funds.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the Er B AEEEESIREERBYIE
Group and the employees in accordance with qualified HEDERN B E TR RME 2 ER
independent actuary’s recommendation from time to time 2 FRERE TR -

on the basis of periodic valuations.

Such defined benefit scheme obligation was valued by ERERMNTEEERBE LS ERE
Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent qualified HEnEH(FE)BRAFRAE B
actuary, using the projected unit credit method. SEREEETHE -
The net liabilities recognised in the consolidated HHREMBIRARANERFEEE T
statement of financial position are determined as follows: HHAERE :
Group
A EW
2015 2014
—E-RE —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FEIT
Present value of funded obligations FEEECHRE (156,676) (153,199)
Fair value of plan assets FrElEEZATE 141,332 145,716

Net liabilities in the consolidated statement 4& M BRRAEAZ FAE

of financial position (15,344) (7,483)
Remeasurement on defined benefit EMFtERTERN-BE

obligation excluding interest expense (R EFZERIN) (7,811) 15,267
Remeasurement return on plan assets EHFTEEIEE 2 ER 1,060 4,478
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20 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 20 RhEEBANEERRIRE
Provision for Long Service Payments SREE)
(Continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REERFHEI(E)
The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as ATEBANEENESHOT -
follows:
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—®-_EHf —B-meE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Beginning of the year FEEH (153,199) (171,881)
Current service cost B RBKA (4,064) (4,866)
Interest cost F B A (3,364) (1,534)
Employee contributions 1B B it (1,124) (1,178)
Remeasurement on defined benefit scheme  E# st & R FE @M ETE (7,811) 15,267
Benefits paid B ER] 12,886 10,993
End of the year FRES (156,676) (153,199)
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as EEENATESESHOT
follows:
Group
AEH
2015 2014
—ZE2-F1EF —E—-NUE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FEEH 145,716 146,211
Interest income FEHA 3,248 1,338
Employee contributions EEMHR 1,124 1,178
Employer contributions EEHEK 3,099 3,533
Administrative expenses paid from M BEEINZ2ITHER
plan assets (29) (29)
Remeasurement on return on plan assets EHFEEIEE 2B 1,060 4,478
Benefits paid 2ER (12,886) (10,993)
End of the year FREH 141,332 145,716
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20 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement are as follows:

20 RN/ EERRIRE
SEE(E)

(b) FERAGE (F)
EFAEERABRZSBRANT

Group

AEE
2015 2014
—E—AF —E—mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current service cost IR A R Ak AN 4,064 4,866
Interest cost FLEAKA 3,364 1,534
Interest income on plan assets FHEIEE 2 A2 WA (3,248) (1,338)
Administrative expenses 1THER 29 29

Total, included in employee benefit ®EE - EREEEERMNERA

expenses (Note 34) (K15E34) 4,209 5,091
Of the total amount debited to the consolidated it AGEERRNEBEPEBREHE

income statement, approximately HK$2,067,000 (2014:
HK$2,350,000) and HK$2,142,000 (2014: HK$2,741,000)
have been included in cost of sales and administrative
expenses, respectively.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

ERA K ITEE A5 R 492,067,000%

t( == — P4 : 2,350,000 7T ) &
2,142,000 0 (=& —Pg4F : 2,741,000
BIT) °

FIERAZ T 2BERRNOT

2015
—E-RF

2014
—2-nmF

AEIR &

Discount rate

REFHM 2 AR R X

Expected rate of future salary increases

1.2% p.a. 2.25% p.a.
HF1.2% HFF2.25%
4.5% p.a. 4.5% p.a.
FE45% BF45%

The remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income was a loss of HK$6,751,000 (2014:
gain of HK$19,745,000).

A 2EBRARKERNATEIE
fEZ EFs 2 AE1E6,751,00080( =
T —PO4E : % F19,745,00057T) ©
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20 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 20 RN/ EERRIRE
Provision for Long Service Payments SRE(E)
(Continued)

(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) RAEBFGFTEI(E)

The cumulative remeasurement of defined benefit
obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income was a loss of HK$31,502,000 (2014:
losses of HK$24,751,000).

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of
total plan assets are as follows:

FRe2ERARKERNAERMNE
Tz 2 EFHE AE 131,502,000
BL(ZF—IOF : E1824,751,000%8
JL) °

FEHEAEREEBHBEAEE L
-

2015 2014

—E-RF —E-F

Equity instruments FETAH 29.6% 34.6%
Debt instruments EET A 65.7% 59.2%
Other assets HEm&E 4.7% 6.2%

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation (“DBO")
to changes in the assumption is:

REBNETHEREINEZIER -

Impact on DBO

HAERANEENTE
Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
RR2E R A BN R

Discount rate BhIR & 0.5% Decreased by 2.7% Increased by 2.8%
W27 % #E902.8%
Salary increase rate g R =X 0.5% Increased by 2.7% Decreased by 2.6%

#IN2.7% F2.6%

Expected contributions to the defined benefit scheme HREBE-_T-—RF=A=1+—HILF
by the Group for the year ending 31 March 2016 are B RAERIAENEHHROR
approximately HK$2,612,000. 2,612,000 7T °

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit REBRMEEHMETFHFER6F o
obligation is 6.1 years.
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20

(b)

(c)

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation in
the next ten years on 31 March 2015:

20 RN/ EERRIRE

EBE (&)

(b) RERAIGE(H)

R-ZE-—RAF=A=+—HYHAEREF
BERARRTEHFEMB A DN

Less than Between Between Next
a year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
—F LR —EWMF —ERF BEFHUS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T

Defined benefit obligation ARERAEMT

20,724

14,549 50,427 63,641

Through its defined benefit obligations, the Group is
exposed to a number of risks. The defined benefit scheme
offers a defined benefit depending on members’ length
of service and their salary at the time of leaving the firm.
Active members contribute 2.5% of their salary to the
scheme, while the Company bears the remainder cost of
funding the scheme. The scheme exposes the Company
to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, salary risk, and
investment risk.

Provision for long service payments

The Group provides long service payments for its
employees in respect of long service payments on
cessation of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

Such provision for long service payment obligation was
valued by Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent
qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit method.

(c)

AEBEFEBAERNEEEERZ AR
(o SERMEERE—RBFKER
T F B N 1% 55 10 B Bk ey ) 367 B 1 o 0 57
ERA - BHKBREEFIAN2.5%
SR - MA QR AEEZETEN
RIERBE M ° x5t S| K 2 B E b 20Kl &
[\ B~ 5 L B B 1B L B A E R

LA
o0
A

o

RERB RS

AEBREBERBEIESTIERLT
RIEFERAEIMXNERARBEETE
T o

HERPRESBBETHBELAER
EXRREMXE(FR)ERARKAE
B EERF AT -
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20 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

(c) Provision for long service payments
(Continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position is determined as follows:

20 RN/ EERRIRE
SEE(E)

() REBRBERE(E)

EHRAMBIMRERAERZEENT

Group

EE
2015 2014
—E-RE —E-mE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T

Liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position

mAaPBItRRAZaE

30,498 22,850

Re-measurement on plan liabilities

AEIRBEZEMTE

9,197 3,893

Movements in the liability recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are as follows:

TEHREVBIRARNERZ BEZEH N
T

Group
rEEH
2015 2014
—E-EHF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET FEIT
- ]
Beginning of the year FHEEH 22,850 19,680
Current service cost BB R 1,421 2,695
Interest cost SN %N 574 139
Remeasurement of provision of REBRBEBH 2 EMAE
long service payments 9,197 3,893
Benefits paid 2@ (3,544) (3,557)
End of the year FRER 30,498 22,850
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20 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 20 RREEANEERRRE
Provision for Long Service Payments SRE(E)
(Continued)

(c) Provision for long service payments () REIRKSEE(E)
(Continued)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income R BaRER BN

statement are as follows:

Group
rEH
2015 2014
—s-n& —g-m&
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHIT FHT
Current service cost IR B BRI A AR 1,421 2,695
Interest cost F B A 574 139
Total, included in employee benefit 258 BREEREEEAMFEIR
expenses (Note 34) (K15E34) 1,995 2,834
Of the total charge, no charge has been included in Exxht MEXHE( T -HF:
cost of sales (2014: HK$86,000) and approximately 86,000/ 7L ) B IR FE S E R AR+ 4
HK$1,995,000 (2014: HK$2,748,000) has been included 1,995,000/ 7L (=F — /M4 : 2,748,000
in administrative expenses. BT RIBREETRERNA -
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows: FRAZ TERERROT :
2015 2014
—2-5% —E-QmE
Discount rate QLR % HF13% p.a. BF2.6% p.a.
Expected rate of future salary increases R 2 TR R & HFF4.5% p.a. HF4.5% p.a.
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20 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and

(c)

Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Provision for long service payments
(Continued)

The remeasurement of provision of long service
payments recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income was a loss of HK$9,197,000 (2014:
loss of HK$3,893,000).

The cumulative remeasurement of provision of long
service payments recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income was HK$26,700,000
(2014: HK$17,503,000).

Expected contributions to the long service payment
obligation by the Group for the year ending 31 March
2016 after the offset the accrued MPF account balance is
approximately HK$2,188,000.

The weighted average duration of the long service
payment obligation is 7.8 years.

Expected maturity analysis of long service payment
obligation in the next ten years on 31 March 2015:

20 RN/ EERRIRE

EBE (&)

() REBRBERE(E)

FFE 2 AR NERR KBRS
RGBT E AEE9,197,0000
TL(ZZ—PU4: [E5183,893,000/87T) °

FEFA 2 mBARRE NERH KBRS
S EBHE 2 B35 E#FET=/426,700,000/8
T(=ZZF—PU4 : 17,503,000/ 7T) ©

RIRSEEET RTES R &HRE A5 E
REE-_ZT—XRFZA=+—HILFE
BB TSN ZRBRESEETHERLY
%%.2,188,000/8 7T °

ROERBEEEZNEFHFHR7.8
ﬂz [}

RZE-—RAF=A=+—RAZKHRH
SEERARR T FZERIEE DT -

Less than Between Between Next
a year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
—F LR —EWMF —EHEF RFHHUS
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

TET TETT TETT TETT

Long Service Payment obligation REIRGSEEET 2,188 2,451 8,488 14,387

The long service payment obligation arises as per Hong BIEBEBEFEGD - MERARKSEE
Kong Employment Ordinance to the extent that the long HEEBARTEREHKAEI 2 EELE
service payment obligation exceeds the employer balance t# AEARHBRBEEE - ARRIA
in the Hong Kong mandatory defined contribution plan. E A A EE R - FeERRAAR
It exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as interest BEER eI ESRERBERER
rate risk, salary risk and the investment risk of the % o

Company’s MPF scheme’s constituent funds.
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21 Deferred Income Tax 21 EERIT

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following

BB RBRBIMITEN A KRB HIAE
EERSHABBEEEEE - RELEHR
R KR — B EE - RRER A B E
REBERAEREE - SRE MR EK

amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, NEETH G AR IERENT
are shown on the consolidated statement of financial
position:
Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E—RF —ZE-0OF
HK$'000 HK$°000
TFET FET

Deferred income tax assets to be recovered  ¥5 1218 A& U B HELER 18

after 12 months BE 25,955 26,562

Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled ¥ 1218 B & & & ELEFL B
after 12 months afE (21,147) (30,458)
4,808 (3,896)

FERERIBEE(BE) 2EBWT

Movements in net deferred income tax assets/(liabilities)
are as follows:

Group
rEEH
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FET
- ]
Beginning of the year T 4Lk (3,896) (7,296)
Deferred taxation credited to the TEiEaBRRNG 2 EERE
consolidated income statement 8,790 3,510
Exchange differences PE 5 =R (86) (110)
End of the year FRER 4,808 (3,896)
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21 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 21 EEBE(E)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and AEBFRNREEHBEERBEZE
liabilities of the Group (prior to offsetting of balances B(HEF B AR iER) A
within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year are N
as follows:
Deferred income tax assets: BEEIEEE -
Group
A£8
Decelerated tax
depreciation Tax losses Provision and others Total
HRFERE k| BEREM g
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-FE CZB-NE C—B-FF —E-ME -E-FF -E-NE C—B-FF —E-NE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FEr AL FEx FET FET

Beginning of the year FENER 18,418 13,629 36,354 11,270 - 3,929 54,772 28,828
(Charged)/credited to hERABRRA
the consolidated income (HB)/FtA
statement (2,712) 4,789 955 24,370 1,920 (3,929) 163 25,230
Exchange differences EHEE - - - 714 - - = 714
End of the year ERES 15,706 18,418 37,309 36,354 1,920 - 54,935 54,772
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEIBAE
Accelerated tax depreciation Intangible assets Total
MEHREBHE BYVEE ag
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

~%-B% -E-MF -F-BF  -E-ME SE-EF SE-RA
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR T AL TAL TR T

Beginning of the year FHER 42,477 17,624 16,191 18,500 58,668 36,124
Charged/(credited) to the EGABRERN

consolidated income statement %/ () 7,650 24,853 (16,277) (3,133) (8,627) 21,720
Exchange differences ERZESE - - 86 824 86 824
End of the year FREH 50,127 42,477 - 16,191 50,127 58,668
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21 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carrying forwards to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefits through the future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 March 2015, the Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets in
respect of losses of approximately HK$450,518,000
(2014: HK$435,210,000). Tax losses amounting to
approximately HK$271,788,000 (2014: HK$231,030,000)
and HK$114,569,000 (2014: HK$97,749,000) will be
expired up to year 2035 and 2019 respectively, while the
remaining balance can be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been
recognised for withholding tax that would be payable
on the distributable retained profits amounting to
HK$229,633,000 (2014: HK$225,658,000) of the
Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China earned
after 1 January, 2008. Such amounts are not intended
to be distributed in the foreseeable future to the group
companies outside of the Mainland China.

22 Trade Payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

21 ELER A (&)

BEEMEEEDEEMRBH G =
A] 3% 38 R R FE BR B s A & 3R Bt AT
HEE o BEEER - RZZE—HF
A=+ H AEBYEHEBIE
#9450,518,000/% jo( — T — MO 4 :
435,210,000/ 7T ) ERIELER BB E ©
Hrh#9271,788,0008 70 ( —Z — U4 -
231,030,000/ 7T ) £ 114,569,000/ 7T
—F P4 : 97,749,000 7T ) BB D
AR=ZE=RFER_F—NFEm &
ROV fE M ERR A -

XA B R B At /O B B A B AT R ER Y
—EENF-A—BEAUSEEHEH
& 229,633,000 o ( = F — U F -
225,658,000/ 7T ) FE I TEFNEE - IR
RIEEFRIBBERHER - %EB I RR
TE A B R o Be 46 Hh B A HE DA Y &2
NS

22 EREMNIRE
BEENREOERAFOT :

Group

rEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T

e

0 - 30 days TE=1H 207,737 193,884
31 - 60 days =+—Z,TH 2,555 8,590
61 — 90 days AT—ZNTA 443 1,125
Over 90 days BsNTH 1,547 5,245
212,282 208,844
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22 Trade Payables (Continued) 22 EXENEREE)
The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated EEBRNEBENROERENTEE

in the following currencies:

Group
A%
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFET FEIT
HK dollar BT 172,579 154,445
RMB ARE 38,548 51,211
US dollar ETT 422 -
Canadian dollar MEKRIT 733 3,188
212,282 208,844
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their MR ERRRE - € ZBFTERENR
fair values due to their short term maturities. HEEAESENEQAFE -
23 Other Creditors and Accrued 23 HittERERETEHR
Liabilities
Other creditors and accrued liabilities mainly comprise HMEMNBREREFERTIEZRES
accrued salaries and wages and other provisions. ® - IEREMERE EMEMNEKRER
Substantially all of the other creditors and accrued A ERLT2HAB T RAREE
liabilities are denominated in HK dollars and Renminbi. (=
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iR IR R MEE
24 Share Capital 24 R
Group and Company
AEBRAAT
2015 2014
—E-FF —E-NNEF
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of share value of share value
RGO EE HE R & E HE
‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$'000
Fhz FET Fhg FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each TimAR G AREE0. 107 7T
Beginning and end of the year FYHEFRLER 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Beginning of the year FUEEH 577,299 57,730 574,067 57,407
Shares issued under share option R E R A AT 8135 7T
scheme (Note 36) Btn (Bfet36) 4,317 432 3,232 323
End of the year FREH 581,616 58,162 577,299 57,730
During the year, 4,317,500 shares (2014: 3,231,500 FR - F4,317,5000( = F — U F -
shares) of HK$0.10 each were issued pursuant to the 3,231,500/% ) H B & & £0.10% 7T
share option scheme of the Company at average exercise A LAA7ET( ZF — M F :13.76
price of approximately HK$14.71 (2014: HK$13.76). Total BIL)FHITERERARRR 2 FER
proceed less expenses amounting to HK$63,933,000 (2014: RETEIET - HBETRASRZEER
HK$43,506,000) was used to provide the Group with & #£63,933,000/8 ;o( — & — /g 4 -
working capital. 43,506,000/ 7)) AR EERBE S °
During the year, the Group purchased 4,784,362 of FA - AEBEFBERN RETEIZT
its own shares through the trustee of the share award ARAFAMIS EEE4,784,362kH B
scheme from open market. The total amount paid to ERD - BEBERODIXNZREER
acquire the shares was HK$133,441,000 and has been 133,441,000/ 7T - B2 B IR R # 25 Rl
deducted from shareholders' equity. As at 31 March e RZE—RF=A=1—08" AKX
2015, such shares were recorded as treasury shares of MERER  ZERODEINABRAR]
the Company and the Group as they are not yet vested. RAEEREFR o
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25 Reserves 25 f#&
(a) The Group (a) A~5£H
Shares held
Share-based  for share  Statutory
Capital  Exchange compensation award reserve
Share  redemption  translation Capital ~ Investment reserve scheme (notej) Contributed Revaluation ~ Retained
premium reserve  reseve  reserve  reseve  MRGRN ROKEFH  OZERE  supls  reserve  eamings Total

RitkE EARERE AWAREE EABR  REBE  NMERR  KERb RAER  HERR  REE #E
HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TET T T T T T TET TET TET TET T T

Balance as at 1 April 2014 R-E-MEMA-REH 466,353 152,034 92,902 21,079 0133 25,434 - 21,49 85,197 180 2384804 3,671,670
Proceeds from shares issued Ehaikiha 63,501 - - - - - - - - - - 63,501
Changes in fair value for e eREEY

avalable-forsale financia assets  ATELE - - - - (167369) - = = = = - (167.369)
Remeasurement of retirement benefit B3t ERIKAER|

liabiltes and provision for long~~~ B EREHBHKS

Service payments ] = - - - - - - - - - (5% (15949
Employee share option scheme - value [E £ &2

of employee senvices -EERHBEE > > = - - 98 - - - - - 982
Employee share award scheme - value (B 1 2Bz 2|

of employee senvices -RERHKEE = = s - - 11,640 - - - - - 116
Release of share-based compensation R{TE AR E

resenve to share premium upon LR RS

evercise of share options HEBARDEE 12318 = = = - (12.328) - - - - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share options 2R TEEE % = = = = = (116) - = = - 116 -
Transfer to statutory reserves ENEERE = - - - - - - 183 - - (183 -
Bichange differences arising from ~ EREHNHEL -

translation of foreign subsidiaries, ~ BEAFRAELR

assodiates and a joint venture LEHER = = (4748) = - - - - - - - (4,749)
Eichange reserve released upon B E¥BFELE

disposal of business EX &R - - (8,084) = - - - - - - - (8,084)
Profit attrbutable to equity holders  AAFRIEREA

of the Company EiERH - - - - - - - - - - I T8
Purchase of share BER( - > = = = - (1334 - - - - (134
Dividends ) = - - - - - - - - - (91210 (39121
Balance as at 31 March 2015 R-2-1F=A=1-H

i 542,182 152,034 80,070 21,079 254764 25612 (133441) 21677 85197 180 2,564,410 3,613,764
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e B RS ERAR MR

25 Reserves (Continued)

(@) The Group (Continued)

25 fe#fE ()

(a) A&E (&)

Share-based  Statutory
Capital  Exchange compensation reserve
Share  redemption translation Capital ~ Investment reserve (note ) Contributed Revaluation  Retained
premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reseve MREAEAH  EEBE  suplus  reserve  eamnings Total
ROGE E4RERE NBRERE  EREE  RERE  MERR W) B4BR  GERE  REEA ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TETL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TET TEL
]
Balance as at 1 Apri 2013 R-E-Z§MA-REH 415,003 152,034 108,680 21,079 350,698 31423 - 85,197 180 2327583 349197
Proceeds from shares issued EL L 53183 - - - - - - - - - B8
Changes in fair value for available-for-sale THHECHERY
financial assets ATEED - - - - T4 - - - - - T
Reserve released upon disposal of HENEHESREE
available-for-sale financial assets HELHER - - - - B) - - - _ _ 3
Remeasurement of retirement benefit labiliies ~ E3f;tERISEAERER
and provision for long senvice payments RERBLER - - - - - - - - - 158 15,852
Employee share option scheme value of EEREIRHE
employee services -EERBEE - - - - - 2140 - - - - 2,140
Release of share-hased compensation reseve BT ERREEH MR
to share premium upon exercise of share FhHHEEEEA
options RiraE 8077 - - - - 8,077) - - - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share options TREESREY - - - - - (52) - - - 5 -
Transfer to statutory reserves ENETRE - - - - - - 21,4% - - (4% -
Exchange reserve released upon disposal of REERBELF L RER
investment in an associate BEMERRRE - - (2763) - - - - - - - (2763)
Exchange differences arising from translation ERBIHELA
o foreign subsidiaies, associates and a BELNARAERAY
joint venture EiEH - - (13019) - - - - - - - (130
Profit attributable to equity holders of the BDAREEEA
Company [T - - - - - - - - - 58119 581,19
Dividends & - - - - - - - - - (1839 (51839)
Balance as at 31 March 2014 WZE-mEZf=1-A
e 466,353 152,034 92902 21,079 42133 25434 21494 85197 180 2,384,864 3,671,670

(i)  Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC
companies are required to allocate 10% of the
companies’ net profit to the fund until such fund
reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capital.
The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of
the companies, provided that such fund is maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered

capital.

() WEFBEEEEERRMN  FEA
RIZBRKRBNF B Z210% D EEEZ
EHEe EEZZRESERLRGF
MEAXRZ50% A1 - ETERBESLE
EAERIEERTTARKERE
BIEMARZFMER - HZF
HEeREEEFRARZMERZ
25% K o
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25 Reserves (Continued) 25 #E(4E)
(b) The Company (b) &A1 F]
Shares held
Share-based for share
compensation award Contributed
Capital reserve scheme surplus
Share redemption DY Ri#E (note i) Retained
premium reserve %fit itEREE EiEs earnings Total
ROGE  ERRERE HeRkE B ; REER 4g
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKk$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT AT AT i1 FAT
-
Balance as at 1 April 2013 R-E-=FNA-BEH 415,093 152,034 31423 - 94,467 591,640 1,284,657
Proceeds from shares issued EfiRhha 3183 - - - - - 43,183
Employee share option scheme - value of EEREARE
employee services -EERBEE - - 2140 - - - 2140
Release of share-based compensation RrEDREERMN
reserve to share premium Upon exercise R AtHeEE
of share options E\ROEE 8,077 - (8,077) - - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share options ARGEERER - - (52) - - 52 -
Profit attributable to equity holders of FAAREREA
the Company FEfbiaf - - - - - 500,000 500,000
Dividends el - - - - - (518,329) (518,329)
Balance as at 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=1-H
e 466,353 152,034 25,434 - 94,467 573,367 1,311,655
Balance as at 1 April 2014 RoS-MENA-AEE 466,353 152,034 25434 - 94,467 573,367 1,311,655
Proceeds from shares issued EiRika 63,501 - - - - - 63,501
Employee share option scheme EEREDRE
- value of employee services -EERBER - - 98 - - - 982
Employee share award scheme EBRIOLREE
- value of employee services -EEREER - - 11,640 - - - 11,640
Release of share-based compensation it s
reserve {0 share premium upon exercise ) TE’]M{@W&
of share options E)\RDEE 12,38 - (12,308) - - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share options IEEREY - - (116) - - 116 -
Purchase of shares BERR - - - (133.441) - - (133441)
Profit attributable to equity holders of LN AN
the Company &l - - = = = 550,000 550,000
Dividends & = = = = = (391212) (391212)
Balance as at 31 March 2015 W-F-TF=A=1-R
fen 542,182 152,034 25,612 (133,441) 94,467 32,1 1,413,125
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AL + >
e ERRME
25 Reserves (Continued) 25 f#E (&)
(b) The Company (Continued) (b) & TFE](4&)

()  Contributed surplus mainly arose from the group (i) EBEHBRHBRIZAASERLEFED
reorganisation made in prior year and represented BHEMES 2EMEBEIHIARAMN
the difference between the value of investment in a ARG %7 EAKB AR
subsidiary acquired by the Company and the nominal BEERAFAETHOROEERD
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange ZHMY - BRBEBRERRNEZ B
thereon. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, BBHA DR TRE - MW7 B
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, BENDEEINPHERINEEEN
subject to the condition that the Company cannot AEREAEKALEMEREAEN
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out REBEITRARKRG RER &
of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the B ARARIBITA AR EHZGE
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become FIRSFKEREH DI ©
due or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium account.

26 Revenue 26 W
2015 2014
—®_THE —B-mE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

Sales of food and beverages HERY R M 7,261,606 6,734,940

Rental income A2 BA 40,754 36,450

Management and service fee income BB N RS BEUWA 13,005 5,664

Franchise income E R A 618 391

Sundry income FETEUA 39,755 48,809

7,355,738 6,826,254
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27 Other Gains, Net 27 HiFWas
2015 2014
—E-HE —2-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
-0 0 ]
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets BAFEIABRER ISR
at fair value through profit or loss BEMNATEEER), W (311) 1,645
Gain on disposal of financial assets PEREATFEIIAERZRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEERE 95 1,330
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEIHTEEsMEE
financial assets Weas = 3
Dividend income from listed investments EiiRERBWA 12,553 13,267
Fair value gain on investment properties WEMEN DT ERE 38,800 54,600
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant HEME - BELR&EF
and equipment, net Wz (E518) 23,976 (9,780)
Impairment loss of property, plant M - WERRE2RE
and equipment &8 (14,198) -
Impairment loss of trademark EIRZRERE (65) -
Gain on disposal of an associate B N A ES - 7,053
Loss of disposal of a joint venture (Note 12) HEALATEEFF12) (2,738) (231)
Government subsidy BRITE B 1,601 -
59,713 67,887
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. 3
28 Expenses by Nature 28 EMESTENEHR

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative PREHEKARTHRERANEASN
expenses are analysed as follows: N

2015 2014

—EB-EE —E-mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TFET TET

Cost of raw materials and consumables used R £ K& FEH #1E F R AN 2,402,937 2,236,560

Amortisation of leasehold land and land HELH L TR

use rights e 3,011 3,017
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 157 27
Depreciation of property, plant and WE  BERREZ

equipment e 285,642 254,558
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMHE 2 EEHERS

rented premises (including contingent (BiE A £69,873,000/% 7T

rentals of HK$69,873,000 (ZZ—PU4F : 52,220,000/ 7L))

(2014: HK$52,220,000)) 820,930 734,428
Exchange (gains)/expenses, net X (Was) BR  F8E (889) 116
Employee benefit expense (Note 34) EEBNFRAZ(H5E34) 1,999,050 1,804,949
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN & 5,200 4,811
Electricity, water and gas BE  KEBELERE 402,233 396,101
Advertising and promotion expenses M NEESH 101,906 83,980
Other expenses HihER 687,565 631,793

6,707,742 6,150,340

Representing: K&
Cost of sales HERAR 6,332,590 5,841,875
Administrative expenses TRER 375,152 308,465
6,707,742 6,150,340

29 Finance Income 29 B A

2015 2014
—E-fHf —E-mE
HK$'000 HK$°000
T FET
Interest income F B YA 17,256 12,700
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30 Income Tax Expense

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2035. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the
rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

30 FrEBiE A

ARRARNBARERHRRERE_T=
hE - FEMNEHIBEA GG E
R KT E16.5% (ZF— U4
16.5%) e B o /G SNE F 2 Bk -
AR BB A ET RERR A MR A R B AR
SEBER I IVITHREGH -

RERBIBERNFTAZRARE -

2015 2014
—E-AF —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
- ]
Current income tax: ENEARRIA -
- Hong Kong profits tax - BEFGEH 106,179 100,446
— Overseas taxation - BHNHRIE 4,902 14,171
Deferred income tax relating to the TR EREANERLY N
origination and reversal of RIERIE
temporary differences 5118 (378)
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFEBRETR (BEHEBE) 852 (3,817)
117,051 110,422
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31

AN x =
e IR MIEE
30 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 30 FISHER (&)
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax NEEE B BT A& A1 2 B 18 B2 55 X
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using REABZBEMAE 2 EmiEc =58
the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows: mr
2015 2014
—E-—h%F —E-MmF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET F&
Profit before income tax P4 F5% A Yo ) 719,531 752,543
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B E16.5%(—ZF—J04F ¢
(2014: 16.5%) 16.5%) st H AR 118,723 124,170
Effect of different taxation rates in other EMARTRARE L
countries (283) 2,430
Income not subject to taxation AR WA (16,944) (24,891)
Expenses not deductible for taxation TR ER
purposes 10,132 9,084
Recognition of previously unrecognised ERERAWERACEREE
temporary difference (4,172) (2,504)
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 HiE 9,369 6,222
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFEREBTR/(BEBE) 852 (3,817)
Others Hith (626) (272)
Taxation charge BIEY 117,051 110,422
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders 31 AR RIRERE ABLER
of the Company
The profit attributable to equity holders of the RZANA R TSR R R IR A AN QA 5 RAE
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of B AFE(E%F /550,000,000 (=%
the Company to the extent of HK$550,000,000 (2014: —PY4F : 500,000,000/ 7T) °
HK$500,000,000).
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32 Dividends

32 RE

2015 2014
—E—RE —ZE—-NF
HK$000 HK$°000
FEITL FETL

Interim dividend, paid, of HK17 cents

EIRFHRLE - SRCE BB 78

(2014: HK17 cents) per ordinary share (ZZE—mF - FRR178400) 98,669 98,021

Final dividend, proposed, HK61 cents FERERE - §RTERe1B(L
(2014: HK51 cents) per ordinary share ZE—MF - RSB 355,191 295,168
453,860 393,189

A final dividend of HK61 cents per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 was proposed.
Such final dividend is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the upcoming annual general meeting.
These financial statements do not reflect these dividends
payable.
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e B RS ERAR MR

33 Earnings/(Loss) per Share

(a) Basic

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the
profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased
by the Company for share award scheme.

33 FRER(EE)

(a) X

EA R -

2015
—ZE—h%E

FREARF, (B18) TR AR A R PR
HAEAREERN, (BRIBUFREE
T8 BRI (TEEARRRRD ZE
ArEEE R RRD) 2 EF 8z

2014

—E-mEF

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders

RRABIBERH ARG

of the Company (HK$'000) wmAl (Es8) (FEr)
— From continuing operations —REBELLER 601,793 641,237
— From discontinued operation — KRB BRI EET (15,020) (60,041)
586,773 581,196
Weighted average number of ordinary B BT SR 2 IR 8
shares in issue (“000) (FEf7) 576,557 575,758
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREREF(EHE)
(HK dollars per share) (B )
— From continuing operations — RAFEREER HK$1.05 HK$1.11
1.058 7T 1.117587C
— From discontinued operation —RE DRI AEEFTE (HK$0.03) (HK$0.10)
(0.037871) (0.10787T)
HK$1.02 HK$1.01
1.0258 T 1.018 T
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33 Earnings/(Loss) Per Share (Continued) 33 BRERN(EEB) (&)

(b) Diluted (b) #E

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. The Company's dilutive potential ordinary
shares are share options. For the share options, a
calculation is prepared to determine the number of shares
that could have been acquired at fair value (determined
as the average annual market share price of the
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options.
The number of shares calculated as above is compared

FRESERTN, (B18) DIRFRE BT
Rz IR BN EETTEMA
BEECERERBEMELE CHER
BIBBEEMAE - NAREEE
EEBBRSRE - BRRRREN
BRBEAVEFEMSRERRARF
B HHEREFE) - ZA2FEIR
RERATIE A TR AR M BT AR 2 3R
ENE®E - LA EMSZROE
AEERTEBREMRT MDA
TEELER ©

with the number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share options.

2015 2014
—g-n% —g-mE

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders 7N FIARHERS A AE(S

of the Company (HK$'000) mr, (&) (F8T)
— From continuing operations —REBELEES 601,793 641,237
— From discontinued operation —RE DR IEEEETRF (15,020) (60,041)

586,773 581,196
Weighted average number of ordinary B BT T MR 2 I &
shares in issue (“000) (FE(7) 576,557 575,758
Adjustment for share options (“000) BRI 2 e (FE ) 1,685 3,116
578,242 578,874
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share FREERF(F18)
(HK dollars per share) €=2 %19,
— From continuing operations —RERBEEEER HK$1.04 HK$1.10
1.04% 7T 1.10/% 7T
— From discontinued operation —REBRIEREERS (HK$0.03) (HK$0.10)
(0.03%7T) (0.10%87T)
HK$1.01 HK$1.00
1.0138 T 1.0058 T
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34 Employee Benefit Expenses

(a) Employee benefit expenses during the year

are as follows:

34 EEEFBX

(a) FRMESFAEAWMT

2015 2014
—B-EHF —B-mE
HK$000 HK$°000
AL TET

Wages, salaries and allowances T& - & N&ERY 1,856,309 1,680,979
Discretionary bonuses JEETEAEAL 50,140 47,692
Pension costs BB A
- Defined contribution plans — REHRGETE 73,775 66,213
- Defined benefit plan (Note 20) —REBAEE(AiE20) 4,209 5,091
— Long service payments (Note 20) —REIRBE® (H7E20) 1,995 2,834
Share-based compensation expenses LARS 7 A Bl 12,622 2,140
1,999,050 1,804,949
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) EEM<
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 HE_ZT-—NF=A=1T—HILFEHN
March 2015 is set out below: BZEEMeHIIMT ¢
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances contribution Share-based
and benefits to pension compensation
in kind Discretionary scheme expense
Fees  %& 2B bonuses EXMEKE BB AR Total
Name of director EENE we REWER FEEFA sHEIfR & k)
HK3$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$°000 HK3$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Executive directors HiTEE

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, BRNEE
Chief Executive Officer (BE#HTTE)

Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita BETLT

Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter BERELE

Non-executive directors FHITEE

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRIEE TS

Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan BEERE

Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FRESLAE

Independent non-executive directors BV HEHTTEE

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael 2ERELE

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZEERE

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry L&

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert EHMEE

50 2,277
50 1,012
50 1,320

11,626 154
2,309 18
946 18

1,060 = = =
180 = = =
180 = = =

300 = = =
300 = = =
300 = = =
300 = = =

295
347
347

14,402
3,736
2,681

1,060
180
180

300
300
300
300
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34 Employee Benefit Expenses 34 EERAMX(E)
(Continued)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEM<E (&)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 HE-_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFEN
March 2014 is set out below: BEESMEHFIWT :
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances contribution Share-based
and benefits to pension  compensation
in kind Discretionary scheme expense
Fees  %& 2B bonuses EXHEKE BURR 43 Total
Name of director BBl we  REWEE  FEERA HE 3 XRME am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FETL
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, BRNEE
Chief Executive Officer (BE#HITE) 50 2,164 11,264 162 - 13,640
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEBELL 50 1,017 2,120 15 - 3,202
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEERAE 50 840 656 15 - 1,561
Non-executive directors HHITEE
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRI R FEAE 960 - - - - 960
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan BEASLE 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FriRES & 180 - - - - 180

Independent non-executive directors B HHTEE

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael EERELE 300 - - - - 300
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZEERE 300 - - - - 300
Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry BHELE 300 - - - - 300
Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert RERELE 300 - - _ _ 300
No director waived any emolument during the year. FRNEESHERDEMAME -
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34

(c)

(d)

= A & =
e IR MIEE
Employee Benefit Expenses 34 EERAMX(E)
(Continued)
Five highest paid individuals () AEBESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest AEEEEAREEaFMATEER
in the Group for the year include two (2014: two) Z(ZE—NF: mB)ES - EEE
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis B ESIFE34b) c EBp=%(=ZF—
presented in Note 34(b). The emoluments payable to the N : =R )EadMALTRAFEZ
remaining three (2014: three) individual during the year BT :
are as follows:
2015 2014
—ZE2-FEF -
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T
Basic salaries, gratuities and other K5 - Am e REM
allowances AL 5,925 6,551
Discretionary bonuses FEREIETEAL 2,671 1,342
Contributions to pension schemes BRIRES B 53 106
Share-based compensation expenses AR Z B & 941 -
9,590 7,999
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B 2 48R0 T -
Number of individuals
A
2015 2014
—E-HfF —ZE-0F
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 3,000,0008 7T - 3
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7% 3,500,000/ 7T 3 -
No incentive payment for joining the Group or (d) FREANESEIAERHMATE
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to TEAMAREEZ BEIS s BER A
any director or the five highest paid individuals during the I -
year.
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34 Employee Benefit Expenses 34 EERAMX(E)
(Continued)

(e) Senior management’s emoluments by band (e) EREEAETMNEE
The senior management’s emoluments (excluding BREBAB(TRIEESE M AEES
directors and the five highest paid individuals) fell within A T) 2 HMEELDT

the following bands:

Number of individuals

N -

2015 2014

—2-AHF —F-NmF
I

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7CZ 1,500,000 7T = 1

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001, 7L E2,000,0007% 7T = -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,00187C%2,500,000/ 7T 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 023,000,000/ 7T = 2

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 723,500,000/ 7T 2 -
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35 Notes to the Consolidated Statement 35 RERERERMEE
of Cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax (a) RBIANRFIEEEELE 2FRSE
to net cash generated from operations — YR - SESEER
continuing operations
2015 2014
—E—-F1F —E—OF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
e ee———
Profit before income tax B 5 B O A 719,531 752,543
Adjustments for: P
— Finance income — BRI A (17,256) (12,700)
— Depreciation of property, plant — ¥ - BERERETE
and equipment 285,642 254,558
— Amortisation of leasehold land and — FRE 14 % 4 b (50 PR A 5
land use rights 3,011 3,017
— Amortisation of intangible assets — A E Y 157 27
— Fair value gain on investment —EME 2 N ERE
properties (38,800) (54,600)
— Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets ~ — AT EIIAEBRETZ S RE
at fair value through profit or loss ERNAFEEE (W) 311 (1,645)
— Gain on disposal of financial assets at —HERATEIIABRRZ
fair value through profit or loss T RLE E W (95) (1,330)
— Gain on disposal of available-for-sales —HENHEHEEsmEENZ
financial assets = (3)
- Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, —HEYE  BEMEE
plant and equipment F (), R (23,976) 9,780
— Gain on disposal of an associate —HEBE AR 2 s = (7,053)
— Loss on disposal of a joint venture —HEEEATIZERE 2,738 231
— Share-based compensation expenses — AR S 12,622 2,140
— Dividend income from listed — EmiERBHA
investments (12,553) (13,267)
— Impairment loss of property, plant and — —#¥)% « &= R 2 RE
equipment 518 14,198 -
— Impairment loss of trademark — BB ZRERE 65 -
— Share of loss of joint ventures —EEEERRIEE 5,434 3,958
Operating profit before working capital MENVE 2 E BRI L& G T
changes 951,029 935,656
Changes in working capital: mEIECEE)
— Inventories -EFE (18,021) (7,108)
— Prepayments and deposits —TENFRIERIR® (32,928) 22,095
— Trade and other receivables — & N HAth E U AR IR (1,782) 192
— Trade payables —BEENRIE 5,471 31,997
— Other creditors and accrued liabilities —H b EERIA R EFTE A 56,121 (29,635)
— Retirement benefit assets and provision — —:E{K&EFIEE R E
for long service payments IR & B (439) 835
Net cash generated from operations BEELVEES 959,451 954,032
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35 Notes to the Consolidated Statement 35 LMERESHRERMT(E)
of Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash (b) FEBRERERANEHENE -
flows, proceeds from disposal of property, BMERRZEMBRERE

plant and equipment comprise:

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—-NmEF
HK$'000 HK$000
Fa7 Ft7
Net book amounts AR TEFE 41,924 10,513
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE  BEREREZ
plant and equipment FU R (EE) 23,976 (9,780)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEKE&E
plant and equipment FTiS 3Kk 65,900 733
Representing [
Cash received during the year KEEHERA 8,242 69,133
Cash received subsequent to 31 March —A=1+—RHERERA 57,658 -
65,900 69,133
36 Share Options and Share Award 36 RRISER KD REETE
Scheme
Share Options AR
Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the BRERARRNR_ZEZE=FNLA_+MA
Company on 24 September 2003 (the “2003 Scheme"), %ZWZ%TE& A ETEI(12003518) ) » K
the Company might grant options to the eligible RRAREERRIGHRE - MEER
participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the SEERHRRERARBARARAZE
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated AR o AR R B 1220035 815 H SR AR E
therein. The Company granted options to certain BTAEEETEE(BERRRIHNT
employees of the Group (including executive directors of EE) 2003 TEIER=ZE—=F 1A
the Company) pursuant to the 2003 Scheme. The 2003 —+tEBERESER -

Scheme expired with effect from 24 September 2013.

196 ¢ Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -
e B RS ER AR R

36 Share Options and Share Award 36 RBRIFER KD REEE

Scheme (Continued)

Share Options (Continued)

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the
passing of a shareholders’ resolution on 11 September
2012 (the 2012 Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2012
Scheme, the Board may grant options to the eligible
participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. No share options had been granted under the
2012 Scheme since its adoption.

For options granted under the 2003 Scheme, the exercise
price in relation to each option was determined by the
Board of Directors of the Company, but in any event
would not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day or (i) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant
or (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company. The
exercisable period and the vesting period of the options
were also determined by the Board of Directors and the
options shall expire at the end of a 5-year period after
the options become exercisable save that such period
shall not expire later than 10 years from the date on
which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted
in accordance with the 2003 Scheme.

No options were granted under the 2012 Scheme during
the year (2014: Nil). For the options granted under 2003
Scheme in prior year, the weighted average fair value
of options granted was determined using the Binomial
option pricing model of HK$4.51 per option. The
significant inputs into the model were weighted average
share price of HK$22.15 at the grant date, exercise price
shown above, volatility of 27%, dividend yield of 3.5%,
an expected option life of eight years, and an annual risk-
free interest rate of 1.9%. The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of continuously compounded share
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices
over the last three years.

(&)

RRER)

ARBR_E——FNA+—BHEBR
RORERT N — IR RERARETEI([2012
ETEl]) - RIFE2012518) - EFERARE
ERRAEHRTE - MAEERLEERT
RIFEURBEBARARRIE B - 52012
ETEIRM AR - W IR & AT B R

RBFHE -

RIE20035 Bl 2 E AR R - H
TEERARREZRERRE  BEMAE
LT A DR HH R AR i B HR (7R
AR5 H)NRBRMDER TS E R
B R P Wi (B sk H B 2R AT (@
RHBARRBRBRORBZATZARER
Fral 2 U B iR R R KD E
B UExe&EA%E - RIE20035F 81 T
ZAERRBRFE TR EEERE
ERRTE - RIRFER AT 2 B
AFERENTBARD REZKRZ B
BEFT+FARA -

BIE201251 8] - NEEITEELRRK
FE(ZZT —MHF : &) - RIK20035F
2R EFER DA RIIFER g T
ANEEAECHEA-ZENEEEEX RS
M45187T - ZEXNEANBE ABLER
EHB®mEFHRE22.15%87T - £
ME T HITEE - HIE27% - RE X
35%  RRFEZIEHFHNFMNE
FERBIEI9% - HRIFEEAR
BORMNZEZMA2RRIRE @ 2
BB =FSERH BT ENRT ST
MmErEH ©
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36 Share Options and Share Award 36 RBRIFER KD REEE
Scheme (Continued) (#&)
Share Options (Continued) AR (E)

REFR 2 ZEBERINT

The movements in share options are as follows:

Beginning

Exercise of the End of
Grant date Exercise period price year Granted  Exercised  Forfeited the year
R AH TERH 1EE F948% KT ig:d x% EREH

HK$
B
1 November 2005 1 January 2007 to 31 October 2015 8.800 600,000 - (200,000) - 400,000
B = —EEt+5-F-BE-F-1%tA=t-8
1 November 2005 1 January 2007 to 31 October 2015 8.750 356,000 - (210,000) - 146,000
- “FE+F-f-AE-F-AFTA=1-H
1 November 2005 1 January 2008 to 31 October 2015 8.750 210,000 - (167,000) - 43,000
“ZZR%+-A-H “IE\FE-F-HE-_ZT-RFTA=1+—H
2 October 2007 30 March 2008 to 29 March 2017 14.268 2,212,500 - (1,515,000) - 697,500
—ETt5+ AR ~EE/\FZA=+AE-T-tFZA-tAE
2 October 2007 30 March 2008 to 29 March 2017 14.748 2,557,000 - (1,297,500) - 1,259,500
“2Tt+E+AZH “EE\FZA=tAZE-ZE—+F=A-1tNA
2 October 2007 30 March 2009 to 1 October 2017 14.748 602,000 - (346,000) - 256,000
ZETHETACH —EENFZRZtHE-Z—t51+A-H
28 October 2010 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2020 22.370 1,897,000 - (314,000) (94,0000 1,489,000
“T-ZFFAZFNE ZE—F-A=+-HEZZ-TF=-A=H
28 October 2010 31 March 2012 to 27 October 2020 22.370 764,000 - (268,000) (154,000) 342,000
ZE-ZF+AZHN\B Bz AZ+-HEZZZZETA-TtH
9,198,500 - (4,317,500) (248,000) 4,633,000

R—_ZE-—HAFEF=R=+—-BA
4,633,000 ( == — PO 4 : 9,198,500
10) RIEFRE R R T1E - H 4,471,000

Out of the 4,633,000 outstanding options (2014:
9,198,500), 4,471,000 options (2014: 8,093,500) were
exercisable as at 31 March 2015. The related weighted

average share price at the time of exercise of the options B (ZZ—MM% : 8,093,500 ) R HF
during the year was HK$26.20 (2014: HK$24.83) per RER] 1T - HARRE 2 Mg RER

$¢r£wﬂx¢ﬂgfﬂ§ﬁﬁ%ﬂ;@6zo
TT(ZZ—PO4F : 24.8387T) °

share.
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36 Share Options and Share Award 36 RBRIFER KD REEE

Scheme (Continued)

Share Awards Scheme

On 27 August 2013, a new share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) was approved and adopted by
the Board of Directors of the Company. Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the Share Award Scheme will
remain valid and effective for 15 years from the date of
adoption.

During the year, 940,714 restricted shares and 3,826,361
performance shares (Note c) were granted to selected
participants pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. Details
of the shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme
during the year are as follows:

(&)

B 4D SE BT &l

RZZBE—=F/\AZ++tH KRFE
= B R BR A — R ET X ) 2R E &
(TRt 22T Sl 1) - B 2 B BUBKIEER
FHN - B SRR 8K B B A B B AT
THFEAGERBRLR

F N 9407140 R & M B 0 &
3,826,36 1ix & 1D (M 5Ec) ERIE K
SRR FPRAEBEREE - T -
RAE R 2B T EIE A IREN 31T 2 I (D
EE SR NN

Number of shares

RPEA
Fair value
per share
HK$ As at As at
(Note a) 1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
BRAVE 2014 during during during 2015 Vesting
Date of grant BT R=E—ME the year the year the year R=Z—H% period
RHAH (ffzta) MA—R Fr ENEGE ERLNM ZA=1-0 BEH

31/7/2014 26.2 - 940,714 - (45,652) 895,062 31 July 2015 - 31 July 2017
—E-mE “T-RFt+A=+—HBZE
+A=+—H “E—+tHFtA=1+—H
(Note b)
(Bi&tn)
15/9/2014 23.8 - 3,826,361 - (72,680) 3,753,681 July 2019
—E-mE —ZE-NEtA
NA+TEH (Note ¢)
(Kietc)
- 4,767,075 - (118,332) 4,648,743

FR - AEBEFEBERDRE T EIZT
ARAFAMS L E4,784,3620H 8
ERD -BEBEROKDINCREESR
133,441,000 7T * & B IR E IR A Al
e RZE—RAF=ZA=+—8 AR
MERFE  ZERODEINABARAQF]
RAEEKEFR

During the year, the Group purchased 4,784,362 of
its own shares through the trustee of the Share Award
Scheme from open market. The total amount paid to
acquire the shares was HK$133,441,000 and has been
deducted from shareholders' equity. As at 31 March
2015, such shares were recorded as treasury shares of
the Company and the Group as they are not yet vested.

ARLEBMER AR — 2015 FIR » 199



A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

36 Share Options and Share Award
Scheme (Continued)

Share Awards Scheme (Continued)

Notes:
(@) The fair value of the Shares was based on the closing
price per share at the date of grant and adjusted by the
fair value of the dividends during the vesting periods
as the grantees are not entitled to dividends during the
vesting periods.

The awarded shares are subject to a vesting scale in
tranches of 33% of the awarded shares respectively on
the first and second anniversary dates of the grant date
and the balance of the remaining awarded shares on
the third anniversary date of the grant date.

The awarded shares are subject to attainment of
performance targets with reference to the Group’s
performance.

37 Commitments and Contingent 37
Liabilities
(a) Operating lease commitments (a)

At 31 March 2015, the Group had total future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

mo RS R R0 R B E )
(&)

R An R B &I ()
B &E

Bty 2 HERERE T A NS
WhEMFEBHANNKEAFEE
TERE  ARAARAERBHNE
BEAKRE -

(a)

RERMDIRLAISE - £ A E
H% EEFHRE _EBEFA
o Rl B R IR D 233% ¢ F&k

mﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ%&a%tﬁM_

EBEFARS -

BB AZRESE R RERE

REMEENERRT AR
EERHREE
REHERRE
R-ZFE-AF=A=+—H XEER
BATHEZ REHEMRARKRERNZ
RIEBEFIRERAMT -

Group

3 3
2015 2014
—B-EF —B-mE
HK$°000 HK$°000
TET T

Land and buildings T RIETF
— Not later than one year ——F A" 694,413 670,808
— Later than one year and not later than —E_EFERFRNER
five years 989,321 1,033,439
— Later than five years — RF1& W 77,291 124,883
1,761,025 1,829,130
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37 Commitments and Contingent 37 AERBIAREE(E)
Liabilities (Continued)
(a) Operating lease commitments (Continued) (a) REHEAIE(EA)
The above lease commitments only include commitments FHMEEAERBEEAESE - X1
for basic rentals, and do not include commitments for EAREREERHEUECEEME R
additional rentals payable, if any, when turnover of RZfEINEE - BRE BRI BETE A
individual restaurants exceeds a pre-determined level as B2EREINMESE o
it is not possible to determine in advance the amount of
such additional rentals.
The Company did not have any operating lease R-ZE—RAF=A=+—HBEK=F—@H
commitment at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014. F=ZRA=+—H ARARWLEBEML
EHERIE -
(b) Capital commitments (b) EARFEIE
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had the following R-_ZE—HF=F=+—8 KX&EBZ
capital commitments: BAREENT
Group
%
2015 2014
—E-AE —E-QmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE Fit7
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment UEE¥I%E - E K&
Authorised and contracted for BEHENREED 21,938 22,222
Authorised but not contracted for BHEERELD 391,750 392,371
413,688 414,593
The Company did not have any capital commitments at RZE-—RFE=A=+—BKk=F—©H
31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014. FZA=+—H  ARRWLBEME
A o
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38 Financial Guarantees

As at 31 March 2015, the Company had given guarantees
totalling approximately HK$476,000,000 (2014:
HK$536,000,000) to financial institutions in connection
with the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.

The Group’s bankers have given guarantee in lieu of
deposits amounting to approximately HK$95,447,000 to
the landlords and utility providers of the subsidiaries of
the Group as at 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$90,512,000).

39 Future Operating Lease Arrangements

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

38 MIIFER

MN-_ZE—RE=A=+—08  ARQFMA
FSRERREERENB AR ZEER
¥&{R#9476,000,000/8 7T ( = — PO 4
536,000,000/ 7T ) °

W_ZE—RE=A=+—0 A&EEx
FRFPTEMAEENBRARIZEE
RAREEEEEREER  URES
KA 4 /95,447,0008 0( — T — PO 4 -
90,512,000/ 7T) Z 173K °

39 RREEHE 2R H

RZE-—RAF=A=+—0  xEER
BAAHE 2 LEHEMNARKER Z
RIEHERIBAENT :

Group

REE
2015 2014
—E-RHF —E-F
HK$°000 HK$°000
TET T

Not later than one year —FE RN 32,725 33,257

Later than one year and F_EERFANEMm
not later than five years 13,781 28,817
46,506 62,074

The Company did not have any future operating lease
receipts as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014.
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40 Related Party Transactions

(a) The Group has the following significant
transactions with related parties during the

year:

40 BREALIRS

(a) FAXEEHEBABRATBUTN 2E
AR5 :

2015 2014
—B-RF —B-DF
HK$000 HK$000
FHET FHET

Operating lease rentals paid to a related

party: He

AR S 2 R ETHE

— Tinway Investments Limited (Note i) —RERERRRA (M ati) 2,148 2,148
Franchise and development fees paid to M@ o EFEER R

a related party: ERBA

— illycaffe SpA (Note ii) — illycaffe SpA(Hatii) 590 481
Logistics service income received from m) B HSE 5 LB 2 W7 IR 7S

a related party: WA

— Worldinn Limited (Note iii) —EEFHR AR (K aFiin) = 332
Rental income received from a related party [AE8HE 5 WER 2 FE & U A

— Worldinn Limited (Note iii) —ZEETHR A B (M) 1,412 950

(i)  Tinway Investments Limited is a company jointly owned
by Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita, a Director of the Company, an
associate of Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, the Chairman
of the Company, and Ardley Enterprises Limited, a
company wholly and beneficially owned by the family
members of Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, a director of the
Company.

(i) illycaffe SpA is a controlling shareholder of Café de
Espressamente illy (HK) Limited, a 70% owned subsidiary
of the Group.

(iii)  Worldinn Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Profit
Sky International Limited (“Profit Sky”), a 50% owned
joint venture of the Group which was disposed on 22
December 2014.

() REBREBRAFHBEEL (AR
AEE) RBRAEEE(RRTERE)Z
BMEAR—HBERAATE(CRRRE
FIZRKEKBEEE=ER ZArdley
Enterprises LimitedfTkE#EA o

(i) illycaffe SpABRZAREBE % B70% M
ff B ~ FCafé de Espressamente illy
(HK) Limited Z #EIZARIR °

(i) ZEHARAAGABRXEABEEFR LA
(TBXDHZzZ2EKBAR - BRAIAXR
EEFES0%RIEZEE R WHZ
T-NFF+_AZ+=ZHEH -
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40 Related Party Transactions 40 ERAEATRZ (E&)
(Continued)

(a) The Group has the following significant () FALTEEHBEABABUNZE
transactions with related parties during the AR5 (&)

year: (Continued)

The above transactions were carried out in accordance FRAR G AREEEEB S 2 A&
with the terms of the contracts entered into by the Group AMEFRAETT o

and the related parties.

(b) Key management compensation (b) TEEBAEMS
2015 2014
—E-RE —ZE-lmF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET F&T
Salaries and allowances S =l 10,232 10,684
Fees we 150 150
Discretionary bonuses FERITETEAL 17,245 16,084
Contributions to pension schemes RIRSET MR 285 348
Share-based compensation expense PR S 2 1,929 -
29,841 27,266
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Principal Investment Properties
TEREVF

Description Lot number Type Lease term
it b BR 4 5% B/ AL
Portion A & C of Shop No. N95 on the 1 Floor, Nos. 1-17 New Kowloon Inland Shop Medium-term
Mount Sterling Mall and Nos. 10-16 Lai Wan Road, Mei Lot No. 5086 PE 470 A
Foo Sun Chuen, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon T LBE A EY 508655

BB AEFEHNZEE10-1658
BEEEIS1-175% —ENISHARCE D

Shop F14 on the 1 Floor, Saddle Ridge Garden, No. 6 Kam Sha Tin Town Lot No. 352  Shop Medium-term
Ying Road, Ma On Shan, Shatin, New Territories YT b ES 35255 &k AR

O MEEILERRERG SRR ELE —1EF145

Rear Portion of Shop No. 3 on the Ground Floor, Cheong Tsuen Wan Town Lot No. Shop Medium-term
Yiu Building, Nos. 167, 171 and 173 Castle Peak Road 223 Bk HHf
and Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street, Tsuen Wan, New FEMHER 2235
Territories

A EEILEI67 171 %1735 RIKFAT47-55%
ERAE—E3 SFHRIH

Shop C of Portion B on the Basement, Argyle Centre, Kowloon Inland Lot No. Shop Medium-term
Phase |, No. 688 Nathan Road and No. 65 Argyle Street, 1262 72 475 HHA
Mongkok, Kowloon JUBEAMEER 126255

JUBERT AFUEGSS St M In E EA655RAE A L

— Bt EEBED 0 C AR

Shop A on the Ground Floor, Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Inland Lot No. 8423 Shop Long-term

Harcourt Road, Hong Kong b B 842357 723 478 KA

BEBERIEI18 HEERL—IEAM
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HFEBBFEHRE

Consolidated Income Statements meBmRk
For the five years ended 31 March 2015 BHE-_ZT—AF=-A=+—RALRAFE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-hFf ZE-NMFE =ZET-=Ff B —B——-§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(12 55)
Revenue Wz 7,355,738 6,826,254 6,394,089 5,956,438 5,332,639
Cost of sales SHE RN (6,332,590)  (5,841,875)  (5,485,896)  (5,142,737)  (4,528,864)
Gross profit EH 1,023,148 984,379 908,193 813,701 803,775
Other gains, net HitnF e 59,713 67,887 61,319 62,883 89,546
Administrative expenses THER (375,152) (308,465) (329,003) (317,950) (283,706)
Operating profit HiE A 707,709 743,801 640,509 558,634 609,615
Finance income WA 17,256 12,700 10,966 9,016 7,298
Share of profit/(loss) of associates fERBE SN RRT (BE) - - (4,243) 310 2,645
Share of loss of joint ventures ElEAENTER (5,434) (3,958) (5,987) (333) (67)
Profit before income tax R A A 719,531 752,543 641,245 567,627 619,491
Income tax expenses ST E A (117,051) (110,422) (100,282) (90,616) (96,903)
Profit for the year from continuing RABELEEBNETE
operations el 602,480 642,121 540,963 477,011 522,588
Loss for the year from discontinued REBKIHEEEBHR
operation FEBE (15,020) (60,041) - - -
Profit for the year REEZRF 587,460 582,080 540,963 477,011 522,588
Allocated as: L=
Profit/(loss) attributable to JEP R (R A
non-controlling interests (E18) 687 884 1,000 (318) (6)
Profit attributable to equity holders of KA RIFRIER A AJE(G 57
the Company 586,773 581,196 539,963 477,329 522,594
Dividends IRE 453,860 393,189 517,204 353,286 490,747
Basic earnings per share FRERGFI HK$1.02 HK$1.01 HK$0.94 HK$0.84 HK$0.93
1.02/8 T 1.018 7T 0.9478 T 0.8478 7T 0.93/ 87T
Diluted earnings per share FREELEF HK$1.01 HK$1.00 HK$0.94 HK$0.84 HK$0.92
1.0158 T 1.00/8 T 0.9478 T 0.8478 7T 0.92/8 T

Note: The Group presented the summary for the year ended 31
March 2015 according to HKFRS5. The summary for the
year ended 31 March 2014 has been restated as required.
The summary for the years ended 31 March 2013, 31
March 2012, 31 March 2011 have not been restated.
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Five-Year Financial Summary
A FHHEE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2015

ma BRI R

R-_ZE-—RAF=A=+—H

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-hE ZB-QNE ZE2-=Zf C—E--f ZB——§
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAT FAET FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights THE T30 I+ b fF e 88,386 91,380 94,411 97,143 67,810
Property, plant and equipment ER e 1,737,661 1,720,324 1,672,430 1,482,562 1,175,764
Investment properties REME 478,400 439,600 385,000 326,200 316,200
Intangible assets mYEE 2,132 48,417 111,579 172,652 190,676
Investments in associates REFERAIRE 1,195 1,190 11,780 18,505 21,271
Investments in joint ventures REBAFIRE - 19,772 24,372 11,060 4,240
Deferred income tax assets ERETIBEE 25,955 26,562 24,320 18,075 14,160
Retirement benefit assets BRGRAEE = - - - 14,361
Available-for-sale financial assets AHNESHEE 355,147 522,516 451,087 417,667 324,052
Non-current prepayments and ERBENTIERES
deposits 266,296 248,652 268,633 229,505 228,369
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEIIABEERZ
profit or loss EREE - 7,777 33,094 14,745 38,392
2,955,172 3,126,190 3,076,706 2,788,114 2,395,295
Current assets RENEE
Inventories rE 228,281 211,759 204,548 172,099 170,986
Trade and other receivables EE R H MR 143,342 79,660 147,671 73,889 54,333
Prepayments and deposits BRFERES 123,215 106,921 124,966 99,070 101,534
Financial assets at fair value through ~ SRAFEFIABGEEZ
profit or loss SREE 39,838 8,067 56,077 55,135 65,902
Bank deposits with maturity over HEB=EAZEAmN
three months RITIFH 15,428 31,010 31,076 31,033 -
Cash and cash equivalents BARBLZMHEIER 1,057,189 1,004,093 772,694 854,417 993,333
1,607,293 1,441,510 1,337,032 1,285,643 1,386,088
Total assets BEE 4,562,465 4,567,700 4,413,738 4,073,757 3,781,383
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Five-Year Financial Summary
A FHHEE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position mEMBARRE(E)

(Continued)
As at 31 March 2015 R-E—RF=ZA=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—%-1f CB-ME -B-=f C-B--f C—B--F%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FBT FET FET FET FET
Equity IR
Capital and reserve attributable to the AR BIREREA ARG
equity holders of the Company N f#E
Share capital AR 58,162 57,730 57,407 56,956 56,313
Other reserves H A 1,049,354 1,286,806 1,164,384 1,057,413 836,259
Retained earnings REEF 2,564,410 2,384,864 2,327,583 2,163,442 2,198,543
3,671,926 3,729,400 3,549,374 3,277,811 3,091,115
Non-controlling interests FEIE SR 3,842 3,155 2,271 1,271 1,589
Total equity Prg ek 3,675,768 3,732,555 3,551,645 3,279,082 3,092,704
Liabilities =i
Non-current liabilities FrEas
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEHERE 21,147 30,458 31,616 33,208 35,832
Provision for long service payments RIS S B 30,498 22,850 19,680 9,872 14,249
Retirement benefit liabilities BREREFAE 15,344 7,483 25,670 12,328 -
66,989 60,791 76,966 55,408 50,081
Current liabilities VEIERE
Trade payables EEEMNIRE 212,282 208,844 179,103 171,250 172,413
Other creditors and accrued liabilities — EHfEEEIB R fEET & 577,555 534,867 563,216 535,286 440,361
Current income tax liabilities BRI B E 29,871 30,643 42,808 32,731 25,824
819,708 774,354 785,127 739,267 638,598
Total liabilities =Ry 886,697 835,145 862,093 794,675 688,679
Total equity and liabilities MR & 4E 4,562,465 4,567,700 4,413,738 4,073,757 3,781,383
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